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Abstract
0B

The objective of this study is to identify the cultural dimensions of Palestinian society and
its relationship to the commonly used accounting practices. For this purpose a descriptive
analytical approach was used to achieve the objectives of the study. The subject of the
study are the senior financial staff of all fifty listed companies in Palestinian Security and
Exchange (PEX). Out of fifty listed companies, only forty of them responded in rate of, but
the number of questionnaires received was eighty seven out of one hundred distributed in a
rate of 87%. The data was analyzed by using SPSS program.
The study results indicated that the Palestinian society is characterized by "collectivity"
against individualism. It is indulgent and masculine society. It also has small power
distance degree, and has strong uncertainty avoidance degree. It has a long-term
orientation, which represents the nature of Palestinians. That means Hofstede cultural
dimensions can successfully define the culture of any country.
According to the results, the main features of accounting practices in Palestine are as
follow: Professional accounting and auditing bodies are independent of government;
willingness of firms listed in PEX to be transparent to the public; uniform approach of
applying accounting methods and policies; consistency in disclosure of accounting
information in the financial reports and accounting measurement is scaled to be in a
conservative style.
The cultural dimensions can predict the accounting practices with only 12.7% which is
significant percentage, but small. It seems that there are other environmental factors that
may predict the accounting practices better than cultural dimensions (such as: Legal
systems, economical factors, political factors, level of inflation, level of education and
level of economic development, etc.).
Also there is in general a correlation between cultural dimensions and accounting practices,
but there is statistically no significant differences at level α =0.05 in the role of cultural
dimensions in shaping the generally accepted accounting practices in Palestine regarding
firm information. As a conclusion of Hofstede-Gray model application in this study, the
results revealed that only two propositions out of Gray thirteen propositions were valid in
Palestine.
The study recommends the necessity of encouraging the existence of governmental
organizations that enhance the role of professional bodies ;developing national financial
standards which derived from International Accounting Standards (IAS) and take in
considerations the special Palestinian cultural and environmental factors. Also conducting
training courses and field visits for the students of accounting in Palestinian universities in
order to let them be aware of the real status of accounting and auditing in Palestine with all
related subjects and parties. That will be very helpful for them to enrich their practical
knowledge and to be well prepared for future employment. Finally proceeding farther
studies in this field to discover the most influential factors on accounting practices.
XI

ﻣﻠﺨﺺ ﺍﻟﺪﺭﺍﺳﺔ
ﺗﻬﺪﻑ ﺍﻟﺪﺭﺍﺳﺔ ﺇﻟﻰ ﺍﻟﺘﻌﺮﻑ ﻋﻠﻰ ﺍﻷﺑﻌﺎﺩ ﺍﻟﺜﻘﺎﻓﻴﺔ ﻟﻠﻤﺠﺘﻤﻊ ﺍﻟﻔﻠﺴﻄﻴﻨﻲ ﻭ ﻋﻼﻗﺘﻬﺎ ﺑﺎﻟﻤﻤﺎﺭﺳﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻤﺤﺎﺳﺒﻴﺔ ﺍﻟﻤﺴﺘﺨﺪﻣﺔ
ﻭﺗﻘﺼﻰ ﺇﻣﻜﺎﻧﻴﺔ ﺇﻥ ﻳﻜﻮﻥ ﻫﻨﺎﻙ ﺩﻭﺭﺍ ﻟﻠﻌﻮﺍﻣﻞ ﺍﻟﺜﻘﺎﻓﻴﺔ ﻓﻲ ﺗﺸﻜﻴﻞ ﻣﻼﻣﺢ ﺍﻟﻤﻤﺎﺭﺳﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻤﺤﺎﺳﺒﻴﺔ ﺍﻟﻤﺴﺘﺨﺪﻣﺔ ﻓﻲ ﻓﻠﺴﻄﻴﻦ.
ﻟﻬﺬﺍ ﺍﻟﻐﺮﺽ ﺗﻢ ﺍﺳﺘﺨﺪﺍﻡ ﺍﻟﻤﻨﻬﺞ ﺍﻟﻮﺻﻔﻲ ﺍﻟﺘﺤﻠﻴﻠﻲ .ﺣﻴﺚ ﺍﺳﺘﻬﺪﻓﺖ ﺍﻟﺪﺭﺍﺳﺔ ﺍﻟﻤﻮﻇﻔﻴﻦ ﺍﻟﻤﺎﻟﻴﻴﻦ ﻓﻲ ﺟﻤﻴﻊ ﺍﻟﺸﺮﻛﺎﺕ
ﺍﻟﻤﺪﺭﺟﺔ ﻓﻲ ﺑﻮﺭﺻﺔ ﻓﻠﺴﻄﻴﻦ ﻭ ﻋﺪﺩﻫﺎ ﺧﻤﺴﻮﻥ ﺷﺮﻛﺔ ﺣﺴﺐ ﺍﻟﻤﻮﻗﻊ ﺍﻟﺮﺳﻤﻲ ﻟﻠﺒﻮﺭﺻﺔ .ﺣﻴﺚ ﺍﺳﺘﺠﺎﺑﺖ ﻓﻘﻂ ﺃﺭﺑﻌﻴﻦ
ﺷﺮﻛﺔ ﻣﺪﺭﺟﺔ ﺃﻱ ﻣﺎ ﻳﻌﺎﺩﻝ  ٪80ﻣﻦ ﺍﻟﺸﺮﻛﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻤﺪﺭﺟﺔ ،ﻭﻛﺎﻥ ﻋﺪﺩ ﺍﻻﺳﺘﺒﻴﺎﻧﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻤﺤﺼﻠﺔ ﺳﺒﻌﺔ ﻭﺛﻤﺎﻧﻮﻥ ﺍﺳﺘﺒﻴﺎﻥ ﻣﻦ
ﺃﺻﻞ ﻣﺎﺋﺔ ﺗﻢ ﺗﻮﺯﻳﻌﻬﺎ .ﺛﻢ ﺣُﻠﻠﺖ ﺍﻟﺒﻴﺎﻧﺎﺕ ﺑﺎﺳﺘﺨﺪﺍﻡ ﺍﻟﺤﺰﻣﺔ ﺍﻹﺣﺼﺎﺋﻴﺔ .SPSS
ﻭﺃﺷﺎﺭﺕ ﻧﺘﺎﺋﺞ ﺍﻟﺪﺭﺍﺳﺔ ﺇﻟﻰ ﺃﻥ ﺍﻟﻤﺠﺘﻤﻊ ﺍﻟﻔﻠﺴﻄﻴﻨﻲ ﻫﻮ ﻣﺠﺘﻤﻊ "ﺟﻤﺎﻋﻲ" ﺍﻟﺨﺼﺎﺋﺺ ﺃﻛﺜﺮ ﻣﻦ ﻛﻮﻧﻪ ﻓﺮﺩﻳﺎ ،ﻭﻣﺘﺴﺎﻣﺢ ﻭ
ﻫﻮ ﻣﺠﺘﻤﻊ ﻳﻤﻜﻦ ﺇﻥ ﻳﺼﻨﻒ ﺑﺄﻧﻪ ﻣﺠﺘﻤﻊ "ﺫﻛﻮﺭﻱ" ،ﻛﻤﺎ ﺃﻥ ﻟﺪﻳﻪ ﺩﺭﺟﺔ ﻣﻨﺨﻔﻀﺔ ﻧﺴﺒﻴﺎ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﺘﺒﺎﻋﺪ ﺍﻟﻮﻇﻴﻔﻲ )ﺍﻟﻨﻔﻮﺫ(,
ﻭﻟﺪﻳﻪ ﺩﺭﺟﺔ ﻗﻮﻳﺔ ﻣﻦ ﺍﻟﻤﻤﺎﺭﺳﺔ ﺍﻟﻤﻌﺘﻤﺪﺓ ﻋﻠﻰ ﻣﺴﺘﻮﻯ ﺍﻟﻮﺿﻮﺡ ﻭﻋﻠﻴﻪ "ﻓﺘﺠﻨﺐ ﺍﻟﻤﺠﻬﻮﻝ" ﺳﻤﻪ ﺭﺋﻴﺴﺔ ﻟﺪﻳﻪ ﺑﺎﻹﺿﺎﻓﺔ
ﻟﻠﺘﻮﺟﻪ ﻃﻮﻳﻞ ﺍﻟﻤﺪﻯ ،ﻭﻫﻮ ﻣﺎ ﻳﻤﺜﻞ ﻃﺒﻴﻌﺔ ﺍﻟﻤﺠﺘﻤﻊ ﺍﻟﻔﻠﺴﻄﻴﻨﻲ ﺑﺪﺭﺟﺔ ﻛﺒﻴﺮﺓ .ﻭﺑﺬﻟﻚ ﺗﺆﻛﺪ ﺍﻟﺪﺭﺍﺳﺔ ﺃﻥ ﺃﺑﻌﺎﺩ ﻫﻔﺴﺘﺪ
 Hofstedeﺍﻟﺜﻘﺎﻓﻴﺔ ﻗﺎﺩﺭﺓ ﻋﻠﻰ ﺗﺤﺪﻳﺪ ﺍﻟﻤﻌﺎﻟﻢ ﺍﻟﺜﻘﺎﻓﻴﺔ ﻷﻱ ﺑﻠﺪ ﺇﻟﻰ ﺣﺪ ﻛﺒﻴﺮ .ﻭﺃﻳﻀﺎ ﺣﺪﺩﺕ ﺍﻟﺪﺭﺍﺳﺔ ﻣﻼﻣﺢ ﺍﻟﻤﻤﺎﺭﺳﺎﺕ
ﺍﻟﻤﺤﺎﺳﺒﻴﺔ ﻓﻲ ﻓﻠﺴﻄﻴﻦ ﻭﻛﺎﻧﺖ ﻋﻠﻰ ﺍﻟﻨﺤﻮ ﺍﻟﺘﺎﻟﻲ :ﻫﻴﺌﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻤﺤﺎﺳﺒﺔ ﻭﺍﻟﻤﺮﺍﺟﻌﺔ ﺍﻟﻤﻬﻨﻴﺔ ﻣﺴﺘﻘﻠﺔ ﻋﻦ ﺍﻟﺤﻜﻮﻣﺔ ،ﺍﺳﺘﻌﺪﺍﺩ
ﺍﻟﺸﺮﻛﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻤﺪﺭﺟﺔ ﻓﻲ ﺑﻮﺭﺻﺔ ﻓﻠﺴﻄﻴﻦ ﻟﺘﻜﻮﻥ ﻣﻨﻔﺘﺤﺔ ﺃﻣﺎﻡ ﺍﻟﺠﻤﻬﻮﺭ ،ﻧﻬﺞ ﻣﻮﺣﺪ ﻟﺘﻄﺒﻴﻖ ﺍﻷﺳﺎﻟﻴﺐ ﻭﺍﻟﺴﻴﺎﺳﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻤﺤﺎﺳﺒﻴﺔ،
ﺍﻻﺗﺴﺎﻕ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻹﻓﺼﺎﺡ ﻋﻦ ﺍﻟﻤﻌﻠﻮﻣﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻤﺤﺎﺳﺒﻴﺔ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﺘﻘﺎﺭﻳﺮ ﺍﻟﻤﺎﻟﻴﺔ ﻭﺃﺳﺎﻟﻴﺐ ﺍﻟﻘﻴﺎﺱ ﺍﻟﻤﺴﺘﺨﺪﻣﺔ ﺗﺘﺠﻪ ﻧﺤﻮ ﺍﻟﺘﺤﻔﻆ.
ﻛﻤﺎ ﺗﻮﺻﻠﺖ ﺍﻟﺪﺭﺍﺳﺔ ﺇﻟﻰ ﺍﻧﻪ ﻳﻤﻜﻦ ﻟﻸﺑﻌﺎﺩ ﺍﻟﺜﻘﺎﻓﻴﺔ ﺍﻟﺘﻨﺒﺆ ﺍﻟﻤﻤﺎﺭﺳﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻤﺤﺎﺳﺒﻴﺔ ﺑﻨﺴﺒﺔ  ٪12.7ﻭﻫﻲ ﻧﺴﺒﺔ ﺫﺍﺕ ﺩﻻﻟﺔ
ﻣﻨﺨﻔﻀﺔ ﺣﻴﺚ ﺃﻧﻬﺎ ﺻﻐﻴﺮﺓ ﻧﺴﺒﻴﺎ ،ﻣﻤﺎ ﻳﺆﻛﺪ ﺃﻥ ﻫﻨﺎﻙ ﻋﻮﺍﻣﻞ ﺑﻴﺌﻴﺔ ﺃﺧﺮﻯ ﻳﻤﻜﻦ ﺍﻟﺘﻨﺒﺆ ﻣﻦ ﺧﻼﻟﻬﺎ ﺑﺎﻟﻤﻤﺎﺭﺳﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻤﺤﺎﺳﺒﻴﺔ
ﺑﺼﻮﺭﺓ ﺃﻓﻀﻞ ﻣﻦ ﺍﻷﺑﻌﺎﺩ ﺍﻟﺜﻘﺎﻓﻴﺔ ﻣﺜﻞ :ﺍﻷﻧﻈﻤﺔ ﺍﻟﻘﺎﻧﻮﻧﻴﺔ ،ﺍﻟﻌﻮﺍﻣﻞ ﺍﻻﻗﺘﺼﺎﺩﻳﺔ ،ﺍﻟﻌﻮﺍﻣﻞ ﺍﻟﺴﻴﺎﺳﻴﺔ ،ﻣﺴﺘﻮﻯ ﺍﻟﺘﻀﺨﻢ،
ﻣﺴﺘﻮﻯ ﺍﻟﺘﻌﻠﻴﻢ ﻭﻣﺴﺘﻮﻯ ﺍﻟﺘﻨﻤﻴﺔ ﺍﻻﻗﺘﺼﺎﺩﻳﺔ ..ﺍﻟﺦ .ﺃﻳﻀﺎ ﺃﺿﺎﻓﺖ ﺍﻟﺪﺭﺍﺳﺔ ﺃﻧﻪ ﻻ ﻳﻮﺟﺪ ﻓﺮﻭﻕ ﺫﺍﺕ ﺩﻻﻟﺔ ﺇﺣﺼﺎﺋﻴﺔ ﻋﻨﺪ
ﻣﺴﺘﻮﻯ  α =0.05ﻓﻲ ﺩﻭﺭ ﺍﻷﺑﻌﺎﺩ ﺍﻟﺜﻘﺎﻓﻴﺔ ﻓﻲ ﺗﺸﻜﻴﻞ ﺍﻟﻤﻤﺎﺭﺳﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻤﺤﺎﺳﺒﻴﺔ ﺍﻟﻤﻘﺒﻮﻟﺔ ﻋﻤﻮﻣﺎ ﻓﻲ ﻓﻠﺴﻄﻴﻦ ﻋﻨﺪ ﺍﻷﺧﺬ
ﺑﺎﻻﻋﺘﺒﺎﺭ ﻣﻌﻠﻮﻣﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﺸﺮﻛﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻤﺪﺭﺟﺔ ) ﺍﻟﻘﻄﺎﻉ ﺍﻟﺬﻱ ﺗﻌﻤﻞ ﻓﻴﻪ ﺍﻟﺸﺮﻛﺔ ،ﺭﺃﺱ ﻣﺎﻝ ﺍﻟﺸﺮﻛﺔ ,ﻣﺪﺓ ﻛﻮﻧﻬﺎ ﺷﺮﻛﺔ ﻧﺸﻄﺔ
ﻭﻣﺪﺓ ﻛﻮﻧﻬﺎ ﺷﺮﻛﺔ ﻣﺪﺭﺟﺔ ﻓﻲ ﺑﻮﺭﺻﺔ ﻓﻠﺴﻄﻴﻦ( .ﻭﻛﺎﻧﺖ ﺧﻼﺻﺔ ﺗﻄﺒﻴﻖ ﻓﺮﺿﻴﺎﺕ  Grayﻋﻠﻰ ﻣﻌﻄﻴﺎﺕ ﻫﺬﻩ ﺍﻟﺪﺭﺍﺳﺔ
ﺍﻟﻮﺻﻮﻝ ﺇﻟﻰ ﻗﺒﻮﻝ ﻓﺮﺿﻴﺘﻴﻦ ﻓﻘﻂ ﻣﻦ ﺛﻼﺛﺔ ﻋﺸﺮ ﻓﺮﺿﻴﺔ ﻝ  Grayﺗﺮﺑﻂ ﺍﻟﻌﻮﺍﻣﻞ ﺍﻟﺜﻘﺎﻓﻴﺔ ﺑﺎﻟﻤﻤﺎﺭﺳﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻤﺤﺎﺳﺒﻴﺔ
ﻭﺭﺟﺤﺖ ﺍﻟﺒﺎﺣﺜﺔ ﻋﺪﻡ ﻗﺒﻮﻝ ﺍﻟﻔﺮﺿﻴﺎﺕ ﺇﻟﻰ ﻋﺪﺓ ﺃﺳﺒﺎﺏ ﺃﻫﻤﻬﺎ ﺍﺧﺘﻼﻑ ﺃﺩﺍﺓ ﺍﻟﺪﺭﺍﺳﺔ ﻭﺗﻮﻗﻴﺘﻬﺎ ﻭﺍﻟﻌﻴﻨﺔ ﺍﻟﻤﺴﺘﻬﺪﻓﺔ ﺑﺎﻹﺿﺎﻓﺔ
ﺇﻟﻰ ﺧﺼﻮﺻﻴﺔ ﺍﻟﻮﺿﻊ ﺍﻟﻔﻠﺴﻄﻴﻨﻲ ﺑﺴﺒﺐ ﺍﻻﺣﺘﻼﻝ ﻭﺍﻟﺬﻱ ﺑﺪﻭﺭﻩ ﻳﺆﺛﺮ ﻋﻠﻰ ﻛﻞ ﻧﻮﺍﺣﻲ ﺍﻟﺤﻴﺎﺓ ﻭﺗﻄﺒﻴﻘﺎﺗﻬﺎ.
ﻭﺃﺧﻴﺮﺍً ﺗﻮﺻﻲ ﺍﻟﺪﺭﺍﺳﺔ ﺑﺘﺸﺠﻴﻊ ﻭﺟﻮﺩ ﺍﻟﻤﻨﻈﻤﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﺤﻜﻮﻣﻴﺔ ﺍﻟﺘﻲ ﺗﻌﺰﺯ ﺩﻭﺭ ﺍﻟﻬﻴﺌﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻤﻬﻨﻴﺔ؛ ﺗﻄﻮﻳﺮ ﺍﻟﻤﻌﺎﻳﻴﺮ ﺍﻟﻤﺎﻟﻴﺔ
ﺍﻟﻮﻃﻨﻴﺔ ﺍﻟﺘﻲ ﺗﺴﺘﻤﺪ ﻣﻦ ﻣﻌﺎﻳﻴﺮ ﺍﻟﻤﺤﺎﺳﺒﺔ ﺍﻟﺪﻭﻟﻴﺔ ﻭﺗﺄﺧﺬ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻻﻋﺘﺒﺎﺭ ﺍﻟﻌﻮﺍﻣﻞ ﺍﻟﺜﻘﺎﻓﻴﺔ ﻭﺍﻟﺒﻴﺌﻴﺔ ﺍﻟﻔﻠﺴﻄﻴﻨﻴﺔ ؛ ﺇﺟﺮﺍء ﺍﻟﺪﻭﺭﺍﺕ
ﺍﻟﺘﺪﺭﻳﺒﻴﺔ ﻭﺍﻟﺰﻳﺎﺭﺍﺕ ﺍﻟﻤﻴﺪﺍﻧﻴﺔ ﻟﻄﻼﺏ ﺍﻟﻤﺤﺎﺳﺒﺔ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﺠﺎﻣﻌﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻔﻠﺴﻄﻴﻨﻴﺔ ﻣﻦ ﺃﺟﻞ ﺇﺗﺎﺣﺔ ﺍﻟﻔﺮﺻﺔ ﻟﻬﻢ ﻟﻴﻜﻮﻧﻮﺍ ﻋﻠﻰ ﺍﻃﻼﻉ
ﻋﻠﻰ ﺍﻟﻮﺿﻊ ﺍﻟﻔﻌﻠﻲ ﻟﻠﻤﺤﺎﺳﺒﺔ ﻭﺍﻟﻤﺮﺍﺟﻌﺔ ﻓﻲ ﻓﻠﺴﻄﻴﻦ ﻭﺟﻤﻴﻊ ﺍﻟﻤﻮﺍﺿﻴﻊ ﺫﺍﺕ ﺍﻟﺼﻠﺔ .ﻭﺳﻴﻜﻮﻥ ﺫﻟﻚ ﻣﻔﻴﺪﺍ ﻟﻬﻢ ﻋﻨﺪ ﺭﺑﻄﻪ
ﻣﻊ ﺩﺭﺍﺳﺘﻬﻢ ﻭﻓﻲ ﺗﺤﻀﻴﺮﻫﻢ ﻟﺴﻮﻕ ﺍﻟﻌﻤﻞ .ﻭﺃﺧﻴﺮﺍ ﺗﻮﺻﻲ ﺍﻟﺪﺭﺍﺳﺔ ﺑﺎﻻﺳﺘﻤﺮﺍﺭ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﺪﺭﺍﺳﺎﺕ ﻟﻠﻜﺸﻒ ﻋﻦ ﺍﻟﻌﻮﺍﻣﻞ
ﺍﻟﻤﺆﺛﺮﺓ ﻋﻠﻰ ﺍﻟﻤﻤﺎﺭﺳﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻤﺤﺎﺳﺒﻴﺔ ﺑﺎﺳﺘﺨﺪﺍﻡ ﺍﻟﻤﺘﻐﻴﺮﺍﺕ ﻭﺍﻷﺩﻭﺍﺕ ﺍﻟﻤﺨﺘﻠﻔﺔ ﻟﺘﺼﻞ ﺇﻟﻰ ﻧﺴﺒﺔ ﻣﺮﺿﻴﺔ ﻣﻦ ﺗﻨﺒﺆ ﺍﻟﻤﻤﺎﺭﺳﺎﺕ
ﺍﻟﻤﺤﺎﺳﺒﻴﺔ.
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Chapter 1
General Framework of the Research
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1.1 Introduction:
1B

Individuals in different environments form their own beliefs and attitudes towards various
phenomena. Group of individuals who form society may share common belief, ideas, and
practices because of their similar circumstances. Consequently, their choices among
variables and different applications are nearly close. So it was necessary to fully
understand the cultural structure of society as culture dimensions shape the uniqueness of
the nation identity. These cultural dimensions may influence the accepted regulations and
applications in several societal aspects. Financial fields are one of these aspects which are
expected to be highly affected by the culture.
Accounting is one of the most important applications that reflect the outcomes of business
in any nation. Regarding the globalization in this era, almost the majority of countries
around the world are adopting the International financial accounting standards. But
according to Doupnik and Tsakumis (2004), accountants from different cultural groups
may interpret and apply accounting and auditing standards differently even though the
standards have been consistently adopted across these groups. An understanding of how
culture affects the interpretations and judgments of accountants would, therefore,
contribute to the efforts of reducing the real diversity in accounting and auditing practices
(Fah, 2008) and in minimizing the gap between the international standards and its local
application. For these reasons, many researchers build a lot of hypothesis predicting those
factors and their relationship to accounting practices. The leaders in this field of research
were Hofstede and Gray. Hofstede in 1980 identified four dimensions along which each
country can be positioned which are: individualism versus collectivism; large versus small
power distance; strong versus weak uncertainly avoidance, and; masculinity versus
femininity. Then two other dimensions were added in recent researches of (Hofsted 1994,
Hofsted et al., 2010) which are long versus short term orientation and indulgence versus
restraint . Gray (1988) identified four accounting value dimensions that can be used to
define a country’s accounting (sub)culture: professionalism versus statutory control;
uniformity versus conformity; conservatism versus optimism, and; secrecy versus
transparency. The first two dimensions relate to authority and enforcement of accounting
practices at a country level, and the second two relate to the measurement and disclosure of
accounting information at a country level. Gray (1988) extends Hofstede’s model by
2

introducing four propositions that hypothesize relationships between Hofstede’s cultural
dimensions and his accounting value dimensions ,but he never conducted empirical tests to
support his framework, but this was left to other accounting researches to prove its validity.
Hundreds of papers and studies were conducted to examine these relationships and the
results varied confirming and denying these hypothesis. However, most of them come out
with a result stating that cultural influence is the key to understand and develop countries
accounting systems. "To a large extent, accounting is a product of its environment that is,
it is shaped, reflects, and reinforces particular characteristics unique to its national
environment." (Radebargh & Gray 1997).
Referring to the previously mentioned reasons it was necessary to conduct this study which
attempt to examine the effect of culture and the personality of the humans on their ability
to choose accounting practices. By understanding the cultural dimensions of Palestinian
community then linking it to its commonly used accounting practices and examining the
relationship between them. As this study will enhance the understanding of relationship
between cultural dimensions and accounting practices which can be used in developing
better national accounting standards in Palestine that fit its cultural structure. In addition to
that the finding will be compared with related literature like Hofstede-Gray hypotheses.
Taking into consideration, the unique case of the Palestinian conditions as it is one of
developing countries and still under occupation
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1.2 Problem statement:
12B

Culture may be defined as ‘the collective programming of the mind which distinguishes the
members of one human group from another’ (Hofstede, 1980). Since every community has
its own cultural view it was necessary to understand the Palestinian cultural dimensions
that shape their choices among different applications. Accounting regarded as is one of the
most important applications in the business world, it's very important to be in
harmonization with the culture of society to be accepted and be useful for individuals. So it
was critical to understand the relationship between culture and accounting practices in
addition to assess the impact of cultural dimension on shaping the generally accepted
accounting practices in Palestine. Consequently, this study will investigate if there is a
significant relationship between culture dimensions of Palestinian society and their
commonly used accounting practices.
So the main questions of the study is:
1. What are the cultural dimensions of the Palestinian society?
2. What are the features of commonly used accounting practices in Palestine?
3. Is there a significant relationship between culture dimensions of Palestinian
society and their commonly used accounting practices?
The following secondary questions arise from the main question:
•

Is there a significant relationship between social individualism vs. collectivism and
their commonly used accounting practices?

•

Is there a significant relationship between power distance degree and their
commonly used accounting practices?

•

Is there a significant relationship between uncertainty avoidance degree and their
commonly used accounting practices?

•

Is there a significant relationship between masculinity vs. femininity and their
commonly used accounting practices?

•

Is there a significant relationship between indulgence versus restraint and their
commonly used accounting practices?

•

Is there a significant relationship between long vs. short-term orientation and their
commonly used accounting practices?
4

4. Is there a statistically significant differences in the role of cultural dimension
in shaping the generally accepted accounting practices in Palestine referring to
the firm information -The firm sector, capital Equity, duration of being an
active firm and duration of being a listed company in PEX-?
5. Can Gray sub-culture hypotheses be accepted in Palestine?

1.3 Study Importance:
13B

The importance of this research can be summarized in the following points:
1- The current study is one of the few studies that attempt to examine the effect of
culture and the personality of the humans on their ability to choose accounting
practices.
2- This study will enhance the understanding of relationship between cultural
dimensions and accounting practices which can be used in developing better
national accounting standards in Palestine that fit its cultural structure.
3- Furthermore the results might be useful to regulators and authority bodies in
Palestine to better predict the society attitude towards financial regulations and
practices.
4- This study which tests the application of Gray sub-culture propositions and apply
Hofstede –Gray framework is considered the first in Palestine.
5- This study is superior in examining the relationship between the newly added
cultural dimension by (Hofstede et al.,2010) (Indulgence vs. restraint) and
accounting practices.
6- This study will enrich the Palestinian financial literature with new field of research.

1.4 Study Objectives:
14B

There are several objectives of current study as follow:
1. To highlight the cultural dimensions based on Hofstede's study then identify other
environmental factors that may affect accounting practices . Also to define
accounting practices in light of Gray's propositions when building the conceptual
framework of the study.
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2. To review the accounting development in Palestine and its current status regarding
previous studies and reports in this area of interest.
3. To identify the cultural dimensions of Palestinian society and the commonly used
accounting practices through using measurements to analyze data collected by the
questionnaire designed by researcher and confirmed by experts in this field.
4. To examine the relationship between cultural dimensions and accounting practices
in Palestine.
5. To examine the applicability of Gray's hypothesis in Palestine and compare results
with previous similar studies in the field.

1.5 Study Hypothesis:
15B

The study adopts two main hypotheses which are:
16B

1. First main hypotheses: There is a significant relationship (on α ≤ 0.05 Level)
between cultural dimensions for Palestinian society and their commonly used
accounting practices.
The following secondary hypotheses arise from the first main hypothesis:
•
•

There is a correlation between individualism vs. collectivism and accounting
practices on α ≤ 0.05 significant level.
There is a correlation between power distance degree and accounting practices on α
≤ 0.05 significant level.

•

There is a correlation between uncertainty avoidance degree and accounting
practices on α ≤ 0.05 significant level.

•

There is a correlation between masculinity vs. femininity and accounting practices
on α ≤ 0.05 significant level.

•

There is a correlation between long vs. short term orientation and accounting
practices on α ≤ 0.05 significant level.

•

There is a correlation between indulgence vs. restraint and accounting practices on
α ≤ 0.05 significant level.

2. Second main hypotheses: There is statistically significant differences at level
α=0.05 in The role of cultural dimension in shaping the generally accepted
accounting practices in Palestine refer to the firm information.
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1.6 Study Variables
17B

Independent variables: Cultural dimensions which include the following:
1. Individualism vs. collectivism
2. Power distance degree
3. Uncertainty avoidance degree
4. Masculinity vs. femininity
5. Long vs. short-term orientation
6. Indulgence versus restraint
Dependent Variable: Accounting practices which include the following:
1. Professionalism (Authority)
2. Disclosure
3. Uniformity (Enforcement)
4. Conservatism

1.7 Limitations
1. Separation of Gaza and the West Bank was a big obstacle in collecting data. Most of
listed companies located in the West Bank and they did not response to calls or emails
so the researcher had to hire someone in the West Bank to collect data closely and to
ensure proper filling of questionnaires with direct supervision from the researcher. This
was a time and money consuming process.
2. Lack of books and studies related to the subject of study in Palestinian libraries ,so the

main reliance was on web pages ,foreign universities' data bases and accounting ejournals.
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1.8 Previous Studies:
18B

1.8.1 Hofstede, (1980), "Culture's consequences: International differences in workrelated values"
This study investigated the international differences in work related values by using
attitude surveys collected from approximately 116,000 IBM employees across 39
countries, Hofstede identified four underlying value dimensions along which each country
can be positioned. These societal values are: individualism versus collectivism; large
versus small power distance; strong versus weak uncertainly avoidance, and; masculinity
versus femininity. Across these dimensions, Hofstede’s framework provided quantitative
measures for each of the sample countries. This study was and still is the corner stone of
hundreds of cultural researches in different aspects also the same researcher developed and
added a lot in this field.

1.8.2 Gray, (1988), "Towards a theory of cultural influence on the development of
accounting systems internationally"
This study proposed four hypotheses on the relationship between identified cultural
characteristics –which was identified by Hofstede ,1980- and the development of
accounting systems, the regulation of the accounting profession and attitudes towards
financial management and disclosure. The hypotheses are not operationalized and
empirical tests have not been carried out. They are proposed as a first step in the
development of a theory of cultural influence on the development of accounting systems.
Gray identified four accounting value dimensions that can be used to define a country’s
accounting (sub) culture: Professionalism versus statutory control; uniformity versus
conformity; conservatism versus optimism, and; secrecy versus transparency. The first two
dimensions relate to authority and enforcement of accounting practices at a country level,
and the second two relate to the measurement and disclosure of accounting information at a
country level.
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1.8.3 Sudarwan and Fogarty. (1996). "Culture and accounting in Indonesia: an
empirical examination."
This study independently developed new measures of cultural values abandoning the
Hofstede (1980) index score. Their research methodology used structural equation
modeling to test Gray’s hypotheses against a longitudinal study of a single country,
Indonesia. The results of the study demonstrated a significant positive relationship between
power distance and both conservatism and uniformity, indicating that change in power
distance is related to the change in accounting values in the Indonesian context. Second,
the results revealed a significant positive relationship between uncertainty avoidance and
uniformity and uncertainty avoidance and conservatism. However, uncertainty avoidance
was significantly negatively associated with more secretive accounting practice. According
to results, individualism was found to be significantly positively associated with
professionalism and conservatism in accounting practices. Finally, secrecy was found to be
significantly negatively associated with individualism, suggesting that a decreasing level of
individualism is associated with the increasing trend of secrecy of accounting practice in
Indonesian society. Overall, the results of the study support only four of the Gray’s thirteen
hypotheses, suggesting a general lack of support for the framework.

1.8.4 Jaggi and Low.( 2000), "Impact of culture, market forces, and legal system on
financial disclosures."
This study tried to look at the issue of culture, accounting disclosure and another
environmental factor, the legal system. It used data from three code law countries and three
common law countries by using independent data on financial disclosure as the dependent
variable and Hofstede’s (1980) index score as the independent variable for all thirty-nine
countries. For the common law countries, none of the cultural variables were significant.
For the code law countries, all of the cultural variables were significant but only one
dimension acted along Gray’s (1988) hypothesized direction. They concluded not only that
Gray’s (1988) hypotheses with regard to single dimension of secrecy versus transparency
was not valid, but also that the Hofstede culture indices, originally developed in the 1970’s,
may be outdated. Also, because the Hofstede culture indices were obtained from only one
company, IBM, they may not reflect the diversity of attitudes within each of the thirty-nine
countries. The findings put forward by them suggest that “culture has little or no influence
on the disclosure levels once legal system is considered.
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1.8.5 Halbouni (2005) "Culture Factors Determining the Development of Accounting
Standards in Different Countries."
This study tried to investigate as to whether a wealthy developing country such as the
United Arab Emirates (UAE) will have the ability to develop national accounting standards
that considers the collectivistic environment in the region. The study showed how an
individualistic vs. collectivistic orientation could influence the creativity of national people
in the UAE. The findings revealed that the UAE have positive low self-rating, moderate
individualism, and high collectivism perspectives. Furthermore, they have less level of
superiority and exhibitionism. The regression models showed that individualism can
predict self-rated cognitive performance, meanwhile, collectivism can predict the actual
test score. To achieve better convergence in accounting standards around the globe, the
International Accounting Standards Board should understand various cultural factors, other
than that in individualistic culture, which have special features that need to be addressed.

1.8.6 Smith and Hume (2005) "Linking Culture and Ethics: A Comparison of
Accountants’ Ethical Belief Systems in the Individualism/Collectivism and Power
Distance Contexts"
This study uses accounting professionals from an international setting to test the
individualism and power distance cultural dimensions developed by Hofstede [Culture’s
Consequences 1980]. Six countries, which appropriately represented high and low values
on the Hofstede dimensions, were chosen for the survey of ethical beliefs. Respondents (n
= 249) from the six countries were requested to supply their agreement/disagreement with
eight questionable behaviors associated with the work environment. Each of these
behaviors contained an individualism and/or power distance cultural component for the
responding accountants to consider. The results of the cultural analysis indicated
significance on five of the eight survey items. Results lend support for the presence of the
individualism cultural element in the ethical responses of the accountants surveyed.

1.8.7 Noravesh et.al., (2007) "The impact of culture on accounting: does Gray's model
apply to Iran?"
This study examined the relationships between cultural values (as defined by Hofstede)
and accounting values (as described by Gray) in Iran. They used data from a period of ten
10

years (1993-2002) which was compiled from economical magazines, the Iran Statistical
Yearbook, financial statements, and auditors’ reports of the firms listed in Tehran Stock
Exchange. LISREL was used to analyze the data. The results of this study show the
relationships among cultural and accounting values in Iran and found support for more than
one-half of Gray's hypotheses. Numerous issues, such as the abnormal evolution of
accounting in Iran, the impact of unstable economics, inappropriate use of accounting
methods and procedures which are common among developing countries, the impact of
governmental ownership, and the lack of well developed capital market tradition may be
some determining factors as to why several of Gray's hypotheses were not supported
through this study.

1.8.8 Askary et. al., (2008) ‘Culture and accounting practices in Turkey’
This study examined the effects of cultural values on accounting practices in Turkey by
applying Gray’s theory (Gray, 1988) of socio-cultural factors on accounting values and
practices. The study compared the model of accounting with accounting-profession
authority, the quality and uniformity of financial disclosures, and accounting
measurements in Turkey. The results confirmed Gray’s theory that high uncertainty
avoidance and low individualism are positively associated with high conservative
accounting measurements. In addition, the study confirmed that the highest power distance,
uncertainty avoidance, and lower individualism are positively associated with accounting
uniformity. However, large power distance, high uncertainty avoidance, and collectivism
negatively affect professionalism and financial disclosures.

1.8.9 Fah, (2008) A Cross-Cultural study of Accounting concepts applied in
international financial reporting standards.
The aim in this study was to explore a different approach to examine the influence of
culture on accounting practices by adapting Schwartz’s (1992) universal structure of
individual-level human motivational values to the domain of accounting. A mail survey
was conducted on accountants in Malaysia to obtain their attitudes, beliefs and opinions
about their motivational goals, and their interpretations and judgments in financial
reporting. The results reveal a set of individual-level accounting motivational values that is
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a more comprehensive and theoretically valid representation of the accounting sub-culture
compared to the Hofstede-Gray framework. Significant relationships were found linking
the accountants’ motivational values with their interpretations and judgments in financial
reporting. Empirical evidence of cultural diversity within the accounting sub-culture was
also found.

1.8.10 Akman , (2011) The Effect of IFRS Adoption on Financial Disclosure: Does
Culture Still Play A Role?
This study investigated whether the differences in financial disclosure due to culture have
diminished after the use of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Using four
hundreds and ninety eight firm-year observations for the period from 2004 to 2006 from
six countries, the results indicated that the effect of culture still prevails on the amount of
disclosure even after the use of IFRS. However, it is also noted that, the level of financial
disclosure increases in all countries examined following the adoption of IFRS.
Nevertheless, findings of the study show that the use of single set of accounting standards
does not completely eliminate the impact of culture on financial disclosure.

1.8.11 Malhotra et. al., (2011) "A comparative analysis of the role of national culture
on foreign market acquisitions by U.S. firms and firms from emerging countries"
This study conducted a comparison for cross-border acquisitions by firms from the United
States and eighteen emerging countries which showed that firms from both the United
States and emerging countries target countries that are culturally closer to their home
countries; a strong interaction effect occurs between market potential and cultural distance
for emerging country firms as the market potential increases (i.e., at high market potential,
firms from emerging economies are willing to overlook cultural distance); no interaction
effect occurs between market potential and cultural distance for U.S. firms, and different
cultural dimensions affect the market entry strategies of U.S. firms and firms from
emerging countries.

12

1.8.12 Al shogeri, (2011) "The role of cultural factors in shaping the features of
generally accepted accounting applications .A field study for a sample of accountants
& auditors opinions in Iraq."
This study adopted the test of the hypothesis which puts emphasis on the existence of a
fundamental effect of the cultural dimensions of society compared to other factors in
shaping the framework governing accounting applications adopted by the community.
Therefore, the analysis focused on the theoretical framework so as to study the concept ,
the culture and their variables influencing the behavior of society in general. Also the
associated conduct of community towards the economic development and planning the
accounting applications in particular. As for the area of field analysis, a questionnaire has
been adopted in gathering data concerning the nature of the cultural dimensions of the Iraqi
society as a sample of study and role in shaping the accepted accounting applications. The
research concluded a series of results which support the main research hypothesis and also
the sub- hypothesis. The social dimension acquired is 97.57% of the accepted accounting
applications in Iraq, whereas 47.9% went for the economical dimension and finally the
political and legal dimension which received 36.5% alternatively. This means that the
cultural dimensions of the Iraqi society have a spiritual role in the accounting applications
which are accepted and prevailing. The researcher recommended to work on building a
national accounting standards based on IAS with considering Iraqi cultural factors.

1.8.13 Chand et. al., (2012) "The Effect of Accounting Education and National
Culture on Accounting Judgments: A Comparative Study of Anglo-Celtic and
Chinese Culture."
This study examined the effect of national culture and education on the judgments of
Australian (Anglo-Celtic) and Chinese final year undergraduate accounting students in
Australia. It seeks to understand whether culture influences student interpretation and
application of uncertainty expressions, which are used as recognition and disclosure
thresholds in International financial reporting Standers (IFRS). Results obtained on the
cultural dimensions of uncertainty avoidance, individualism, power distance, masculinity
and long-term orientation provide evidence that Chinese students exhibit greater
conservatism and secrecy compared to Australian students. The results of the study
indicate that national culture has a significant effect on the judgments of accounting
students when interpreting and applying selected IFRS containing uncertainty expressions.
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The results also imply that educational similarity does not moderate the effect of culture in
influencing the judgments of accounting students. An important implication of the study is
that regulators and standard-setters involved in the international convergence of accounting
standards need to pay greater attention to cultural factors that may result in a difference in
the interpretation and application of IFRS.

1.8.14 Zheng et. al., (2012) "National culture and corporate debt maturity"
This study investigated the influence of national culture on corporate debt maturity choice.
Based on the framework of Williamson, it argued that culture located in social emboldens
level can shape contracting environments by serving as an informal constraint that affects
human actors’ incentives and choices in market exchange. Therefore it expected national
culture to be related to debt maturity structure after controlling legal, political, financial,
and economic institutions. Using Hofstede’s four cultural dimensions (uncertainty
avoidance, collectivism, power distance, and masculinity) as proxies for culture, and using
a sample of 114,723 firm from forty countries over the 1991–2006 period, the study found
robust evidence that firms located in countries with high uncertainty avoidance, high
collectivism, high power distance, and high masculinity tend to use more short-term debt.
The results were interpreted as consistent with the view that national culture helps explain
cross-country variations in the maturity structure of corporate debt.

1.8.15 Young , (2013) "Cultural Influences on Accounting and Its Practices"
This study discussed various cultural aspects that have influenced accounting and how
these cultural differences will impact the international convergence of accounting
standards using the descriptive method of going through literature. Beginning with
Hofestede (1984) and Gray (1988) who conducted studies and observations of cultural
dimensions and values that have contributed to culture and accounting research thereafter
discussing that national culture is broad in its influences, but affects the smallest aspects of
society-even accounting. It also stated that accounting is influenced by organizational
culture -the overall environment in which a company functions- , ethics -an integral aspect
of accounting persuaded by the culture in which it is derived- and lastly religion as it is
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more than a belief; it constitutes a way of life, involving unique practices and perspectives
in accounting.

1.9 Comment on the Previous Studies:
19B

When going through the literature of culture no one can ignore the huge contributions of
Hofstede in this field whose work on culture represents the most extensive research on
national cultural differences to date. His research was the cornerstone of this study and
hundreds of other researchers studies. Hofstede identified four dimensions along which
each country can be positioned. Then two other dimensions were added in recent research
of (Hofsted 2001, 2010) which are long versus short term orientation and indulgence
versus restraint . From the literature and practice, Gray (1988) identified four accounting
value dimensions that can be used to define a country’s accounting (sub)culture. Gray
(1988) extended Hofstede’s model by introducing four propositions that hypothesize
relationships between Hofstede’s cultural dimensions and his accounting value dimensions
, but he never conducted empirical tests to support his framework. This was left to other
accounting researches to prove its validity. There have been many contributions in the
literature attempting to extend or refine the Hofstede–Gray framework in understanding the
influence of culture on accounting .The research methodologies employed to test the theory
by looking at: country level tests; studies testing all four hypotheses; studies testing one
hypotheses only; testing at an individual level only (rather than a collective level) Doupnik
& Tsakumis (2004); and studies testing other environmental factors in addition to culture
affecting accounting practices. The results of these studies are mixed. For example, Eddie
(1990) tested all four of Gray’s hypotheses for 13 Asia-Pacific countries. In all cases, he
confirmed the predicted signs of associations between cultural and accounting values.
Suderwan and Fogarty (1996) test Gray’s hypotheses in Indonesia over a 12-year period of
1981-1992 and demonstrate that, there are significant relationships among three of
Hofstede’s five cultural values (power distance, uncertainty avoidance, and individualism)
and one or more accounting values. Doupnik and Tsakumis (2004) argue that it is
impossible to assess whether Sudarwan and Fogarty’s general lack of support for Gray’s
expectations is a result of a weak theory or the lack of appropriate measurement. Salter and
Niswander (1995) were able to confirm only 6 out of 13 of Gray’s hypothesized
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relationships between cultural and accounting values. So it was necessary to conduct this
study in order to see if Gray's hypotheses is valid in Palestine or not.
The literature review was very helpful in building the study theoretical framework also in
designing the study tool -questionnaire-.
This study is different from previous studies as it is the first study conducted the
Palestinian environment. It attempts to understand its cultural dimensions also the impact
on their accounting practices using Hofstede-Gray framework which was applied in
hundreds of researches around the world. There is also an added value for this study as it
tests the relationship between indulgence vs. restraint which were newly added by
(Hofstede et al., 2010) and accounting practices.

1.10 Conclusion
This chapter identified the general outlines of the study . It shows the problem, importance,
objectives and hypotheses of the study. Also literature review of previous studies was
administered with comments to link the previous studies to this study. Next chapter will
give a theoretical background of cultural dimensions and accounting practices.
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Chapter 2
1B

Cultural Dimensions and Accounting Practice
2B
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2.1 Introduction:
20B

This chapter attempts to build a framework for the topic of cultural dimensions and
accounting practices. For this purpose, the chapter firstly addressed concept of culture in
which different definitions of culture are mentioned then cultural levels and layers
demonstrated after that Hofstede's cultural dimensions defined and finally other
environmental factors that may influence accounting practices mentioned like: political
factors, legal systems and economical factors. The second point is an accounting concept in
which it was defined and

its models were differentiated. Then the relation between

accounting and different cultural factors were discussed and finally the point of accounting
in Palestine was added. The subject and variables of the study are completely covered
through these points and fine understanding was gained.

2.2 Concept of Culture
21B

2.2.1 Culture definition
42B

The concept of culture has been studied for many years with no consensus in one perfect
definition for it. This has led Ajiferuke and Boddewyn (1970, p.164) to assert that “culture
is one of those items that defy a single all-purpose definition, and there are almost as many
meanings of‘ culture’ as people using the term.”, but a lot of researchers tried their best to
have a close and intensive view of culture through their proposed definitions as follow :
Kroeber and Kluckhorn presented their definition after reviewing more than 150
year’s use of the concept: "Culture consists of patterns, explicit and implicit, of behavior
acquired and transmitted by symbols, constituting the distinctive achievements of human
groups, including their embodiments in artifacts; the essential core of culture consists of
traditional ideas and especially their attached values; cultural systems may on the one hand
be considered as products of action, on the other as conditioning elements of further action
(Kroeber and Kluckhorn, 1952, p28).
This definition was the root for many researchers like Clifford Geertz’s who defined
culture as "an historically transmitted pattern of meanings embodied in symbols, a system
of inherited conceptions expressed in symbolic forms by means of which [individuals]
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communicate, perpetuate, and develop their knowledge about and attitude towards life
(Geertz 1973, p. 89)

No piece of literature talking about culture can avoid the mention of Geert Hofstede great
and notable work of this area which started since 1980s, his definition focuses on the
subjective rather than the objective components. Attitudes, beliefs and values cannot be
seen or touched and as such are considered subjective manifestations of culture. He defined
culture as “the collective programming of the mind that distinguishes the members of one
category of people from those of another. Culture is composed of certain values, which
shape behavior as well as one’s perception of the world (Hofstede, 2005, p.3)

Also the definition of culture adopted by Spencer-Oatey (2000) had the same focus of
Hofstede as it stated that culture is "a fuzzy set of attitudes, beliefs, behavioral norms, and
basic assumptions and values that are shared by a group of people, and that influence each
member’s behavior and interpretations of the "meaning" of other people’s behavior
(Spencer-Oatey 2000, p. 4).

And in the same context Matsumoto and Juang (2004) added that culture itself cannot be
seen, felt, heard, or tasted. What is concrete and observable to us is not culture per seen but
differences in human behavior – actions, thoughts, rituals, traditions, and the like. We see
manifestations of culture, but we never see culture itself. (Matsumoto & Juang, 2004, p.7)
Then they presented a more comprehensive definition describing culture as "a dynamic
system of rules, explicit and implicit, established by groups in order to ensure their
survival, involving attitudes, values, beliefs, norms, and behaviors, shared by a group but
harbored differently by each specific unit within the group, communicated across
generations, relatively stable but with the potential to change across time. (Matsumoto &
Juang, 2004, p.10)

By reviewing the concept of culture through literature of many researchers across years we
reach to the fact that no single definition can exclusively include all meant aspects of this
concept as it emerged as a particularly difficult construct to define, with multiple
definitions that tend to be vague and overly general (Schneider 1988;Segall 1986; Taras et
al. 2009; Tayeb 2001)
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Veronica Reid (2011) examined the definitions proposed by scholars in different fields to
declare that it is possible to conclude that culture is a set of shared, distinguishing basic
assumptions and values (Hofstede 1991; Kroeber and Kluckhohn 1952; Schein2010) that
are subconscious most of the time (Hall 1989, 2000). These basic assumptions and values
have resultant behavioral norms, attitudes, and beliefs that manifest themselves in systems
and institutions as well as behavioral and non-behavioral patterns (Spencer-Oatey 2000).
So culture is ‘programmed’ or learned (Hofstede and Hofstede 2005) and acts as an
interpretive frame of behavior (Geertz 1973; Spencer-Oatey 2000), as well as the patterns
of thinking, feeling, acting, and reacting (Hofstede and Hofstede 2005;Kluckhohn 1951;
Kluckhohn and Strodbeck 1961) and other symbolic meaningful systems (Hall et al. 2003;
Kroeber and Parsons 1958; Spencer-Oatey 2000). Still, several aspects remain unexplained
when this definition of culture is examined (Reid,2011, p.63)

2.2.2 Culture layers
43B

One of the best-known and most effective metaphors used to describe culture is the iceberg
theory, whereby the visible aspects of culture are only the top of the iceberg, and what is
often unseen – the part below the waterline – is not only the bigger part, but also what
justifies the very existence of the top (Alexander and Seidman 1990; de Mooij 2004)
Another great tool helps in understanding culture of a country is to see it as consisting of
layers which called “Cultural Onion” as it can be peeled to reveal the content.
Hofstede(1991) described differences in culture between different groups using the
concepts of symbols, heroes, rituals and values as summarized in figure 2.1 below.

Figure 2.1: Hofstede’s Layers of Culture (Hofstede et al. 2010, p. 17)
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Hofstade made the core of his model stands for the values of a certain culture, which he
defined as “broad tendencies to prefer certain states of affairs over others”(Hofstede 1994,
p. 8). Since these values are learnt at such an early age they are usually subconsciously
held and are not able to be observed by outsiders. For example people's concepts of right
versus wrong and good versus evil are all cultural values(Verma 2000, p.19). Then the
other three layers around the core of Hofstade(1991) model respectively are :

1. Rituals and Traditions: A ritual can be for example, personal hygiene (most Asians
shower in the evening, Europeans in the morning) or ways of greeting and paying
respect (German people like to shake hands often, while the British use “please”
and “sorry” all the time.

2. Heroes: such as admired persons who serve as an example for behavior ,it can be a
fictional character, national hero, photo-model or scientist – all people, who have
been a role-model in that society; and,

3. Symbols : It can be words, colors, or other artifacts that carry a special meaning
.Nowadays most symbols appear as brands like BMW, Apple or Nokia , and
change with the trends.
Symbols, heroes, rituals can be subsumed under the term practices.
Schein (2010) presented the layers in different way as he proposed three layers of culture,
which he sees as “the degree to which the cultural phenomenon is visible to the observer”
these layers as follow Figure 2.2:
1. The shallow outer layer (artifacts) represents the explicit culture. It is the visible
(audible and tangible) manifestation of a group’s culture and thus includes all the
phenomena that can be seen, heard, and felt.
2. Espoused beliefs and values - the second layer that includes various espoused
beliefs, norms, and values that guide behavior and from which the explicit culture is
derived.
3. The third and innermost layer of culture (basic assumptions) is made up of “the
implicit assumptions that actually guide behavior, that tell group members how to
perceive, think about, and feel about things” (Schein 2010, p. 23, emphasis in
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original). These assumptions represent the core beliefs of what life is and are
deeply embedded and unconscious.

Figure 2.2: Schein’s Layers of Culture (Schein 2010, p.24)

Unlike Hofstede (1991) model in which each layer is represented as encompassing the
lower level, as each level is dependent on, or is a resultant from the lower level ,Schein’s
model are meant to indicate that layers of culture are mutually constitutive.

2.2.3 Culture levels
4B

Culture can be defined and studied at different levels and there is significant debate about
the level of analysis that is desirable for the concept of culture to be a viable tool (Hofstede
1991; Laroche 2007; Sharma 2009; Reid 2011). Because of that, researchers have
operationalized culture at various levels, suggesting that there are several layers of ‘cultural
programming’ that exist that encompass the range of cultures operative on an individual’s
behavior (Hofstede 1991).For example, Karahanna et al. (2006) created a hierarchy of
cultures,’ identifying levels of culture that can exist at the supranational level including
regional, religious, ethnic, and linguistic, gender, generation, social class, and
organizational cultures, as outlined in Table 2.1. “the sequence of these [levels] is virtual,
in the sense that they shift, depending on time and circumstance” (Gallivan and Srite 2005,
p. 300)
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Table (2.1): Levels of Culture
Level
Supranational

• Regional
• Ethnic
• Religious
• Linguistic
National
Professional
Organizational
Group

Definition
Any cultural differences that cross national boundaries or
can be seen to exist in more than one nation. Can consist
of:
• Regional - pertaining to a group of people living in the
same geographic area.
• Ethnic - pertaining to a group of people sharing common
and distinctive characteristics.
• Linguistic - pertaining to a group of people speaking the
same tongue.
Collective properties that are ascribed to citizens of
country.
Focus on the distinction between loyalty to employing
organization versus loyalty to the industry.
The social and normative glue that holds organizations
together.
Cultural differences that are contained within a single
group, workgroup, or other collection of individuals at
level less than that of the organization.

(Karahanna et al. 2006, p. 37)

Hofstade et al., (2010) extended this by emphasizing that almost everyone belongs to a
number of different groups and categories of people at the same time, people unavoidably
carry several layers of mental programming within themselves, corresponding to different
levels of culture. For example:
• National level according to one's country ( or countries for people who migrated
during their lifetime);
• Regional and/or ethnic and/or religious and/or linguistic affiliation level, as most nations
are composed of culturally different regions and/ or ethnic and/or religious and/or language
groups;
• Gender level, according to whether a person was born as a girl or as a boy;
• Generation level, which separates grandparents from parents from children;
• Social class level, associated with educational opportunities and with a person's
occupation or profession;
• For those who are employed, an organizational or corporate level according to the way
employees have been socialized by their work organization.
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2.2.4 Hofstede Cultural Dimensions :
45B

Hofstede (1980s) theorizes the origins of a national culture, or what he termed as societal
values, through the influence of the physical and social environment of a nation such as its
geography, history and demography (Fah, 2008 p.30). Hofstede (1981) describes the
formation of culture in the context of nations :
In the centre is a system of societal norms consisting of the value systems (the mental programs) shared by
most of the population. Their origins are a variety of ecological factors (in the sense of factors affecting the
physical environment). The societal norms have led to the development and pattern maintenance of social
institutions with a particular structure and way of functioning. These include the family, education systems,
politics, and legislation. These institutions, once they have become facts, reinforce the societal norms and the
ecological conditions that led to them. (Hofstede,1981, pp.24-25)

Using a survey on matched IBM employees from over fifty countries, and statistical
analysis of the answers to the surveys, Hofstede’s (1984) most notable work identified four
universal dimensions of national culture that differ among countries. Dimensions are
defined as aspects of culture that can be measured relative to other cultures and the four
identified by Hofstede in his original study were:

Individualism versus collectivism
Which relates to the relationship between the individual and the group. Individualism is
where individuals are supposed to take care of themselves and their immediate family only
whereas collectivism is where there is an expectation for individuals to look after their
relatives in exchange for loyalty.

Power distance
Relates to social inequality including relationships with authority. Large power distance is
when people accept rigid hierarchical orders and accept that power in society is not
distributed equally; small power distance is where people strive for power equalization and
do not accept hierarchies without justification.

Femininity versus masculinity
Relates to concepts of masculinity and femininity i.e. the social implications of having
been born as a boy or a girl. Masculinity stands for qualities such as assertiveness and
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material success whereas femininity stands for qualities such as caring relationships and
quality of life.

Uncertainty avoidance
This relates to ways of dealing with uncertainty, the control of aggression and the
expression of emotion. Strong uncertainty avoidance arises when there are strong codes of
belief with intolerance for anyone who deviates from the accepted viewpoint. Weak
uncertainty avoidance arises when there is a more relaxed atmosphere and different
viewpoints are more easily tolerated.

Long vs. short-term orientation
In a later study with Michael Bond (Hofstede 1994, Hofstede and Bond 1988), Hofstede
reported the existence of a fifth national culture dimension which was labeled as long-term
orientation. This dimension came about as a result of the recognition that the dimension of
uncertainty avoidance was not appropriate to eastern cultures. Long term orientation
includes a sense of thrift and persistence whereas a short term orientation includes respect
for tradition and reciprocation of greetings, favors and gifts. In the original presentation of
this dimension, long-term orientation and short-term orientation were taken as emphasizing
different maxims of Confucianism, such as “it's positive pole reflects a dynamic, futureoriented mentality, whereas its negative pole reflects a more static, tradition-oriented
mentality”

Indulgence versus restraint
The sixth and new dimension, added in Hofstede's 2010 book, uses Minkov’s label
indulgence versus restraint. It was also based on recent World Values Survey (WVS) items
and is more or less complementary to long-versus short-term orientation. It focuses on
aspects not covered by the other five dimensions, but is known from literature on
“happiness research”. Indulgence stands for a society that allows relatively free
gratification of basic and natural human desires related to enjoying life and having fun.
Restraint stands for a society that controls gratification of needs and regulates it by means
of strict social norms.
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2.2.5 Other environmental factors:
46B

There are a lot of other factors that may influence the accounting practices which derived
from literature. The following are some of these factors that may greatly influence
accounting practices other than culture, but they are not subjected to be tested in current
study because of the unstable situation and undetermined features of political and
economical status in Palestine which may lead to ambiguous and unrepresentative results.

2.2.5.1 Political factors
47B

Politics: The definition of politics is in itself a political act (Leftwich, 1984). The nature
and scope of the politics is similar to health, a contested concept, as the naming of the key
elements itself constitutes a political choice. This is evident in the divergent
conceptualizations of the political that have been utilized both over time and by different
political ideologies. Following Heywood(2000) a broad four-fold classification is possible:
_ Politics as government - Politics is primarily associated with the art of government and
the activities of the state
_ Politics as public life – Politics is primarily concerned with the conduct and management
of community affairs
_ Politics as conflict resolution – Politics is concerned with the expression and resolution
of conflicts through compromise, conciliation, negotiation and other strategies
_ Politics as power – Politics is the process through which the production, distribution and
use of scarce resources is determined in all areas of social existence

Edward Shils (1966) -from Zhang, G.(2005)- presented a classification for the political
system consisting of five different types: political democracy, tutelary democracy,
modernizing oligarchy, totalitarian oligarchy, and traditional oligarchy. The characteristics
of these different types of political systems can be summarized in table 2-2.
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Table (2-2): A classification of political systems
Systems

Political

Tutelary

Properties

Democracy

Democracy

Representative,
elected.
”Parliament” is
centre of partisan
Legislature
decision-making

“Rubberstamp”
parliament or
none at all.
But there is
the
appearance of
representation

Shares power
Personalityoriented.
with the
Greater
legislature
preponderance
.Actions are
Executive
modified by partyof the executive
ideology,
opposition &
electorate

Judiciary

Modernizin
Totalitarian
g
Oligarchy

Oligarchy

Is advisory Acclamatory
or serves
&ceremonial
inratificationfunctions.
mode

Centralized
powers,
strong
control by
power elite

Strong,
Limited
sharing of
power and
autocratic

Traditional
Oligarchy

Not needed,
function
performed as
needed by
executive(“mo
narch”)

Supreme
power ,divine
right to rule

Constitutional Constitutional Controlled No independent No independent
and independent & generally
by the
Judiciary.
judiciary, inindependent but executive Supports &
stead there is
subject to
enforces
usually a
corruption by
executive
handpicked
the executive
decrees
retinue of
advisers

Exist in diverse
fields, e.g.,
industrial,
Power Elite political,
professional are
not coalesced

Coalesced,
Wellstable,
organized,
competent & cohesive,
politically
closed
active
militarycivilian
clique

Multi-partied
structure.
Coherent
articulate &
Opposition responsible

Being, but
“visible”
opposition.
Restrictions on
press

Party-oriented.
Stringent
Restrictions on
member-ship.
Loyalty,
coherence and
discipline

Dynastic,
coherent,
extremely
conservative,
fraternal, lineal
& reactionary

Suppressed i Suppressed in Opposition is
n Political all phases of not tolerated.
form
society. “States Moral as well
.Contrary of crisis” are as legal
views may used to induce pressures are
surface
cooperation
used to secure
impress, but &stifle
cooperation
they are
opposition
&stifle
censored
opposition
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Politicallydetached civil
service,
independent
Mechanism of
judiciary, police,
Authority
secret service &
military

Public
Opinion

Self-confident
and selfsustaining public
institutions:
press,
universities,
special interest
groups

Competent and
detached civil
service. Police/
military are
used to
discourage
dissatisfaction

Bureaucratic Party
entrenched supervision
civil service. over member,
Police/milita non-members,
ry are used & government
to
leader &
discourage bureaucracy
dissatisfactio
n

Feeble public
institutions
press,
universities
and special
interest
groups. A
Political or
compliant

Feeble,
suppressed
interest
groups, or
used to
support
governmen
t

Homeostasis.
National rather Strong
dependence
Self-disciplining. than
Common belief politicalloyaltie on police &
in political order s, supine &anti military.
tumultuous
Absence of
civility &
public
Civil Order
opinion
forums

Lineal relationships, fraternal,
rudimentary
and incapable
of dealing with
social change

Loyal
Absent.
intelligentsia Confined to
substitutes for advisory
civic & special function of the
interest groups. monarchal
Extensive
retinue
propaganda

Unity behind
party. Party
policies are
enforced.
Prospect of
party
membership
provides
incentive to
social order as
does the
possibility of
nonmembership

Maintained by
encouraging
ignorance,
illiteracy ,and
poverty. None
or poor
education for
the masses.
Rural
subsistence

(Source:” Report of the Committee on International Accounting Operations and Education,
1975-1976 as cited in Zhang, 2005)

2.2.5.2 Legal systems
48B

There are two existing legal systems: a common law system and a code law system, which
originated in different parts of the world. The code law system originated in Roman law
and has developed in continental Europe (in countries like, Germany, France, Italy,
Belgium and so on). This system is characterized by wide sets of rules which aim to
provide guidance in all possible situations. Due to this, a company’s law in this system is
very detailed and heavily regulated. Moreover, accounting regulation in code law countries
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is in the hands of government, and due to this the legal provisions govern, to varying
degrees, the financial reporting process. In this case, in countries with code law system, the
standards are not compulsory but they have an integrative and interpretative function with
respect to the provisions of the law (Dunne et al., 2008).

The common law system, which originated in England, can be simply described as a legal
system that is developed case by case and does not prescribe general rules that could be
applied in several cases. In general, in a common law situation accounting rules are not a
part of the law, because accounting regulations are in the hands of professional
organizations in the private sector. This means that financial reporting is less heavily
regulated by statue and permits the exercise of judgment, although legal organizations hold
that compliance with accounting standards and is necessary to satisfy the general
requirements of the law. Consequently, common law countries, which are characterized by
an efficient equity market, are likely to exhibit greater shareholder protection and higher
level of transparency than code law countries because their public shareholders are more
willing to provide funding to companies (Ding et al. 2007,2008). Moreover, in their study,
Ding et al. (2007) and Hope (2007) confirmed the importance of legal systems. They also
reported that this fundamental difference in legal origin has an impact on the role played by
accounting information. They explained that in common law countries firms deal with
other parties such as investors at arm’s length, this generates demand for information on
firm performance and that is why, we can expect a high accounting quality in this case. On
the other hand, in code law countries, there is a greater degree of insider owners, such as
banks, who get the information directly from management – or may even participate in
firm decision making through board membership (Hope, 2003). Consequently, accounting
quality is lower than in countries with common law system. This legal system is a leading
one in countries like, United Kingdom, United States, Australia, Canada and New
Zealand.(Punda,2011).
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2.2.5.3 Economical Factors
49B

Types of economic systems
2B

Economic issues are those which relate to the production, distribution and use of wealth
and income. Gastil makes a distinction among the following four economic systems:
Capitalist, capitalist-statist, capitalist-socialist, and socialist.
1. Capitalist states are those states that ‘”Rely on the operation of the market and on
private provision for individual welfare.”
2. Capitalist-statist states are those states that have “very large government productive
enterprises, either because of an elitist development philosophy or a major
dependence on a key resource such as oil.”
3. Capitalist-socialist states are those states that “provide social services on a large
scale through government or other nonprofit institutions, with the result that private
control over property is sacrificed to egalitarian purposes.”,
4. Socialist states are those states that “Strive programmatically to place an entire
national economy under direct or indirect control” (Belkaoui, 1985,p.44).
It was conceived that a capitalist system might be more favorable to accounting
development than other economic systems due to: In a capitalist economic system the
survival of private enterprises depends not only on the production of goods and services
but adequate information to various interest groups from investors and creditors to the
capital market in general (Belkaoui, 1985, p.46).
In this section the researcher tried to define the main influential factors which represent the
variables of the study, then in following sections these factors will be linked to accounting
in order to expect the areas of influence.
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2.3 Concept of Accounting
23B

It is widely accepted that accounting is the language of business that enables
communication among financial information users and providers. One of the earliest
attempts at formally defining the nature and domain of accounting was by the American
Accounting Association (1966 as cited in Sterling, 1967) wherein accounting was defined
as ‘the process of identifying, measuring, and communicating economic information to
permit informed judgments and decisions by users of the information’ (Sterling, p.104).
The term accounting system has two dimensions: system of rules, and system of practices,
respectively. Accounting standards, the written rules of accounting, are formed by
accounting practices, the implied rules of accounting, conducted in a particular culture.
Accounting practices such as detecting misstatements, preparing financial statement
disclosures and other accounting activities may appear to be equal across the world as they
follow identical or similar standards ,but these implied rules develop differently due to the
way in which business relationships evolve across various cultures. Business relationships
differ due to the environment or culture in which the relationship is formed, including
external factors such as differing laws, economic status and political climate. Therefore, if
accounting standards come from accounting practices and accounting practices are
developed and influenced by culture through business relationships, then accounting is
highly driven by the culture in which it is practiced (Zarzeski, 1996).
Besides the influence of environment in which accounting standards are applied, there is an
influence of humans who use these standards as Chambers (1966) elaborated on the nature
of the interaction between the human and technical aspects of accounting.
"Communication, as a physical process, takes place when signs or signals are transmitted
from a source to a receiver through a channel linking the source with the receiver. In our
present context, the source is a series of economic events and effects. The signs or signals
are representations of properties of those events and effects. The channel is the whole
process of observing, describing, recording, and summarizing descriptions of a particular
aspect of those events and of transmitting the result. The receiver is an actor. But
communication may not be considered simply as a physical process. An actor has no use
for signs as such; he has use for signs having meaning or significance in the circumstances
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in which he finds himself. Communication between persons is a matter of transmitting
significances, of establishing in the mind of another what one has observed, or the product
of what one has observed, recorded, and otherwise processed. In view of the personal
element inherent in all perceptions, interpretations, and evaluations it is necessary to
demonstrate that transmission is possible". (Chambers, 1966, as cited in Young M. (2013))

2.3.1 Accounting Models
50B

Initial differences between accounting standards can be seen through the two accounting
models, the foundations by which modern accounting standards have been formed. The
first is the Anglo-American model. This model heavily influences professional standard
setting bodies, emphasizes capital markets and relies upon debt financing and equity
provided by the public. It highly regards true and fair financial statement presentation and
is the foundation of the accounting standards in the United States and United Kingdom
(Oluku & Ojeka, 2011).
The second model is the Continental European model and is found in cultures not as
influenced by the U.S. There is less of an emphasis on presenting true and fair financial
statements and more of an emphasis and reliance upon the government. The financial
information provided to users under this model is directed more towards creditors rather
than investors as most of these entities receive funding from lending agencies (Oluku &
Ojeka, 2011). The direction of international accounting is headed towards the AngloAmerican model as Western influences pervade the global market place. Table 2.3 presents
the main differences between these two classic systems which the researcher selected in
order to demonstrate that the accounting systems under discussion are different.
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Table (2.3) Summary of recognition and valuation rules, disclosure and auditing rules

Accounting rules

Continental European (CE)
accounting systems

Anglo-Saxon (AS)
accounting system

A. recognition and valuation rules
1

Number of accounting options
allowed

Limited

Relatively large, as the
professional reasoning is
encouraged
Important

2

Financial instruments used

Limited

3

Principle of prudence
implementation

4

Fair value use

Explicitly asked for, is recognized
on the basis of prudent management
judgment and it takes the shape of
provisions and impairment
recognition
Limited, Historical cost valuation
basis is prevalent

Not explicitly asked for
provisions and impairments are
recognized when they are
probable and can be reasonably
estimated
Important

5
6

Legal reserves recognition
Foreign currency translation
adjustment treatment

Not asked for
Unrealized gain and losses
should be generally recognized

7

Construction contracts
treatment

Asked for
According to the principle of
prudence, unrealized gains are not
recognized
Expenses are recognized when they
are incurred and gains are
recognized when they are invoiced

8
9

Borrowing costs treatment
The effect of correcting
fundamental errors and
changing accounting policies

Capitalization is not allowed
It is not allowed to influence the
result of previous periods as this
contradicts the opening balance
sheet intangibility principle

Capitalization is allowed
It is allowed to influence the
result of previous periods

Gains and expenses are
recognized according to the
percentage of finalized work at
the date of balance sheet

B. disclosure and auditing rules
10

Volume of information in the
financial statement

Limited.

Large.

11

Profit and loss account
structure

Operational expenses are classified
according to their nature

12

Cash flow statement and
statement of changes in owners'
equity disclosure
Result per share disclosure

Not asked for

Operational expenses are
classified according to their
function
Asked for

Not asked for

Asked for

14

Disclosure of events after the
reporting period

Not asked for

Asked for

15

Contingent elements disclosure

Not asked for

Asked for

16

Segment reporting

Not asked for

Asked for

17

Financial statements auditing

Not compulsory

Compulsory

13

Source: Deaconu and Buiga (2011)
24B
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2.4 Linking accounting to cultural dimensions:
Research on the relationship between accounting and culture has been widely debated by
academics and practitioners since 1980. The nature of culture has been explored in the
context of different aspects of accounting practices. Research has considered how the
influence of culture was manifested in the context of accounting. The focus later expanded
and produced plausible theories. Primarily these arose by reference to, and with extensive
drawing upon, the cultural studies that had been undertaken in the social science
disciplines and particularly by Hofstede (1980) (Askary et al.,2008). Economic, political
and social issues are powerful driving forces within any society. These issues therefore
need to be focused on when major decisions in industries are being made. The accounting
profession is made up of many standards and regulatory boards that govern the way in
which entities maintain their general-purpose financial reports. Following are the main
influential factors affecting accounting according to literature :

2.4.1 The accounting sub-culture
51B

Accountants possess a unique set of values that differentiates them from other groups
within society. These values have been indoctrinated in the specialized education and
professional training that accountants go through. All activities in the domain of
accounting involve human behavior. Observation, measurement, message preparation,
message interpretation and decision-making are all aspects of human behavior. The study
of accounting is, therefore, the study of some specific aspects of human behavior. Research
in accounting is not concerned with inanimate objects as is the case of physics, chemistry,
geology or astronomy, but with the behavior of groups of people. (Henderson et al., 1998,
p.27). Gray (1988) perhaps presented the first study to hypothesize the existence of an
accounting sub-culture and a set of accounting value dimensions in which cross-cultural
comparisons can be performed. In attempting to establish a relationship between culture
and accounting systems and practices, Gray drew on the work of Hofstede (1980) to
hypothesize particular accounting attitudes or values that may be held by accountants. (Fah
F. , 2008)
Gray’s (1988) framework has raised expectations about how culture may influence
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accounting practice at a national level as follows :

Figure 2.3 Culture and accounting systems in practice

1. Professionalism versus statutory control: This value reflects a preference for the
exercise of individual professional judgment and the maintenance of professional selfregulation as opposed to compliance with prescriptive legal requirements and statutory
control. This concept is very important in accounting as it is the accountant’s job to make
independent legal and ethical decisions in any practice.
Gray summarized his perception of the link between professionalism and Hofstede’s
dimensions of culture and formulated the hypothesis: the higher a country ranks in terms of
individualism and the lower it ranks in terms of uncertainty avoidance and power distance,
the more likely it is to rank highly in terms of professionalism.

2. Uniformity versus flexibility. This value reflects a preference for the enforcement
of uniform accounting practices between companies, and for the consistent use of such
practices over time, as opposed to flexibility in accordance with the perceived
circumstances of individual companies. The desire for uniformity can be seen in FASB’s
conceptual framework through the accounting principles of consistency and comparability
(FASB, 2006).
Gray articulated the relationship of uniformity with Hofstede’s cultural dimension of
uncertainty avoidance, power distance and individualism as: the higher a country ranks in
terms of uncertainty avoidance and power distance and the lower it ranks in terms of
individualism then the more likely it is to rank highly in terms of uniformity.
35

3. Conservatism versus optimism: This value reflects a preference for a cautious
approach to measurement that enables one to cope with the uncertainty of future events, as
opposed to a more optimistic, risk-taking approach. A conservative perspective in
accounting is easily seen as many principles are based on this view, such as objectivity,
verifiability, reliability and the practice of lower of cost and market (Baydoun& Willett,
1995).
Gray linked conservatism with Hofstede’s dimensions of uncertainty avoidance,
masculinity, and proposed the hypothesis: the higher a country ranks in terms of
uncertainty avoidance and the lower it ranks in terms of individualism and masculinity, the
more likely it is to rank highly in terms of conservatism.

4. Secrecy versus transparency. This value reflects a preference of confidentiality
and the disclosure of information about the business only to those who are most closely
involved with its management and financing, as opposed to a more transparent ,open, and
publicly accountable approach. Linking with Hofstedes' dimensions of uncertainty
avoidance, power distance and masculinity. Determining whether a company is more
secretive or transparent can be seen in the number of items they disclose and how many
and what is included in supplementary statements (Baydoun& Willett, 1995).
Gray proposed: “The higher a country ranks in terms of uncertainty avoidance and power
distance and the lower it ranks in terms of individualism and masculinity then the more
likely it is to rank highly in terms of secrecy”.
Gray’s framework led to an increase in studies relating culture and accounting in later
studies and also another increase in studies applying Hofstede’s value dimensions to
various aspects of accounting.

The first two dimensions relate to authority and enforcement of accounting practice at a
country level and the second two relate to the measurement and disclosure of accounting
information at a country level. As Perera (1989) added a further element to Gray’s (1988)
theory by injecting the notion of accounting values into the analysis of the development of
accounting practices. Perera’s accounting practice values were: the authority for
accounting systems, the capacity to enforce accounting uniformity, the foundation for the
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measurement basis, and the boundaries for the parameters – transparency and secrecy –
used in respect of information disclosure. There definition are as follow:

•

Accounting authority

When accounting values orient towards statutory controls, then accounting practices are
governed more by legal requirements and less by the application of professional judgment.
Professionalism requires that only professional accounting bodies as a unique group, make
judgments regarding accounting practices, such as, asset and income measurements or
valuations as well as various aspects of disclosures of financial information for different
users. (Askary et. Al. 2008)
•

Accounting disclosure:

Disclosure in the Gray model is concerned with transparency or secrecy. Transparency is a
preference to unveil comprehensive financial information about different elements of
financial statements and for a broad range of users. Secrecy represented a preference for a
cautious approach to disclosing financial information as a result of the influence of
management on both the quantity and quality of information presented to outside users.
(Askary et. Al. 2008)
•

Accounting enforcement:

Uniformity, as defined by Gray (1988, p.8), is a preference for applying similar accounting
practices within companies and for the consistent use of such practices over time periods.
This definition covers two dimensions. First, there is inter-temporal consistency in
accounting practices and second the uniformity in application of accounting policies and
procedures.
•

Accounting measurement

Conservatism is a well-known concept within the accounting discipline. It is defined as a
preference for a cautious approach of measurement to cope with the uncertainty of future
events as opposed to a more optimistic, laissez-faire, risk-taking approach. (Gray, 1988,
p.8). The opposite situation to conservatism is optimism, based on Gray. In the end
conservative accounting methods are applied to revenue and asset recognitions so as to
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recognize losses sooner than gains. This is the most fundamental accounting concept and
probably the most pervasive principle in accounting valuation (Watts, 2003).

Figure 2-4: Culture, societal values and the accounting subculture
(Source: S.J. Gray,1988,P7.)

2.4.2 The proposed link of accounting to other environmental factors
52B

2.4.2.1 Accounting & political factors
5B

Political factors exert influence on accounting, most probably via its system and the
level of freedom.
Political system can determine one country’s economic system and hence determine
its accounting patterns:
It seems almost self-evident that an accounting system that is useful to a centrally
controlled economy must be different from an accounting system that is optimal for a
market-oriented economy. In the former, the state owns all fixed assets and land, there is
very little or no private ownership of business equities; “outside” auditors are simply
government employees from another government agencies and the concept of periodic
profit determination makes no sense Zhang, G.(2005.p34).
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Political systems also export and import accounting standards and practices: For
instance, British accounting ,as it existed at the turn of the twentieth century, was exported
in large measures to other Commonwealth countries. Dutch did the same with the
Philippines and the French with their possessions in Africa and Asia. The Germans used
political sympathy to influence accounting in Japan and Sweden, among others. Modernday political systems have even larger impacts upon accounting (Choi and Muller, 1984).
The political freedom of a country is important to the development of accounting,
reporting, and particularly disclosure.
When people cannot choose the members of a government or influence government
policies they are less likely to create an accounting profession based on the principle of full
and fair disclosure. The degree of political freedom in a given country is generally assumed
to depend on the degree of political rights, civil liberties, and the type of political system.
The higher the political rights and civil liberties, the more freedom and flexibility the
accounting profession will have and accounting disclosure will be more honest and
balanced.
In socialist countries it is often politically expedient and desirable to require certain
information from companies about their social impact. For similar reasons, developing
countries may require reports from companies on the balance of payments impact of their
planned operations as a precondition to approving the investment (Arpen and Radebaugh,
1985,p.19).
According to Verma (2000) accounting is seen to be influenced by politics in these three
senses :
1. The involvement of government (either implicitly or explicitly) in accounting
regulations and accounting change
2. The involvement of parliament in accounting regulation and accounting change
3. Accounting regulation and accounting change being the outcome of the inter
actions of all parties interested in and affected by accounting
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2.4.2.2 Accounting and legal systems
56B

The legal systems of most countries can be classified as systems marked by strict
adherence to laws and regulations (Code law; legalistic; Roman law) , or as systems in
which common law (Common law; non – legalistic) is predominant (Saudagaran, 2004,p.7;
Buchanan, 2003,p.p 66,67). Hence, in the relevant literature, this factor is very frequently
mentioned in the context of classifying accounting systems either under the Anglo-Saxon
cluster or the Continental Europe cluster. Characteristic of an accounting system
influenced by Roman law is the legalization of accounting standards and procedures.
Prescribed by a country’s regulations, accounting rules are very detailed and
comprehensive, leaving a very small margin for interpretation and possibility none for
improvement. In this type of conservative and inadaptable system, the role of the
accountant consists of literally applying prescribed and detailed legal requirements, with
special emphasis on protecting creditors.
Conversely, in accounting systems, which are under the influence of Anglo – Saxon rules
and in which rules are set based on individual decisions, accounting rules and policies are
set by professional organizations operating in the private sector. This type of legal system
is more adaptable, more innovative and more topical than the system described above and
it focuses on transparent and timely financial reports, as well as on information needs and
protection of investors.
The findings of prior accounting studies also provide evidence to support the impact of
Legal Systems on the development of accounting systems and accounting rules in different
countries. Meek and Saudagaran (1990), who examined the legislative process for
formulation of accounting rules, argued that different LS's have different types of impact
on formulation of accounting rules. They argued that in code law countries, the laws
stipulate minimum requirements and accounting rules tend to be highly prescriptive and
procedural. In common law countries on the other hand, the law establishes limits and
professional judgment is required within these limits.
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2.4.3.1 Accounting and Economics
57B

Economic environment is important to the development of accounting. The economic
environment includes two macro and micro aspects. The macro aspect factors such as the
type of economic system chosen, the level and growth rate of income, the extent of
government intervention and expenditures, inflation and the level of exports, etc. may
imply a specific impact on accounting development, which needs to be investigated. The
micro aspect factors, such as the source of funds, differences in size and complexity of
business firms, level of sophistication of business management and the financial
community etc. may also influence accounting development. Other factors such as ties to
other countries and degree of international activity may also exert influence on accounting
development.
(Zhang, G,2005.p37) The Main expected influential variables in economical factor are :
•

Types of economic systems regarding accounting practices

There are several types of economical systems as previously mentioned ranking from
being controlled totally by market forces to completely centralized systems. The types of
economic systems may decide one country’s basic orientation of the economic system and
the degree of government involvement in the economic sector and decide the objectives of
accounting.
In Communist countries for example, the state owns all production facilities, makes most
of the economic and business decisions, and controls virtually all operations through a
central planning and control system. These countries have a highly standardized and
uniform accounting system to facilitate the government’s planning and control function,
and there are few users of accounting information other than the government. In marketcapitalist economies, there is predominantly private ownership. With greater individual
freedom in economic activity and decision-making, a correspondingly greater diversity in
accounting practices is permitted and practiced. There are also more users of accounting
information—stockholders, auditors, suppliers, and creditors in addition to the government
(Arpen and Radebaugh, 1985, p21).
Concerning the relationship between government expenditures and accounting, Belkaoui
(1985:67) declared that “the higher the level of government expenditures, the higher the
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level of government intervention and the better the adequacy of reporting and disclosure.”
Because government is assumed to be accountable to the people, its intervention may be
followed by an effort to report and disclose and may be favorable to the development of an
accounting program and a reporting and disclosure tradition. This is applicable to any
economic systems.

•

Achieved level of economic development

Achieved level of economic development may decide the complexity of accounting
practice and theory. The higher the level and growth of income, the higher the political and
economic freedom and the better the adequacy of reporting and disclosure. This may apply
to any economic system, since economic growth in some socialist countries was often
followed by an effort to liberalize the regimes”(Belkaoui, 1985,p.47). Considering that
most of the world can be divided into the rich and the poor, countries can also be divided
as “accounting 'have' and 'have not' nations” (Mueller, Meek, 1987,p.15).
“At extremely low levels of economic development, there is few economic activities
and correspondingly little financial, tax, or managerial accounting. As the level of
economic activity and size of companies increase, there is a corresponding increase in
accounting activity. This continues through each successive stage of development, albeit
with certain lags.” Although as Lowe (1967,p. 360) noted that “from a historical point of
view, accounting development is an evolutionary process dependent upon and inter woven
with economic development,”. Elliot stressed the “social function of accounting, to
measure and communicate economic data, cannot be considered simply as the effect of
economic development, but should be considered a valuable tool for promoting the
development process.”(Elliot et al 1968,p.764). The developing level of exports and
imports may have a positive effect on the development of accounting. “The higher the
develop level of exports and imports, the higher the need for better reporting and
disclosure. Free-trade policies in general and export promotion in particular increase
cooperation with other countries, the flows of human and physical capital and the need for
comparable reporting and adequate disclosure” (Belkaoui 1985,p.47).
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•

The size and complexity of economic entity

The size and complexity of economic entity is an argument that has multiple implications
in explaining accounting system differences. Namely, the accounting needs of large
businesses that have several different production lines and a wide variety of products differ
from the accounting needs of smaller enterprises producing, for example, only a single
product. The information needs of multinational companies are different from the needs of
large businesses that manufacture only for the home market, and they differ even more
from the needs of small enterprises (Černe, 2007,p.19).
•

The degree of economical stability

Economical settlement is represented by the availability of human, financial and
economical resources in addition to stability in degree of prices level and type of
competition which are reflected in the degree of economical system growth. The higher
the degree of stability the better the adequacy of reporting and disclosure.
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2.5 Accounting in Palestine
25B

More than sixty years of conflict in Palestine has had a significant negative impact on the
economy. However, since its inception, the Palestinian Authority has attempted to provide
a supportive environment for the private sector. Despite the difficult political and security
environment the Palestinians have managed to establish a financial sector offering most of
the expected services, i.e., banking, securities, and insurance. In fact, the Palestinian Stock
Exchange is vibrant, with 50 listed companies. And the Palestine Monetary Authority
(banking supervisor) is well regarded internationally for its high level of technical
competence. Additionally, large investment companies operate in the country with
ambitious programs. Despite this there is a need to update some aspects of the Accounting
laws, and an effort is underway to issue a new unified law for Palestine.
2.5.1 Summary of Palestinian accounting history

Accounting like any social science have gone through many stages to reach its current
point and in Palestine it has special process in which many outside parties interfered also
many political difficulties aroused .
Accounting emerged in Palestine with the early twentieth century especially after the
English Mandate on Palestine, (Helles ﺣﻠﺲ, 1997, p.168).The first law regulating the
profession of accounting and auditing in Palestine was the law issued by the British High
Commissioner in Palestine in the year of 1929 which holds number 1929\18.
As a result of 1948 war, the Gaza Strip was put under Egyptian administration and the
West Bank under Jordanian administration . In the Gaza Strip the law of 1929 remained
valid throughout the period of Egyptian Administration rule ( until June 1967 ), while the
same law remained in effect in the West bank until 1961 only , where it was replaced by
the Jordanian law No. 1961\10. The laws’ requirements are broadly similar.
After the 1967 Israeli occupation, authorities have kept the laws that regulate the
accounting profession unchanged in both the Gaza Strip and the West Bank, but under the
authority of the ruling of the Israeli military occupation of the two regions. After the
Palestinian Authority received government in 1994, it amended many accounting laws and
imposed some others in the Palestinian Territories. In the year of 1997 the Jordanian Law
No. 1961\10 was imposed in the Palestinian Territories.
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In 2005 the Palestinian Legislative Council approved a new law regulating the profession
of auditing in Palestine and holds Law No.2004\9 and the text of the law states on the
establishment of a government body known as the Council of regulating the profession of
auditing in Palestine which supervise the organization of the audit profession. However,
because of the political discord between authorities in the West Bank and Gaza, the
Legislative Council has not convened since June 2006 and no laws have been able to be
passed during this period. As a result changes to the legal framework have been enacted
through presidential decrees that are not considered to be final from a constitutional point
of view and may be subject to revision once the political situation is resolved. Specifically,
recent amendments made to the Jordanian Companies Law may be contested in the future.
This situation represents a major source of legal uncertainty for Palestinian companies and
accounting practitioners.. (ROSCO report 2010,Al Behisi  ﺍﻟﺒﺤﻴﺼﻲ2005 )
In general, the statutory framework as it applies to accounting, audit, and financial
reporting is broadly up to par with international good practice for regulated companies
(listed companies, banks, insurance companies, and micro-finance institutions). Regulated
entities are required to follow IFRS, undergo annual independent audits, and make their
financial statements available to the public. In addition, separate codes of corporate
governance have been adopted for banks, and for listed and insurance companies. The rules
for non-regulated entities tend to be somewhat fragmented and overly stringent with
specifications lacking in the statutes regarding which accounting standards are to be
applied. In practice, non-regulated companies tend to utilize IFRS, which is considered the
standard of reference, or US GAAP, as there are no local accounting standards. All
companies with limited liability, including small and medium sized entities (SMEs) are
required to undergo an annual independent audit, which represents an unusually heavy
regulatory burden on such companies. All companies with limited liability are also
required to file their financial statements with the Companies Registrar. These financial
statements are made available to the public.

2.5.2 Accounting Standards as designed and as practiced
26B

Many studies seek to evaluate the accounting statute in Palestine in general ,but because of
the political situation and the segregation between Gaza and the West Bank most of those
studies are handling either Gaza or West bank separately. One of the inclusive studies
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prepared by the World Bank, on the basis of a diagnostic review carried out between April
and November 2009,including evaluating the country’s accounting and auditing practices
based on internationally recognized benchmarks and, based on that review. The review was
conducted through a participatory process involving many West Bank & Gaza institutions,
following some representative items describing Palestinian statutory :
•

IFRS are currently required in all regulated business sectors in the West Bank &
Gaza, for legal entity and consolidated financial reporting. International Accounting
Standards (IAS, the predecessor of IFRS) are mandated by PSE (Palestinian stock
exchange) regulations (2008), the banking law (2002), and PCMA Regulations
pertaining to insurance (2007). For Micro finance institutions, the draft regulations
prepared by the Palestinian Monetary Authority (PMA), which may be issued in
2010, include a requirement for IAS-based financial statements. The adoption of
IAS (interpreted as meaning IFRS) was done directly, that is, without an
endorsement process. WB&G have no standard-setting body for accounting, and it
is not clear how such an endorsement process could add value for WB&G and how
it could be sustained given the costs associated with it and the current
circumstances. The text of the standards used by the local practitioners is an
Arabic-language translation published by a regional audit firm and printed abroad;
the most up-to-date translation is based on the 2007 IFRS Handbook.

•

For the banking sector, even though IAS (understood as meaning IFRS) is
mandated by the banking law, in effect some differences with the international
standard do exist. Areas of difference relate to (a) the valuation of loan-loss
provisions, (b) loan-loss provision disclosures and (c) the accounting treatment of
certain types of transactions pertaining to Islamic banking. The PMA-required
method to measure provisions follows a matrix-based approach, that is, it requires
fixed percentages of provisions to be applied to the principal amount based on the
number of past-due days for different categories of loans. This differs from the
approach of IAS 39, Financial Instruments: recognition and measurement, which
requires assessing loss provisions on the basis of estimated future cash flows by
loan or group of loans. Significantly different amounts are likely to result from
applying these different approaches.
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•

No legally-mandated accounting standards exist for non-regulated sectors. The
Companies Law is silent on the question of which accounting standards should be
applied and on the source of accounting standards. No local standards have been
developed and standards from other countries are not used.

•

Fair value accounting, a distinctive feature of IFRS, poses a significant challenge in
the WB&G. In particular, the quality of appraisals for property, plant and
equipment is at times not considered sufficiently reliable, in which case the
reporting entity needs to revert to historical cost basis.

•

Overall financial statement users and corporate financial stakeholders are of the
view that large, Public Interest Enterprise (PIE)- type entities show a high degree of
compliance with IFRS and that their reports, particularly those audited by Big-4
firms, are reliable. However, the view is mixed regarding reporting by mid-sized
and smaller entities, which is held to be insufficient and not to be relied upon. In
order to gauge the perceptions regarding the quality of the financial reporting in
WB&G.

•

As in most countries, perceptions surrounding the accounting and audit profession
are also mixed. Users and stakeholders tend to distinguish three groups within the
profession: Big-4 affiliates, who audit almost all PIEs and large entities and are
seen as placing more emphasis on quality reviews; local firms with international
affiliation, who are seen as providing audits of better quality that adhere to
international standards; and Purely local audit firms whose practice is much less
aligned with international standards.

•

Regarding monitoring and enforcement, initial efforts to enforce financial reporting
requirements in WB&G have begun and are relatively developed in the banking
sector. In the case of listed companies, both PCMA (Issuance and Disclosure
Department) and PSE perform checks of financial statements and conduct
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enforcement actions. In other sectors, enforcement efforts are still at an incipient
stage of development and much remains to be done.

•

Regarding the Audit Profession The market for the provision of audit services is
fairly broad. Demand for services is enhanced by the requirement that all
companies publish audited financial statements annually. Intense donor activity in
Palestine also generates a significant demand for audit and assurance services. The
profession is diverse and is generally dominated by three global firms and one
regional firm. These four are responsible for auditing almost all banks, insurance
companies, listed companies and other large corporate entities. Accordingly, there
is limited competition at this time for the audits of public-interest entities. The
activities of mid-sized firms and sole practitioners are mainly geared towards tax
return preparation and certification. Independent audit activities in Palestine are
regulated by Audit Law no. 9 of 2004.

•

The audit profession is organized under two bodies recognized by the Audit Law:
Board of Professional Auditing (BPA), responsible for licensing audit practitioners.

BPA was activated through a Presidential decree in 2008. The BPA’s revenue resource still
represents a major challenge as no provision was made in the law.
Palestinian Association of Certified Public Accountants (PACPA), which currently
has 240 members, including 190 in the West Bank. PACPA is currently seeking IFAC
membership, but adherence to IFAC’s Statements of Membership Obligations (SMOs),
especially with regard to quality assurance, continuing professional education, and
discipline, represents a significant challenge for a still nascent profession. Regarding the
audit profession, PACPA’s enforcement actions are very limited at the moment. PACPA
has recently set up an Office Committee to carry out visits of registered members. This is a
first step in the right direction.

In the case of listed companies, both PCMA (Issuance and Disclosure Department) and
PSE perform checks of financial statements and conduct enforcement actions. In other
sectors enforcement efforts are still at an incipient stage of development and much remains
to be done.
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2.6 Conclusion:
This chapter attempted to build the framework of the study through defining the variables
(Culture concept in general and other environmental factors in addition to accounting
concepts) and investigate the expected type of relationship between accounting and cultural
dimensions in addition to some other environmental factors from the literature. Then
understand the special case of Palestinian accounting profession by going through the
history of accounting in Palestine and studying the status in current circumstances.
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Chapter 3
3B

Methodology
4B
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3.1 Introduction
27B

This chapter describes the methodology that was used in this research. The adopted
methodology to accomplish this study uses the following techniques: the information about
the research design, research population, questionnaire design, statistical data analysis,
content validity and reliability using pilot study.

3.2 Study Design
28B

The current study used the descriptive analytical approach, Which is suitable for this type
of research.
The first phase of the research thesis proposal included identifying and defining the
problems and establishment objectives of the study and development research plan.
The second phase of the research included a summary of the comprehensive literature
reviews. Literatures on cultural dimensions and accounting practices with their related
theories were reviewed.
The third phase of the research included a field survey which was conducted with "The
role of cultural dimensions in shaping the generally accepted accounting practices in
Palestine".
The fourth phase of the research focused on the modification of the questionnaire design,
through having the questionnaire evaluated by a number of academic staff in the related
fields of accounting and statistics (Appendix -No.1-) then distributing the questionnaire to
pilot study. The purpose of the pilot study was to test and prove that the questionnaire
questions are clear enough to be answered in a way that helps to achieve the target of the
study. The questionnaire was modified based on the results of the pilot study.
The fifth phase of the research focused on distributing the questionnaire. This
questionnaire was used to collect the required data in order to achieve the research
objective.
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The sixth phase of the research was data analysis and discussion. Statistical Package for
the Social Sciences, (SPSS) was used to perform the required analysis. The final phase
includes the conclusions and recommendations.

Develop
Research Plan

Topic Selection

Identify the
Problem

Thesis Proposal

Define the Problem
Establish Objective

Literature Review
Field Surveying

Questionnaires Design
Pilot
Questionnaires
Questionnaires
Questionnaires
Validity

Results and
Data Analysis

Questionnaires
Conclusion &
Recommendation

Figure (1) illustrates the methodology flow chart.

Figure (3.1) shows the methodology flowchart, which leads to achieve the research
objective.

3.3 Data Collection :
29B

In order to collect the needed data for this research , the researcher used the secondary
resources in collecting data such as books, journals, statistics and web pages, in addition to
preliminary resources that are not available in secondary resources through distributing
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questionnaires on study population in order to get their attitude towards Palestinian cultural
dimensions and the generally accepted accounting practices in Palestine".
Research methodology depended on the analysis of data on the use of descriptive and
analytical analysis, which depends on the poll and use the main program (SPSS).

3.4 Population
30B

The population of this study is senior financial staff in all listed companies in Palestinian
Security Exchange, which total fifty companies according to the formal website of PEX
(www.p-s-e.com). The listed companies divided to five sectors which are investment,
banking , insurance ,service and industrial.
As most of the listed companies are located in the West Bank and there is many obstacles
reaching there, the questionnaires were sent by email and fax to financial departments of
these companies while tracing them by phone calls. However, there was very weak
response which obligated the researcher to hire someone to supervise data collection
closely in the West Bank that increased the cost and effort for collecting the data properly.
Despite all the efforts only forty companies responded in a percentage of 80%. Thirty two
companies from West Bank in percent of 80% and eight companies from Gaza in percent
of 20%. Only eighty seven questionnaires were received out of one hundred distributed,
none of them were eliminated because they met the required conditions.

The following tables illustrated the properties of the population:

Firstly: The firm information:
1. Classification of the firm sector:
All sectors were represented in this study in a way considered very close to the real
distribution according to PEX. But the Industrial and Insurance sectors are represented
mostly in a percent of 49.30% because they were willing to fill the questionnaire more than
the other sectors especially banking who responded weakly after several tries. The
investment sector is the smallest in a percent of 12.6% which is so close to real. The
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frequency represents the number of questionnaires received from each sector not the
number of companies responded in each sector. Table (3.1)

Table (3.1) Classification of the firm sector
Classification of the firm sector Frequency

Percentages

Investment

11

12.6

Banking

16

18.4

Insurance

18

20.6

Service

17

19.5

Industrial

25

28.7

Total

87

100.0

2. Capital Equity :
You can notice that companies with capital equity less than 15 million in percent of 51.7%
which very close to the percentage in the market that equal 52.08%, also companies with
capital equity from 16 to 30 million in percent of 20.7% which were very close to the
percentage in the market that equal 20.83% and this shows the fairness of the distribution
of the study population and the strength of their representation of the community. Table
No.(3.2)

Table (3.2) Capital Equity
Capital Equity

Frequency

Percentages

Less than 5 million

10

11.5

From 5 to 15 million

35

40.2

From 16 to 30 million

18

20.7

From 31 to 50 million

8

9.2

More than 51 million

16

18.4

Total

87

100.0
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3. Duration of being an active firm:
These results confirm the movement of economical development in Palestine in the recent
20 year with percent of 60.9% of active companies in mentioned period regarding the total.
As 17.2% from the firms was active for less than 10 years and 43.7 % was active for 10 to
20 year . And 39.1% from the firm was active for more than 20 year. Table (3.3)
Table (3.3) Duration of being an active firm
Duration of being an active firm Frequency

Percentages

Less than 10 years

15

17.2

From 10 to 20 year

38

43.7

From 21 to 30 year

21

24.2

More than 31 year

13

14.9

Total

87

100.0

4. Duration of being a listed company in PEX:
Regarding the results, around 72.4% of population were listed in PEX for more than 7
years and this result is very close to the total population percentage of 70% as there was 35
company listed in PEX in 2007 and this shows the fairness of the distribution of the study
population and the strength of their representation of the community.. Table (3.4)
Table (3.4) Duration of being a listed company in PEX
Duration of being a listed company in PEX Frequency

Percentages

less than 3 years

6

6.9

from 3 to 6 years

18

20.7

from 7 to 9 years

21

24.1

more than 10 years

42

48.3

Total

87

100.0
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Secondly: Personal information
1. Gender of the population:
Table No.(5) shows that 73.6% from the sample are " male " , and 26.4% from the sample
are " female " . This states that the majority of people working in financial fields are men
and this reflect the reality.
Table (3.5) Gender
Gender Frequency

Percentages

Male

64

73.6

Female

23

26.4

Total

87

100.0

2. Current vacancy:

17.2% from the sample of current vacancy are "Accountants", and 58.6%from the sample
of current vacancy are "Financial Managers" , and 8.0% from the sample of current
vacancy are "Internal auditor" , and 16.1% from the sample of current vacancy are "Other
financial positions" .This ensures that the respondents are well-acquainted with the firm
related information about the accounting practices used. Table (3.6)

Table (3.6) Current vacancy
Current vacancy

Frequency

Percentages

Financial manager

15

17.2

Accountant

51

58.6

Internal auditor

7

8.0

Other financial position

14

16.1

Total

87

100.0
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3.5 Questionnaire content
31B

The questionnaire was provided with a covering letter explaining the purpose of the study,
the way of responding, the aim of the research and the privacy of the information in order
to encourage a high response. The questionnaire included multiple choice questions: which
was used widely in the questionnaire, the variety in these questions aims first to meet the
research objectives, and to collect all the necessary data that can support the discussion,
results and recommendations in the research.
The sections in the questionnaire will verify the objectives in this research related to the
role of cultural dimension in shaping the generally accepted accounting practices in
Palestine as the following:

Section one: Cultural Dimensions: divided into sub-sections as follows:
a) Individualism(IDV) vs. collectivism consist of 6 questions
b) Power distance degree consist of 5 questions
c) Uncertainty avoidance degree consist of 5 questions
d) Masculinity(MAS) vs. femininity consist of 6 questions
e) Long-term orientation (LTO)consist of 3 questions
f) Indulgence versus restraint consist of 5 questions
This section was developed regarding literature in this field especially Hofstede studies in
which there is a full description of each dimension. Also a questionnaire designed by
(Reid, 2011) was a helpful reference in designing this section.

Section two: Accounting Practices: divided into sub-sections as follows:a) professionalism (Authority) consist of 7 questions
b) Disclosure consist of 7 questions
c) Uniformity (Enforcement) consist of 7 questions
d) Conservatism consist of 7 questions
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This section was developed regarding literature of this field especially (Gray, 1988). The
most helpful reference for designing this section was (Askary, 2001) who developed a
check list to determine accounting practices of Turkey.

And all questions follows Lekart scale as the following:
Level

Very high

High

Moderate

Low

Very low

5

4

3

2

1

Scale

Pilot Study
32B

A pilot study for the questionnaire was conducted before collecting the results of the
population. It provides a trial run for the questionnaire, which involves testing the
wordings of question, identifying ambiguous questions, testing the techniques that used to
collect data, and measuring the effectiveness of standard invitation to respondents. Total
number of pilot study is 25 questionnaire which were considered in the study then.

3.6 Validity and reliability of the questionnaire
3B

3.6.1Validity of the Research
53B

We can define the validity of an instrument as a determination of the extent to which the
instrument actually reflects the abstract construct being examined. "Validity refers to the
degree to which an instrument measures what it is supposed to be measuring". High
validity is the absence of systematic errors in the measuring instrument. When an
instrument is valid; it truly reflects the concept it is supposed to measure. Achieving good
validity required care in the research design and sample selection. The amended
questionnaire was by the supervisor and seven expertises in the tendering and bidding
environments to evaluate the procedure of questions and the methods of analyzing the
results. The expertise agreed that the questionnaire was valid and suitable enough to
measure the purpose that the questionnaire was designed for. (Appendix -No.1-)
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3.6.1.1 Content Validity of the Questionnaire
58B

Content validity test was conducted by consulting two groups of experts. The first was
requested to evaluate and identify whether the questions agreed with the scope of the items
and the extent to which these items reflected the concept of the research problem. The
other was requested to evaluate that the instrument used is valid statistically and that the
questionnaire was designed well enough to provide relations and tests between variables.
The two groups of experts agreed that the questionnaire was valid and suitable enough to
measure the concept of interest with some amendments.
3.6.1.2 Statistical Validity of the Questionnaire
59B

To insure the validity of the questionnaire, two statistical tests should be applied. The first
test is Criterion-related validity test (Pearson test) which measures the correlation
coefficient between each item in the field and the whole field. The second test is structure
validity test (Pearson test) that used to test the validity of the questionnaire structure by
testing the validity of each field and the validity of the whole questionnaire. It measures the
correlation coefficient between one field and all the fields of the questionnaire that have
the same level of similar scale.

3.6.1.3 Criterion Related Validity:
60B

1)

Internal consistency:

Internal consistency of the questionnaire is measured by a scouting sample, which
consisted of twenty five questionnaires, through measuring the correlation coefficients
between each paragraph in one field and the whole field. Table No. (3.6 -3.7) below shows
the correlation coefficient and p-value for each field items. As shown in the table the pvalues are less than 0.05,so the correlation coefficients of this field are significant at α =
0.05, so it can be said that the paragraphs of this field are consistent and valid to measure
what it was set for.
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Table (3.7)
The correlation coefficient between each paragraph in the field and the whole field
(Cultural dimensions)
Pearson
coefficient

No. Question

pvalue

Individualism (IDV) vs. collectivism
1

Individuals should sacrifice self-interest for the group

0.420

0.037

2

Individuals should stick with the group even through
difficulties

0.695

0.000

3

Group success is more important than individual success

0.623

0.001

4

Individuals should only pursue their goals after considering
the welfare of the group

0.695

0.000

5

I prefer working with the team rather than working alone

0.572

0.003

6

Group welfare is more important than individual rewards

0.614

0.001

Power distance degree
1

People in higher positions should make most decisions
without consulting people in lower positions

0.718

0.000

2

People in higher positions should not ask the opinions of
people in lower positions too frequently

0.816

0.000

3

People in higher positions should avoid social interaction
with people in lower positions

0.588

0.002

4

People in higher positions should not delegate important
tasks to people in lower positions

0.562

0.003

5

People in higher positions should give people in lower
positions flexibility and independence in making decisions

0.623

0.001

Uncertainty avoidance degree
1

It is important to have instructions spelled out in detail so
that I always know what I’m expected to do

0.500

0.002

2

It is important to closely follow instructions and procedures

0.452

0.011

3

Our society culture resist change and refuse new ideas &

0.485

0.023

60

suggestions
4

I prefer the obvious current situation than the unknown
mysterious change

0.598

0.028

5

I think individuals in my community don’t care about
planning, time management and working for future

0.380

0.061

Masculinity(MAS) vs. femininity
1

It is more important for men to have a professional career
than it is for women

0.421

0.001

2

Men usually solve problems with logical analysis; women
usually solve problems with intuition

0.473

0.036

3

Solving difficult problems usually requires an active,
forcible approach, which is typical of men

0.509

0.017

4

Our society gives women a greater role in the areas of
command and control

0.573

0.002

5

There are some jobs that a man can always do better than
women

0.439

0.003

6

Our society considers that the man is the most effective
element in community building and development

0.523

0.028

Long vs. short-term orientation
1

I see that the priority is to manage the planning for the
future and put long-term plans

0.438

0.023

2

I imagine that the traditions and customs of community
adjustable and changeable according to the future
circumstances

0.418

0.029

3

I think that the definition of the right concepts and
misconceptions depends on the circumstances and time
variables

0.500

0.038

Indulgence versus restraint
1

I feel that I am a happy person and loved in my community

0.689

0.013

2

I can control the reins of my life and to accurately
determine its course without external pressure or
interference

0.462

0.000

3

Exercise of freedom of expression and consider it a
fundamental right and important and cannot be abandoned

0.574

0.020

4

Sports is an integral part of my daily routine

0.601

0.014
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5

I love to take appositive thoughts and emotions in my
dealings with people

0.453

0.007

Table (3.8)
The correlation coefficient between each paragraph in the field and the whole field
(Accounting practices)
Pearson
coefficient

No. Question

pvalue

Professionalism Authority
1

To an extent accounting and auditing professional bodies
exist in Palestine

0.514

0.009

2

To an extent there are bodies involved in developing
national accounting and auditing standards in Palestine

0.670

0.000

3

International Accounting Standards consider the best
alternative for the annual reports preparation in absence of
national accounting standards

0.427

0.033

4

the annual reports should be accompanied with the auditors’
report

0.625

0.001

5

The professional accounting and auditing bodies
independent of the governments

0.741

0.000

6

Accounting and auditing regulations are not controlled or
developed predominantly by the governments

0.493

0.012

7

The base of financial statements preparations is not
restricted to the statutory business laws

0.418

0.038

Disclosure
1

Willingness of firms listed in PEX to be open (transparent)
to the public

0.755

0.000

2

Firms listed in PEX disclose fundamental accounting
assumption and general information about entity

0.646

0.000

3

Firms listed in PEX make disclosures required by IFRS for
financial statements

0.814

0.000

4

Firms listed in PEX adhere to the level of disclosure
required by Palestinian Stock Exchange and the Palestinian

0.670

0.000
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Monetary Authority (Banks)
5

Firms listed in PEX disclose future events that may affect
the financial statements

0.715

0.000

6

Firms listed in PEX make disclosures required by IFRS for
accounting policies

0.759

0.000

7

Firms listed in PEX make disclosures of notes to financial
statements as required by IFRS

0.571

0.003

(Uniformity)Enforcement
1

No accounting changes within the firms for the last five
years

0.581

0.002

2

Uniformity in using accounting policies across firms

0.566

0.003

3

Not using other statements instead of Cash Flow Statement
(CFS)

0.531

0.006

4

Uniformity in presenting statement of financial position
items

0.645

0.000

5

Uniformity in presenting income statement-profit & loss
statement- items

0.492

0.012

6

Uniformity in presenting CFS items

0.526

0.007

7

Uniformity in presenting notes to the financial information

0.447

0.025

Conservatism
1

Historical cost accounting used for the measurement of
assets

0.703

0.000

2

Lower of cost or net realizable for inventories

0.596

0.002

3

Measuring fixed assets or property, plant and equipment at
cost less depreciation

0.542

0.005

4

Receivables, net of provision for doubtful debts

0.609

0.001

5

Conditional or contingent loss disclosed in income
statements

0.447

0.025

6

Intangible at net of amortization

0.561

0.004

7

Other reserves in addition to general and statutory reserves

0.742

0.000
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3.6.1.4 Structure Validity of the Questionnaire
61B

Structure validity is the second statistical test that is used to test the validity of the
questionnaire structure by testing the validity of each field and the validity of the whole
questionnaire. It measures the correlation coefficient between one filed and all the fields of
the questionnaire that have the same level of liker scale.
As shown in table No.(3.9) the significance values are less than 0.05, so the correlation
coefficients of all the fields are significant at α = 0.05, so it can be said that the fields are
valid to be measured what it was set for to achieve the main aim of the study.

Table No. (3.9)
Structure Validity of the Questionnaire

Accounting
practices

Cultural Dimensions

Section Number

Pearson correlation
p-value
coefficient

Sub- section

1

Individualism vs. collectivism

0.623

0.001

2

Power distance degree

0.441

0.027

3

Uncertainty avoidance degree

0.470

0.018

4

Masculinity vs. femininity

0.706

0.000

5

Indulgence versus restraint

0.460

0.021

6

Long vs. short-term orientation

0.483

0.015

1

Professionalism (Authority)

0.626

0.001

2

Disclosure

0.563

0.003

3

Uniformity (Enforcement)

0.626

0.001

4

Conservatism

0.487

0.014

3.6.2 Reliability of the Research
54B

Reliability of an instrument is the degree of consistency with which it measures the
attribute it is supposed to be measuring. The test is repeated to the same sample of people
on two occasions and then compares the scores obtained by computing a reliability
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coefficient. For the most purpose reliability coefficient above 0.7 are considered
satisfactory Sekaran (2005). A period of two weeks to a month is recommended between
two tests. Due to complicated conditions that the consumer is facing at the time being, it
was too difficult to ask them to respond to our questionnaire twice within a short period.
The statistician's explained that, overcoming the distribution of the questionnaire twice to
measure the reliability can be achieved by using Kronpakh Alpha coefficient and Half Split
Method through the SPSS software.

3.6.2.1 Half Split Method
62B

This method depends on finding Pearson correlation coefficient between the means of odd
rank questions and even rank questions of each field of the questionnaire. Correcting the
Pearson correlation coefficients can be done by using Spearman Brown correlation
coefficient of correction. The corrected correlation coefficient (consistency coefficient) is
computed according to the following equation:
Consistency coefficient = 2r/(r+1), where r is the Pearson correlation coefficient. The
normal range of corrected correlation coefficient 2r/(r+1) is between 0.0 and + 1.0 as
shown in Table No.(3.10), and the general reliability for all items equal 0.8503, and the
significant (α ) is less than 0.05 so all the corrected correlation coefficients are significance
at α = 0.05. It can be said that according to the Half Split method, the dispute causes group
are reliable.

Cultural Dimensions

Table (3.10) Split-Half Coefficient method
personSection Number Sub- section
correlation

Spearman-Brown
Coefficient

1

Individualism vs. collectivism

0.7115

0.8314

2

Power distance degree

0.7354

0.8475

3

Uncertainty avoidance degree

0.7056

0.8274

4

Masculinity vs. femininity

0.7396

0.8503

5

Indulgence versus restraint

0.8015

0.8898

6

Long vs. short-term orientation

0.8275

0.9056
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Accounting
practices

1

Professionalism (Authority)

0.7536

0.8595

2

Disclosure

0.7721

0.8714

3

Uniformity(Enforcement)

0.7669

0.8681

4

Conservatism

0.8165

0.8990

3.6.2.2 Cronbach’s Coefficient Alpha
63B

This method is used to measure the reliability of the questionnaire between each field and
the means of the whole fields of the questionnaire. The normal range of Cronbach’s
coefficient alpha value between 0.0 and + 1.0 and the higher values reflect a higher degree
of internal consistency. As shown in Table No. (3.11) the Cronbach’s coefficient alpha was
calculated. The general reliability for all items equal 0.8892. This range is considered high
and more than the accepted percentage of 60%; the result ensures the reliability of the
questionnaire (Sekaran, 2005.).

Table (3.11) Reliability Cronbach's Alpha

Accounting
practices

Cultural Dimensions

Section Number Sub- section

No. of Items Cronbach's Alpha

1

Individualism vs. collectivism

6

0.8475

2

Power distance degree

5

0.8607

3

Uncertainty avoidance degree

5

0.8472

4

Masculinity vs. femininity

6

0.8892

5

Indulgence versus restraint

3

0.9014

6

Long vs. short-term orientation 5

0.9235

1

Professionalism (Authority)

7

0.8754

2

Disclosure

7

0.9047

3

Uniformity(Enforcement)

7

0.8993

4

Conservatism

7

0.9268
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3.7 Statistical techniques used
To achieve the research goal, the researcher used the statistical package for the Social
Science (SPSS) for manipulating and analyzing the data. Statistical methods are as follows:
1- Frequencies and Percentile
2- Alpha- Cronbach Test for measuring reliability of the items of the questionnaires
3- Pearson correlation coefficients for measuring validity of the items of the
questionnaires.
4- Spearman –Brown Coefficient
5- One sample T-test
6- One way ANOVA test for the difference between means three samples or more
7- Scheffe test for multiple comparisons
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Chapter 4
Data Analysis and Discussion
5B

6B
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4.1 Introduction
35B

This chapter presents the results of testing the distribution of the data to determine whether
the data follows normal distribution as well as the results of testing the research
hypotheses. Thus, this chapter will address the following points: Sample K-S Test, testing
hypotheses and multiple regression models.

4.2 Testing the distribution of the sample
One Sample K-S test (Kolmogorov–Smirnov test) will be used to identify if the data
follows normal distribution or not, this test is considered necessary in case testing
hypotheses as most parametric test stipulate data to be normality distributed and this test
used when the size of the sample is greater than 50. Results test as shown in table (4.1) ,
clarifies that the calculated p-value is greater than the significant level which is equal 0.05
( p-value. > 0.05), this in turn denotes that data follows normal distribution, and so
parametric tests must be used.
Table (4.1) One Sample K-S

Accounting
practices

Cultural Dimensions

Section Number

Sub- section

Z-Value P-Value

1

Individualism vs. collectivism

1.096

0.181

2

Power distance degree

0.842

0.477

3

Uncertainty avoidance degree

0.936

0.345

4

Masculinity vs. femininity

1.199

0.113

5

Indulgence versus restraint

0.885

0.413

6

Long vs. short-term orientation

0.635

0.815

1

Professionalism (Authority)

1.287

0.073

2

Disclosure

0.631

0.820

3

Uniformity (Enforcement)

0.685

0.735

4

Conservatism

0.573

0.898

Since data follows normal distribution that ensures that the sample is representative for the
targeted community of the study and the findings can be generalized.
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4.3 Discussion and hypotheses test.
37B

In the following tables a one sample T-test was used to test if the attitude of the respondent
in the content of the sentences are positive ( weight mean greater than "60%" and the pvalue less than 0.05) that means the targeted group have positive attitude towards
(collectivism, large power distance, high uncertainty avoidance, masculinity, indulgence
and long term orientation) regarding cultural dimensions Also it means that the
respondents think that (the professional accounting and auditing bodies independent of the
governments; willingness of firms listed in PEX to be open (transparent) to the public;
uniform approach of applying accounting methods and policies; consistency in disclosure
of accounting information in the financial reports and accounting measurement is scaled to
be in a conservative style) regarding accounting practices. If the attitude of the respondent
in the content of the sentences are negative (weight mean less than "60%" and the p-value
less than 0.05) that means that their attitude is the opposite of the previously mentioned
items for cultural dimensions and accounting practices.

4.3.1 Section one: Cultural Dimensions
1. Individualism vs. collectivism
38B

A one sample t test was used and the attitude of the respondents about individualism vs.
collectivism ranked descending according to the weight mean shown in table (4.2) as
follows:
1. In item No. (5) the weight mean equals " 82.99%" and p-value equal " 0.000" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents prefer working with the team rather than
working alone.
2. In item No. (2) the weight mean equals " 81.84%" and p-value equal " 0.000" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that individuals should stick with
the group even through difficulties.
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3. In item No. (3) the weight mean equals " 80.46%" and p-value equal " 0.000" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that group success is more
important than individual success.
4. In item No. (4) the weight mean equals " 78.62%" and p-value equal " 0.000" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that individuals should only
pursue their goals after considering the welfare of the group.
5. In item No. (6) the weight mean equals " 77.93%" and p-value equal " 0.000" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that group welfare is more
important than individual rewards.
6. In item No. (1) the weight mean equals " 72.87%" and p-value equal " 0.000" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that individuals should sacrifice
self-interest for the group.

In general the results for all items of the field show that the average mean equal 3.96 and
the weight mean equal 79.12% which is greater than " 60%" and the value of T-test equals
15.906 which is greater than the critical value which is equal 1.99 and the p- value equal
0.00 which is less than 0.05, that means that the population is collective
This result is very representative of the nature of Palestinian society whose people are born
into extended families or others in groups which continue to protect them in exchange for
loyalty. Identity is based on the social network to which one belongs; High-context
communication; opinions are predetermined by group membership and private life is
invaded by groups in addition to many other features of collectivism as mentioned by
(Hofstede, 2010) are notable in Palestinian society. This result agrees with (Hickson and
Pugh 1996) who stated that Arabs tend to prefer collectivism, form groups and
communicate with others.
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Table (4.2) Individualism vs. collectivism
No.

Items

Mean

Standard
deviation

Weight
mean

Tvalue

Pvalue

1

Individuals should sacrifice
3.64
self-interest for the group

1.01

72.87

5.937

0.000

2

Individuals should stick with
the group even through 4.09
difficulties

0.71

81.84

14.360

0.000

Group success is more
important than individual 4.02
success

0.91

80.46

10.432

0.000

Individuals should only
pursue their goals after
3.93
considering the welfare of
the group

0.90

78.62

9.654

0.000

I prefer working with the
team rather than working 4.15
alone

0.80

82.99

13.399

0.000

Group welfare is more
important than individual 3.90
rewards

0.79

77.93

10.547

0.000

Total

0.56

79.12

15.906

0.000

3

4

5

6

3.96

Critical value of t at df "86" and significance level 0.05 equal 1.99

2. Power distance degree
A one sample T-test was used and the attitude of the respondents about power distance
degree ranked descending according to the weight mean shown in Table No. (4.3) as
follows:
1. In item No. (5) the weight mean equals " 71.72%" and p-value equals " 0.000" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that people in higher positions
should give people in lower positions flexibility and independence in making
decisions.
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2. In item No. (1) the weight mean equals " 62.30%" and p-value equals " 0.348" which
is greater than 0.05, That means the respondents think that people in higher positions
should make most decisions without consulting people in lower positions moderately.
3. In item No. (3) the weight mean equals " 48.28%" and p-value equals " 0.000" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that people in higher positions
should not avoid social interaction with people in lower positions.
4. In item No. (4) the weight mean equals " 45.29%" and p-value equals " 0.000" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that people in higher positions
should delegate important tasks to people in lower positions.
5. In item No. (2) the weight mean equals " 44.37%" and p-value equals " 0.000" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that people in higher positions
should ask the opinions of people in lower positions too frequently..

In general the results for all items of the field show that the average mean equals 2.49 and
the weight mean equals 49.70% which is less than " 60%" and the value of T-test equals
7.660 which is greater than the critical value which is equal 1.99 also the p-value is equal
to 0.000 which is less than 0.05, that means that the power distance degree is small.
The result ensures that the Palestinian society has an aspiration for power equalization and
demand for justifying inequalities also there is a large middle class in it .But this result
disagrees with (Alhelsi, 2004) study which found that there is a large power distance in
Palestinian Authority organizations. This disagreement may arose because of differences in
targeted populations in the two studies or different timing of conducting the study. The
researcher's opinion disagrees with the results since she argued that the Palestinian society
falls between small and large power distance as it combines the features of the two sides
with a little more features of the large power distance society. Therefore, perhaps there is
bias in filling the questionnaire where there is a limited target group.
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Table (4.3) Power distance degree
No.
1

2

3

4

5

Items

Mean

Standard
deviation

Weight
mean

Tvalue

Pvalue

People in higher positions
should make most decisions
3.11
without consulting people in
lower positions

1.14

62.30

0.944

0.348

People in higher positions
should not ask the opinions of
2.22
people in lower positions too
frequently

1.04

44.37

-7.016

0.000

People in higher positions
should
avoid
social
2.41
interaction with people in
lower positions

1.06

48.28

-5.146

0.000

People in higher positions
should not delegate important
2.26
tasks to people in lower
positions

1.01

45.29

-6.825

0.000

People in higher positions
should give people in lower
positions
flexibility
and 3.59*
independence in making
decisions

1.05

71.72

5.200

0.000

Total

0.63

49.70

-7.660

0.000

2.49

Critical value of t at df "86" and significance level 0.05 equal 1.99
*Item no.5 mean is conversed to fit the trends of the other items.

3. Uncertainty avoidance degree
A one sample T-test was used and the attitude of the respondents about uncertainty
avoidance degree ranked descending according to the weight mean shown in Table No.
(4.4) as follows:
1. In item No.(1) the weight mean equals " 90.11%" and P-value equals " 0.000" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that it is important to have
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instructions spelled out in detail so that they always know what they are expected to
do.
2. In item No.(2) the weight mean equals " 71.72%" and P-value equals " 0.000" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that it is important to closely
follow instructions and procedures.
3. In item No.(5) the weight mean equals " 70.34%" and P-value equals " 0.000" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that individuals in their
community don’t care about planning, time management and working for future.
4. In item No.(3) the weight mean equals " 63.91%" and P-value equals " 0.091" which
is greater than 0.05. That means the respondents think that their society culture resist
change and refuse new ideas & suggestions.
5. In item No.(4) the weight mean equals " 57.24%" and P-value equals " 0.268" which
is greater than 0.05. That means the respondents don't prefer the obvious current
situation than the unknown mysterious change moderately.

In general the results for all items of the field show that the average mean equals 3.53 and
the weight mean equals 70.67% which is greater than " 60%" and the value of t test equal
8.929 which is greater than the critical value which equals 1.99

and the P-value equals

0.000 which is less than 0.05, that means strong uncertainty avoidance degree.
Regarding the Palestinian unstable situation due to occupation the Palestinian society
results are expected for to have strong uncertainty avoidance. So this result explains the
following features of most Palestinians as they think that uncertainty inherent in life is felt
as a continuous threat which must be fought, they have high stress; subjective feeling of
anxiety; acceptance of familiar risks; fear of ambiguous situations and of unfamiliar risks;
emotional need for rules and motivation by security ,esteem and belongingness.(Hofstede
2010)
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Table (4.4) Uncertainty avoidance degree
No.
1

2

3

4

5

Items

Mean

Standard
deviation

Weight
mean

Tvalue

Pvalue

It is important to have
instructions spelled out in
4.51
detail so that I always know
what I’m expected to do

0.68

90.11

20.659

0.000

It is important to closely
follow
instructions
and 3.59
procedures

0.93

71.72

5.851

0.000

Our society culture resists
change and refuses new ideas 3.20
& suggestions

1.07

63.91

1.710

0.091

I prefer the obvious current
situation than the unknown 2.86
mysterious change

1.15

57.24

-1.116

0.268

I think individuals in my
community don’t care about
3.52
planning, time management
and working for future

1.15

70.34

4.195

0.000

Total

0.56

70.67

8.929

0.000

3.53

Critical value of t at df "86" and significance level 0.05 equals 1.99

4. Masculinity vs. femininity
A one sample t test was used and the attitude of the respondents about masculinity vs.
femininity ranked descending according to the weight mean shown in Table No. (4.5) as
follows:
1. In item No.(5) the weight mean equals " 72.64%" and P-value equals " 0.000" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that there are some jobs that a
men can always do better than women.
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2. In item No. (1) the weight mean equals " 72.41%" and P-value equals " 0.000" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that it is more important for men
to have a professional career than it is for women.
3. In item No. (6) the weight mean equals " 70.34%" and P-value equals " 0.000" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that their society considers that the
man is the most effective element in community building and development.

4. In item No. (3) the weight mean equals " 69.20%" and P-value equals " 0.000" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that solving difficult problems
usually requires an active, forcible approach, which is typical of men.
5. In item No. (2) the weight mean equals " 68.05%" and P-value equals " 0.002" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that men usually solve problems
with logical analysis and women usually solve problems with intuition.
6. In item No. (4) the weight mean equals " 53.56%" and P-value equals " 0.001" which
is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that their society gives women a
lower role in the areas of command and control.

In general the results for all items of the field show that the average mean equals 3.49 and
the weight mean equals 69.85% which is greater than " 60%" and the value of t test equal
6.725 which is greater than the critical value which is equal to 1.99 and the p- value equal
0.000 which is less than 0.05, that means there is the population is Masculine.
Masculinity pertains to societies in which social gender roles are clearly distinct (i.e., men
are supposed to be assertive, tough, and focused on material success) (Hofstde, 2010). This
result explains many features of Palestinian society like: a relatively small number of
women in elected political positions, resolution of conflicts by fighting them out, stress on
equity, competition and performance among colleagues, and in the family, fathers deal
with facts and mothers with feelings. This result may arise because of many reasons such
as: our religion Islam stresses the male prerogative in addition to Arabian mentality of
male dominance also it can be linked to the population of study as most respondents are
males according to table No.(3.5) in percentage of 73.6%.
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Table (4.5) Masculinity vs. femininity
No.
1

2

3

4

5

6

Items

Mean

Standard
deviation

Weight
mean

Tvalue

Pvalue

It is more important for men
to have a professional career 3.62
than it is for women

1.14

72.41

5.062

0.000

Men usually solve problems
with logical analysis; women
3.40
usually solve problems with
intuition

1.15

68.05

3.275

0.002

Solving difficult problems
usually requires an active,
3.46
forcible approach, which is
typical of men

1.08

69.20

3.985

0.000

Our society gives women a
greater role in the areas of 2.68
command and control

0.87

53.56

-3.453

0.001

There are some jobs that a
man can always do better 3.63*
than women

1.04

72.64

5.694

0.000

Our society considers that the
man is the most effective
3.52
element
in
community
building and development

1.08

70.34

4.480

0.000

Total

0.68

69.85

6.725

0.000

3.49

Critical value of t at df "86" and significance level 0.05 equal 1.99.
*Item no.5 mean is conversed to fit the trends of the other items.

5. Long vs. short-term orientation
A one sample T-test was used and the attitude of the respondents about long vs. shortterm orientation ranked descending according to the weight mean shown in Table
No.(4.6) as follows:
1. In item No. (1) the weight mean equals " 84.37%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents see that the priority is to
manage the planning for the future and put long-term plans.
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2. In item No. (3) the weight mean equals " 69.43%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that the definition of the
right concepts and misconceptions depends on the circumstances and time
variables.
3. In item No. (2) the weight mean equals " 68.97%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents imagine that the traditions and
customs of community adjustable and changeable according to the future
circumstances.

In general the results for all items of the field show that the average mean equals 3.71 and
the weight mean equals 74.25% which is greater than " 60%" and the value of T-test
equals 8.998 which is greater than the critical value which is equal to 1.99 and the P-value
equal 0.000 which is less than 0.05, that means there is long-term orientation.
The result reflects the nature of Palestinian mentality of long term thinking. This result can
explain the many features of Palestinians thinking such as: Most important events in life
will occur in the future, a good person adapts to the circumstances, family life is guided by
shared tasks in addition to thrift and perseverance are important goals.
Table (4.6) Long vs. short-term orientation
No.
1

2

3

Items
I see that the priority is to
manage the planning for the
future and put long-term plans
I imagine that the traditions
and customs of community are
adjustable and changeable
according to the future
circumstances
I think that the definition of
the right concepts and
misconceptions depends on
the circumstances and time
variables
Total

Mean

Standard
deviation

Weight
mean

Tvalue

Pvalue

4.22

0.77

84.37

14.779

0.000

3.45

1.09

68.97

3.848

0.000

3.47

1.04

69.43

4.212

0.000

3.71

0.74

74.25

8.998

0.000

Critical value of t at df "86" and significance level 0.05 equal 1.99
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6. Indulgence versus restraint
A one sample T-test was used and the attitude of the respondents about indulgence versus
restraint ranked descending according to the weight mean shown in Table No.(4.7) as
follows:
1. In item No. (5) the weight mean equals " 81.38%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents love to take appositive
thoughts and emotions in their dealings with people.
2. In item No. (3) the weight mean equals " 80.92%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents exercise freedom of expression
and consider it a fundamental right and important which cannot be abandoned.
3. In item No. (1) the weight mean equals " 78.39%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents feel that they are happy
persons and loved in their community.
4. In item No. (2) the weight mean equals " 75.17%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that they can control the
reins of their life and to accurately determine its course without external pressure or
interference.
5. In item No. (4) the weight mean equals " 67.59%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that sport is an integral
part of their daily routine.

In general the results for all items of the field show that the average mean equals 3.83 and
the weight mean equals 76.69% which is greater than " 60%" and the value of t test equals
11.961 which is greater than the critical value which is equals 1.99 and the P-value equals
0.000 which is less than 0.05, that means the population is indulgent
This result represents some of indulgent society features as described by (Hofstede, 2010)
compatible with Palestinian society like satisfaction , the ability to adapt different
circumstances, freedom of speech seen as important and educated populations with higher
birth rates. This conclusion may arise because of the nature of most of the respondents in a
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percent of 80% who lives in the West Bank ,but the researcher thinks that the Gazan people
will have different conclusions which is more restraint if they were the majority in the
population.

Table (4.7) Indulgence versus restraint
No.

Items

Mean

Standard
deviation

1

Weight
mean

I feel that I am a happy person
3.92
0.81
78.39
and loved in my community
2
I can control the reins of my
life
and
to
accurately
determine its course without 3.76
0.83
75.17
external
pressure
or
interference
3
Exercising of freedom of
expression and considering it
a fundamental right and 4.05
0.93
80.92
important and cannot be
abandoned
4
Sports is an integral part of
3.38
1.14
67.59
my daily routine
5
I love to take a positive role in
my thoughts and emotions 4.07
0.80
81.38
when dealings with people.
Total
3.83
0.65
76.69
Critical value of t at df "86" and significance level 0.05 equal 1.99

Tvalue

Pvalue

10.588

0.000

8.476

0.000

10.531

0.000

3.094

0.003

12.402

0.000

11.961

0.000

Conclusion of section One: Cultural Dimensions
In general the results for all items of the fields table No.(4.8) show that the average mean
equals 3.50 and the weight mean equal 70.06% which is greater than " 60%" and the
value of T-test equals 14.926 which is greater than the critical value which is equals 1.99
and the P-value equals 0.000 which is less than 0.05. This result indicates that the
Palestinian society is collective, indulgent and masculine it also has small power distance
degree, has strong uncertainty avoidance degree and long-term orientation. This represent
the nature of Palestinians and ensure that Hofstede cultural dimension can successfully
define any country culture.
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Table (4.8) Cultural Dimensions
No.

Items

Mean

1

Individualism
collectivism

vs.

2

Power distance degree

Standard
deviation

Weight
mean

Tvalue

Pvalue

3.96

0.56

79.12

15.906

0.000

2.49

0.63

49.70

-7.660

0.000

3

Uncertainty avoidance
3.53
degree

0.56

70.67

8.929

0.000

4

Masculinity
femininity

0.68

69.85

6.725

0.000

5

Indulgence
restraint

6

Long vs. short-term
orientation
Total

vs.
versus

3.49
3.71

0.74

74.25

8.998

0.000

3.83

0.65

76.69

11.961

0.000

14.926

0.000

3.50

0.31

70.06

Critical value of t at df "86" and significance level 0.05 equal 1.99
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4.3.2 Section Two: Accounting Practices
1. Professionalism \Authority
A one sample T-test is used and the opinion of the respondents about professionalism
\Authority ranked descending according to the weight mean shown in Table No.(4.9) as
follows:

1. In item No.(4) the weight mean equals " 85.98%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that the annual reports
should be accompanied with the auditors’ report.
2. In item No.(3) the weight mean equals " 77.70%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that International
Accounting Standards consider the best alternative for the annual reports
preparation in absence of national accounting standards.
3. In item No.(6) the weight mean equals " 75.40%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that accounting and
auditing regulations are not controlled or developed predominantly by
governments.
4. In item No.(5) the weight mean equals " 74.94%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that the professional
accounting and auditing bodies independent of the governments.
5. In item No. (1) the weight mean equals " 69.66%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that to an extent
accounting and auditing professional bodies exist in Palestine, the existence of the
professional bodies in a society implies demand for the professional accounting and
auditing services.
6. In item No. (7) the weight mean equals " 63.91%" and P-value equals " 0.110"
which is greater than 0.05. That means the respondents think that the base of
financial statements preparations is moderately not restricted to the statutory
business Laws.
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7. In item No. (2) the weight mean equal " 63.45%" and p-value equal " 0.104" which
is greater than 0.05. That means the respondents think that to an extent there are
bodies involved in developing national accounting and auditing standards in
Palestine moderately.

In general the results for all items of the field show that the average mean equals 3.65and
the weight mean equals 73.00% which is greater than " 60%" and the value of T-test
equals 10.888 which is greater than the critical value which is equal to 1.99

and the P-

value equal 0.000 which is less than 0.05. Basically, the result implies that ‘accounting
authority’ is relatively strong in terms of professionalism’.
Despite the difficult situation in Palestine there is a movement toward an enhanced
improvement in accounting professionalism. In the case of listed companies which is
represent the study sample, both PCMA (Issuance and Disclosure Department) and PEX
perform checks of financial statements and conduct authority and enforcement actions. In
other sectors, authority and enforcement efforts are still at an incipient stage of
development and much remains to be done with absence of real role of Palestinian
government. From this viewpoint, the result of the study for professionalism is valid due to
the conformity of the variables measured with the recent movements toward
professionalism over the past years. One can conclude that accounting authority in
Palestine tends toward professionalism.

Table(4.9) Professionalism (Authority)
No.
1

2

Mean

Standard
deviation

Weight
mean

To an extent accounting and
auditing professional bodies
exist in Palestine

3.48

0.89

69.66

5.074

0.000

To an extent there are bodies
involved in developing
national accounting and
auditing standards in Palestine

3.17

0.98

63.45

1.643

0.104

Items
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Tvalue

Pvalue

Mean

Standard
deviation

Weight
mean

International Accounting
Standards consider the best
alternative for the annual
reports preparation in absence
of national accounting
standards

3.89

0.87

77.70

9.507

0.000

the annual reports should be
accompanied with the
auditors’ report

4.30

0.73

85.98

16.524

0.000

The professional accounting
and auditing bodies are
independent of the
governments

3.75

0.97

74.94

7.206

0.000

Accounting and auditing
regulations are not controlled
3.77
or developed predominantly by
governments

0.94

75.40

7.671

0.000

The base of financial
statements preparations is not
restricted to the statutory
business laws

3.20

1.13

63.91

1.614

0.110

Total

3.65

0.56

73.00

10.888

0.000

No.
3

4

5

6

7

Items

Tvalue

Pvalue

Critical value of t at df "86" and significance level 0.05 equal 1.99

2. Disclosure
A one sample T-test is used and the opinion of the respondents about disclosure ranked
descending according to the weight mean shown in Table No.(4.10) as follows:
1. In item No. (4) the weight mean equals " 85.52%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that firms listed in PEX
adhere to the level of disclosure required of listed Stock Exchange of Palestine and
the Palestinian Monetary Authority.
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2. In item No. (3) the weight mean equals " 83.91%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that firms listed in PEX
make disclosures required by IFRS for financial statements.
3. In item No. (7) the weight mean equals " 82.30%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that firms listed in PEX
make disclosures of notes to financial statements as required by IFRS.
4. In item No. (6) the weight mean equals " 80.69%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that firms listed in PEX
make disclosures required by IFRS for accounting policies.
5. In item No. (2) the weight mean equals " 79.54%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that firms listed in PEX
disclose fundamental accounting assumption and general information about entity.
6. In item No. (1) the weight mean equals " 77.24%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that there is willingness
of firms listed in PEX to be open\(transparent) to the public.
7. In item No. (5) the weight mean equals " 72.64%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that firms listed in PEX
disclose future events that may affect the financial statements.

In general the results for all items of the field show that the average mean equal 4.01 and
the weight mean equals 80.26% which is greater than " 60%" and the value of T-test
equals 14.988 which is greater than the critical value which is equal to 1.99 and the pvalue equal 0.000 which is less than 0.05, that means there is high transparency.
This result of high transparency may be justified because most of these disclosure items are
required from companies to be listed in PEX. Since the population is the listed companies
in PEX it's expected to be transparent at this level because in 2007 a list of penalties and
fines were developed against companies that violated the rules of the market, including the
disclosure system, which confirmed that the regulations on the market were designed to
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compel companies to disclose duly form and timing. Those regulations have contributed to
the strengthening of corporate commitment to disclosure requirements.

No.
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Items

Table (4.10) Disclosure
Standard
Mean
deviation

Weight
mean

T-value

Pvalue

Willingness of firms listed in
PEX to be open (transparent) to
the public

3.86

0.89

77.24

9.020

0.000

Firms listed in PEX disclose
fundamental accounting
assumption and general
information about entity

3.98

0.82

79.54

11.101

0.000

Firms listed in PEX make
disclosures required by IFRS for 4.20
financial statements

0.76

83.91

14.670

0.000

Firms listed in PEX adhere to
the level of disclosure required
of listed Stock Exchange of
Palestine and the Palestinian
Monetary Authority (Banks)

4.28

0.77

85.52

15.396

0.000

Firms listed in PEX disclose
future events that may affect the
financial statements

3.63

1.02

72.64

5.757

0.000

Firms listed in PEX make
disclosures required by IFRS for 4.03
accounting policies

0.75

80.69

12.797

0.000

Firms listed in PEX make
disclosures of notes to financial
statements as required by IFRS

4.11

0.75

82.30

13.798

0.000

Total

4.01

0.63

80.26

14.988

0.000

Critical value of t at df "86" and significance level 0.05 equal 1.99
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3. Uniformity (Enforcement)
A one sample T-test is used and the opinion of the respondents about (Uniformity)
Enforcement ranked descending according to the weight mean shown in Table No. (4.11)
as follows:
1. In item No. (5) the weight mean equals " 80.69%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that there is uniformity in
presenting income statement-profit & loss statement- items.
2. In item No. (4) the weight mean equals " 79.77%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that there is uniformity in
presenting statement of financial position items.
3. In item No. (6) the weight mean equals " 79.54%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that there is uniformity in
presenting CFS items.
4. In item No. (3) the weight mean equals " 77.24%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that they are not using
other statements instead of Cash Flow Statement (CFS).
5. In item No. (7) the weight mean equals " 76.32%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. that means the respondents think that there is uniformity in
presenting notes to the financial information.
6. In item No. (1) the weight mean equals " 73.33%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that there is no
accounting changes within the firms for the last five years.
7. In item No. (2) the weight mean equals " 72.41%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that there is uniformity in
using accounting policies across firms.
In general the results for all items of the field show that the average mean equals 3.85 and
the weight mean equals 77.04% which is greater than " 60%" and the value of T-test equals
12.738 which is greater than the critical value which is equal to 1.99 and the P-value equals
0.000 which is less than 0.05, that means that accounting enforcement has a preference
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towards a uniform approach in presenting financial information and consistency in
applying accounting methods .
The results are also consistent with the background of accounting in Palestine as IFRS are
currently required in all regulated business sectors in the West Bank & Gaza, for legal
entity and consolidated financial reporting also for the banking sector, even though IAS
(understood as meaning IFRS) is mandated by the banking law, in effect some differences
with the international standard do exist (ROSCO, 2010). The uniform chart of accounts
prescribes homogeneous accounting practices within the listed companies a format for the
presentation of financial statements. These formats are obligatory for all companies as
prescribed by PEX as a requirement for being listed.

Table (4.11) Uniformity (Enforcement)

No.
1

Items

standard
deviation

Mean

Weight
mean

Tvalue

Pvalue

No accounting changes
within the firms for the last
five years

3.67

0.88

73.33

7.028

0.000

Uniformity in using
accounting policies across
firms

3.62

0.80

72.41

7.274

0.000

Not using other statements
instead of cash flow
statement (CFS)

3.86

0.93

77.24

8.648

0.000

Uniformity in presenting
statement of financial
position items

3.99

0.83

79.77

11.133

0.000

Uniformity in presenting
income statement-profit &
loss statement- items

4.03

0.81

80.69

11.863

0.000

6

Uniformity in presenting
CFS items

3.98

0.81

79.54

11.298

0.000

7

Uniformity in presenting
notes to the financial
information

3.82

0.92

76.32

8.259

0.000

Total

3.85

0.62

77.04

12.738

0.000

2

3

4

5

Critical value of t at df "86" and significance level 0.05 equal 1.99
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4. Conservatism
A one sample T-test is used and the opinion of the respondents about conservatism ranked
descending according to the weight mean shown in Table No.(4.12) as follows:
1. In item No. (3) the weight mean equals " 83.45%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that the firm is measuring
fixed assets or property, plant and equipment at cost less depreciation.
2. In item No. (4) the weight mean equals " 82.30%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that the firm is measuring
receivables, net of provision for doubtful debts.
3. In item No. (7) the weight mean equals " 82.30%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that the firm is measuring
the reserves in addition to general and statutory reserves.
4. In item No. (1) the weight mean equals " 80.92%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that historical cost
accounting used for the measurement of assets.
5. In item No. (6) the weight mean equals " 74.71%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that the firm is measuring
intangible at net of amortization.
6. In item No. (5) the weight mean equals " 74.25%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that the firm disclose
conditional or contingent loss in income statements.
7. In item No. (2) the weight mean equals " 74.02%" and P-value equals " 0.000"
which is less than 0.05. That means the respondents think that the firm is using
lower of cost or net realizable for measuring inventories.
In general the results for all items of the field show that the average mean equals 3.94 and
the weight mean equals 78.85% which is greater than " 60%" and the value of T-test
equal 13.709 which is greater than the critical value which equals 1.99

and the P-value

equals 0.000 which is less than 0.05, that means accounting measurement is scaled to be in
a conservative style.
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Table (4.12) determines that the average of variables for accounting measurements applied
to the listed companies is 78.85% demonstrating a preference for conservative accounting
methods. The researcher thinks that the result refers to the unstable political and
economical situation in Palestine which affects the financial statement preparer decisions
and arise the fear of the ambiguous coming circumstances, so they have the desire to rely
revenue and recognize losses.
Table (4.12) Conservatism
No.

Items

Mean

Standard Weight
deviation mean

Tvalue

Pvalue

1

Historical cost accounting used
for the measurement of assets

4.05

0.93

80.92

10.531 0.000

2

Lower of cost or net realizable for
3.70
inventories

1.10

74.02

5.941

Measuring fixed assets or
property, plant and equipment at
cost less depreciation

4.17

0.97

83.45

11.309 0.000

4

Receivables, net of provision for
doubtful debts

4.11

0.84

82.30

12.363 0.000

5

Conditional or contingent loss
disclosed in income statements

3.71

0.90

74.25

7.377

0.000

6

Intangible at net of amortization

3.74

1.08

74.71

6.334

0.000

7

Other reserves in addition to
general and statutory reserves

4.11

0.96

82.30

10.861 0.000

Total

3.94

0.64

78.85

13.709 0.000

3

0.000

Critical value of t at df "86" and significance level 0.05 equals 1.99

Conclusion of section Two: Accounting Practices
To test the hypothesis A one sample T-test is used and the opinion of the respondents about
effect of laws and regulations on the biggest charities work in the Gaza Strip . In general
the results for all items of the fields table No.(4.13) show that the average mean equals
3.86 and the weight mean equals 77.29 % which is greater than "60%" and the value of t
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test equals 17.643 which is greater than the critical value which is equal to 1.99 and the Pvalue equals 0.000 which is less than 0.05, that means the professional accounting and
auditing bodies independent of the governments, willingness of firms listed in PEX to be
open (transparent) to the public, uniform approach of applying accounting methods and
policies – consistency in disclosure of accounting information in the financial reports and
accounting measurement is scaled to be in a conservatism style

Table (4.13) Accounting Practices

No.

Items

Mean

Standard
deviation

Weight
mean

Tvalue

Pvalue

1

Professionalism (
Authority)

3.65

0.56

73.00

10.888

0.000

2

Disclosure

4.01

0.63

80.26

14.988

0.000

3

Uniformity
(Enforcement)

3.85

0.62

77.04

12.738

0.000

4

Conservatism

3.94

0.64

78.85

13.709

0.000

Total

3.86

0.46

77.29

17.643

0.000

Critical value of t at df "86" and significance level 0.05 equal 1.99
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4.3.3 Hypotheses Test
First Main hypothesis: There is significant relationship (on α ≤ 0.05 Level) between
Cultural Dimensions for Palestinian society and their commonly used accounting
practices.
And this hypothesis divided into sub-hypotheses as the follow:
1. There is a correlation between Individualism vs. collectivism and accounting practices
at significant level α = 0.05 .

Pearson correlation test is used to test the correlation between individualism vs.
collectivism and accounting practices and the results in table No.(4.14) which show that
there is a correlation between individualism vs. collectivism and conservatism since the Pvalue is 0.000 which is less than 0.05 and in general there is a correlation between low
individualism vs. collectivism and all subsections of the accounting practices together
since the correlation coefficient equals 0.324 which is greater than critical value 0.203
and p-value equal

0.002 which is less than 0.05 .

Table (4.14)

Pearson
Correlation

Individualism vs.
P-value
collectivism

All sub sections

Conservatism

Uniformity
(Enforcement)

Statistic

Disclosure

Section

Professionalism
(Authority)

A correlation between Individualism vs. collectivism and accounting practices

0.194 0.186 0.180 0.397 0.324
0.072 0.085 0.096 0.000 0.002
87

N
**. Correlation is significant at the 0.01 level (2-tailed).
*. Correlation is significant at the 0.05 level (2-tailed).
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87

87

87

2. There is a correlation between Power distance degree and accounting practices

at significant level α = 0.05 .
Pearson correlation test is used to examine the correlation between power distance degree
and accounting practices and the results are shown in table No.(4.15) which shows that
there is no correlation between Power distance degree and each subsection of the
accounting practices since the P-value equal 0.323, 0.153, 0.466, 0.879 respectively which
is greater than 0.05, and for general there is no correlation between power distance degree
and all subsections of the accounting practices since the correlation coefficient equals
0.001 which is less than critical value 0.203 and P-value equals 0.995 which is greater
than 0.05 .

Power
degree

All sub sections

Conservatism

Uniformity
(Enforcement)

Statistic

Disclosure

Section

Professionalism
(Authority)

Table (4.15) A correlation between Power distance degree and accounting practices

Pearson
Correlation

0.107

-0.154 0.079

-0.017 0.001

P-value

0.323

0.153

0.466

0.879

0.995

N

87

87

87

87

87

distance

**. Correlation is significant at the 0.01 level (2-tailed).
*. Correlation is significant at the 0.05 level (2-tailed).

3. There is a correlation between uncertainty avoidance degree and accounting
practices at significant level α = 0.05
Pearson correlation test is used to test the correlation between uncertainty avoidance
degree and the results in table No.(4.16) which show that there is a correlation between
uncertainty avoidance degree and professionalism(Authority) since the P-value equal
0.004 respectively which is less than 0.05 . In general there is no correlation between
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uncertainty avoidance degree and all subsection of the accounting practices since the
correlation coefficient is equal to 0.148 which is less than critical value 0.203 and Pvalue equal 0.172 which is greater than 0.05

Table (4.16)

Uniformity
(Enforcement)

Conservatism

All sub sections

Uncertainty
avoidance degree

Disclosure

Section

Professionalism
(Authority)

A correlation between Uncertainty avoidance degree and accounting practices

Pearson
Correlation

0.303

0.071

0.075

0.016

0.148

P-value

0.004

0.516

0.493

0.882

0.172

87

87

87

87

87

Statistic

N
**. Correlation is significant at the 0.01 level (2-tailed).
*. Correlation is significant at the 0.05 level (2-tailed).

4. There is a correlation between masculinity vs. femininity and accounting
practices at significant level α = 0.05 .
Pearson correlation test is used to examine the correlation between Masculinity vs.
femininity and accounting practices and the results in table No.(4.17) which show that
there is a correlation between masculinity vs. femininity and professionalism (authority),
uniformity (enforcement) since the P-value equal 0.038 , 0.017 respectively which is less
than 0.05, and in general there is a correlation between masculinity vs. femininity and all
subsections of the accounting practices since the correlation coefficient

equal 0.260

which is greater than critical value equals 0.203 and P-value equals 0.015 which is less
than 0.05
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Table (4.17)

Uniformity
(Enforcement)

Conservatism

All sub sections

Masculinity
femininity

Disclosure

Section

Professionalism
(Authority)

A correlation between masculinity vs. femininity and accounting practices

Pearson
Correlation

.222

.198

.256

.104

.260

P-value

.038

.066

.017

.339

.015

87

87

87

87

87

Statistic

vs.

N
**. Correlation is significant at the 0.01 level (2-tailed).
*. Correlation is significant at the 0.05 level (2-tailed).

5. There is a correlation between long vs. short-term orientation and accounting
practices at significant level α = 0.05 .

Pearson correlation test is used to examine the correlation between long vs. short-term
orientation and accounting practices and the results in table No.(4.18) which show that
there is no correlation between long vs. short-term orientation and each subsections of the
accounting practices since the P-value equal 0.557, 0.897, 0.585 respectively which is
greater than 0.05, and in general there is no correlation between long vs. short-term
orientation and all subsections of the accounting practices since the correlation coefficient
equals 0.051 which is less than the critical value 0.203 and P-value equals 0.636 which
is less than 0.05
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Table (4.18)

All sub sections

Long vs. shortterm orientation P-value

Conservatism

Pearson
Correlation

Uniformity
(Enforcement)

Statistic

Disclosure

Section

Professionalism
(Authority)

A correlation between Long vs. short-term orientation and accounting practices

0.064

0.014

0.059

0.020

0.051

0.557

0.897

0.585

0.857

0.636

87

87

87

87

87

N
**. Correlation is significant at the 0.01 level (2-tailed).
*. Correlation is significant at the 0.05 level (2-tailed).

6. There is a correlation between Indulgence versus restraint and accounting practices at
significant level α = 0.05 .

Pearson correlation test is used to examine the correlation between indulgence versus
restraint and accounting practices and the results in table No.(4.19) which show that there
is a correlation between indulgence versus restraint and professionalism (authority) since
the P-value equals 0.001 which is less than 0.05, and in general there is a correlation
between indulgence versus restraint and all subsections of the accounting practices since
the correlation coefficient equals 0.214 which is greater than critical value 0.203and pvalue equals 0.047 which is less than 0.05
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Table (4.19)

Disclosure

Uniformity
(Enforcement)

Conservatism

All sub sections

Section

between Indulgence versus restraint and accounting practices

Professionalism
(Authority)

A correlation

Pearson
Correlation

0.352

0.165

0.130

0.016

0.214

P-value

0.001

0.127

0.231

0.883

0.047

87

87

87

87

87

Statistic

Indulgence
versus restraint

N
**. Correlation is significant at the 0.01 level (2-tailed).
*. Correlation is significant at the 0.05 level (2-tailed).

To summarize the previous tests of hypotheses there is a correlation between:
1-Low individualism and conservatism.
2-Strong uncertainty avoidance and professionalism.
3-Masculinity and professionalism also with uniformity.
4-Indulgence and professionalism.
In the other side there is no correlation at all between long term orientation , uncertainty
avoidance and Accounting practices.

Second main hypotheses: There is a statistically significant differences at level α = 0.05
in The role of cultural dimension in shaping the generally accepted accounting practices
in Palestine refer to the firm information
This hypothesis divided into four sub-hypothesis as the following:
1. There is statistically significant differences at level α = 0.05 in the role of
cultural dimensions in shaping the generally accepted accounting practices in
Palestine refer to classification of the firm sector
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To test the hypothesis we use the one way ANOVA and the result is illustrated in table
no.(4.20) which show that the P-value equals 0.541 which is greater than 0.05 , and the
value of Fstat = 0.780which is less than Fcritical = 2.48 , that means there is no statistically

significant differences at level α = 0.05 in the role of cultural dimension in shaping the
generally accepted accounting practices in Palestine refer to classification of the firm
sector

Table (4.20)
One way ANOVA test for differences at level α = 0.05 the role of cultural dimension in
shaping the generally accepted accounting practices in Palestine refer to Classification of
the firm sector
Field

Cultural Dimensions

accounting practices

All sections

Sum of
df
Squares

Source

Mean
F
Square value

Between Groups

1.064

4

0.266

Within Groups

8.821

82

0.108

Total

9.885

86

Between Groups

0.392

4

0.098

Within Groups

17.573

82

0.214

Total

17.965

86

Between Groups

0.331

4

0.083

Within Groups

8.685

82

0.106

Total

9.016

86

Sig.(PValue)

2.473

0.051

0.457

0.767

0.780

0.541

Critical value of F at df "4,82 " and significance level 0.05 equal 2.48

2. There is a statistically significant differences at level α = 0.05 in the role of
cultural dimension in shaping the generally accepted accounting practices in
Palestine refer to capital equity (in USD)
To test the hypothesis we use the one way ANOVA and the result is illustrated in table
No.(4.21) which show that the P-value equals 0.342 which is greater than 0.05 , and the
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value of Fstat =1.144 which is less than Fcritical = 2.48 , that means there is no statistically

significant differences at level α = 0.05 in the role of cultural dimension in shaping the
generally accepted accounting practices in Palestine refer to capital equity (in USD)

Table (4.21)
One way ANOVA test for differences at level α = 0.05 the role of cultural dimension in shaping the
generally accepted accounting practices in Palestine refer to Capital Equity (in USD)

Field

Cultural Dimensions

accounting practices

All sections

Sum of
df
Squares

Source

Mean
F
Square value

Between Groups

0.205

4

0.051

Within Groups

9.680

82

0.118

Total

9.885

86

Between Groups

1.229

4

0.307

Within Groups

16.735

82

0.204

Total

17.965

86

Between Groups

0.477

4

0.119

Within Groups

8.539

82

0.104

Total

9.016

86

Sig.(PValue)

0.435

0.783

1.506

0.208

1.144

0.342

Critical value of F at df "4,82 " and significance level 0.05 equal 2.48

3. There is a statistically significant differences at level α = 0.05 in the role of
cultural dimension in shaping the generally accepted accounting practices in
Palestine refer to duration of being an active firm
To test the hypothesis we use the one way ANOVA and the result is illustrated in table
No.(4.22) which show that the P-value equals 0.606 which is greater than 0.05 , and the
value of Fstat =0.617 which is less than Fcritical

=

2.71 ,

that’s

means there is no

statistically significant differences at level α = 0.05 in the role of cultural dimension in
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shaping the generally accepted accounting practices in Palestine refer to duration of being
an active firm

Table (4.22)
One way ANOVA test for differences at level α = 0.05 the role of cultural dimension in shaping the
generally accepted accounting practices in Palestine refer to Duration of being an active firm

Field

Cultural Dimensions

accounting practices

All sections

Sum of
df
Squares

Source

Mean
F
Square value

Between Groups

0.040

3

0.013

Within Groups

9.845

83

0.119

Total

9.885

86

Between Groups

0.771

3

0.257

Within Groups

17.194

83

0.207

Total

17.965

86

Between Groups

0.197

3

0.066

Within Groups

8.819

83

0.106

Total

9.016

86

Sig.(PValue)

0.112

0.953

1.240

0.300

0.617

0.606

Critical value of F at df "3,83 " and significance level 0.05 equal 2.71

4. There is a statistically significant differences at level α = 0.05 in the role of
cultural dimension in shaping the generally accepted accounting practices in
Palestine refer to duration of being a listed company in PEX
To test the hypothesis we use the one way ANOVA and the result illustrated in table
No.(4.23) which show that the P-value equals 0.582 which is greater than 0.05 , and the
value of Fstat =0.656 which is less than Fcritical

=

2.71 ,

that’s

means there is no

statistically significant difference at level α = 0.05 in the role of cultural dimension in
shaping the generally accepted accounting practices in Palestine refer to Duration of being
a listed company in PEX
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Table (4.23)
One way ANOVA test for differences at level α = 0.05 the role of cultural dimension in shaping the
generally accepted accounting practices in Palestine refer to Duration of being a listed company in
PEX

Field

Cultural Dimensions

accounting practices

All sections

Sum of
df
Squares

Source

Mean
F
Square value

Between Groups

0.102

3

0.034

Within Groups

9.783

83

0.118

Total

9.885

86

Between Groups

0.427

3

0.142

Within Groups

17.538

83

0.211

Total

17.965

86

Between Groups

0.209

3

0.070

Within Groups

8.807

83

0.106

Total

9.016

86

Sig.(PValue)

0.289

0.834

0.673

0.571

0.656

0.582

Critical value of F at df "3,83 " and significance level 0.05 equal 2.71

Then the result of testing hypothesis is:
Hypothesis rejected as no statistically significant difference at level α = 0.05 in the role of
cultural dimension in shaping the generally accepted accounting practices in Palestine refer
to the firm information.
Probably this hypothesis is rejected because all the companies in population are required to
follow certain standards. So the firm special information (Firm sector, capital equity,
duration of being an active firm, duration of being a listed company in PEX) does not play
any role or make any difference regarding firm choices.
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4.4 Comparing results with Grays' hypotheses
The results of testing first six sub-hypotheses are summarized and compared with Gray
propositions in table No.(4.24) as follows.

Table (4.24)
Summary of tested hypothesis and comparison with Gray, 1988 propositions
C.D.

A.P

Collectivism

power

Large

uncertainty

avoidance

Masculinity
Indulgence
Long

orientation

Disclosure

Uniformity

Conservatism

Cur.

Gray

Cur.

Gray

Cur.

Gray

Cur.

Gray

Χ

Χ

Χ

Χ

Χ

√

√

√

Χ

√

Χ

Χ

Χ

Χ

Χ

Χ

√

Χ

Χ

√

Χ

√

Χ

√

√

√

Χ

√

√

Χ

Χ

√

√

n\a

Χ

n\a Χ

n\a Χ

n\a

Χ

n\a

Χ

n\a Χ

n\a Χ

n\a

High

Small

distance

Professionalism

term

High

High

High

*A.P. Accounting practices
**C.D Cultural Dimensions
***n/a means not available
****Cur. Means current study findings

To compare results with previous studies the discussion will be based on Hofsted-Gray
model application for the first four cultural dimensions which are (individualism, power
distance, uncertainty avoidance and masculinity).
Links between Hofstede's cultural dimensions and Gray's accounting dimensions are
hypothesized as follows:
1) Professionalism is firmly linked to high individualism, weak uncertainly avoidance,

masculinity and small power distance.
Hypothesis 1 is rejected by the results and Gray’s theory in regard to this accounting
practice and is not acceptable for Palestine. In order words, small power distance and high
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uncertainty avoidance as well as collectivism does not affect professionalism in Palestine.
Only one element of this proposition is valid as there is a significant relationship between
professionalism and masculinity and this agrees with the Doupnik and Salter (1995) study
who concluded that masculinity is one of the factors with the greatest explanatory power
for accounting practices.

2) Uniformity is particularly linked to strong uncertainty avoidance and low

individualism and high power distance.
Hypothesis 2 is rejected by the results and Gray’s theory in regard to this accounting
practice and is not acceptable for Palestine. Also it disagrees with Salter and Niswander
(1995) who found significant relationship between uniformity and uncertainty avoidance
also significant negative associations between uniformity and masculinity.

3) Conservatism is particularly linked to strong uncertainty avoidance. There is also a

link to low individualism and high masculinity.
Referring to the previous results which are summarized in table (4.24), only one element of
this proposition is valid as there is a significant relationship between conservatism and low
individualism. This agrees with Askary et. al.(2008) who also accept other propositions of
Gray.

4) Secrecy is closely linked to strong uncertainty avoidance and large power distance.

There is also a link to low individualism and masculinity.
Thus, hypothesis 4 is rejected by the actual average of the study and Gray’s theory in
predicting financial disclosure in Palestine does not apply. In order words, small power
distance and high uncertainty avoidance as well as collectivism cannot affect financial
disclosures in Palestine. Many researchers agree with this result like Zarzeski (1996) who
examined seven countries and found evidence that secretiveness, individualism,
masculinity and UA do influence companies’ disclosure practices. Also Hope (2003) who
Examined 39 countries over a three-year period and found no significant results between
culture and financial disclosure.
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As a conclusion of Hofsted-Gray model application in this study the result revealed that
only two propositions out of Gray's thirteen propositions were valid. This conclusion may
arise because of many possible reasons such as:
•

The study tool is different as most of the previous studies tested Hofstede-Gray
model depended on Hofstede (1980) index score of cultural dimensions for
different countries as basement of measurement, but this study used a designed
questionnaire to collect data to identify the cultural dimensions of Palestine.

•

The study time scope as most previous studies collect data of accounting practices
for more than three years, but this study used one year time scope.

•

Palestine is an occupied country and this means that there are a lot of obstacles and
restrictions obligated by occupation and will be faced when determining the
accounting practices.

•

Targeted population this study targeted only listed companies in PEX, other
previous studies tried to have high populations and most of the time many countries
not only one.

About the last two cultural dimensions added by (Hofstede, 1994-2010) , indulgence and
long vs. short term orientation there are no studies to compare results with because these
two dimensions were newly added and they are not linked to accounting practices in any
previous literature. That link was an addition to this study for the first time. A significant
relationship was found between indulgence and professionalism where there is no
significant relationship between long term orientation and any element of accounting
practices.
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4.5 Multiple regression model
The prediction model contained six predictors (Individualism vs. collectivism, power
distance degree, uncertainty avoidance degree, masculinity vs. femininity, Indulgence
versus restraint, and Long-term orientation) and the dependent variable is accounting
practices

Multiple linear regression model:
y = b0 +

n

∑b x
i =1

i

i

+ε

where : y : dependent variable
b0 : Constant
bi : i = 1...n Coefficients of variables
xi : i = 1...n Independent variables
The model was statistically significant, F(6, 80) = 3.078, as P- value = 0.009 < 0.05 . Table
No.(4.25)
Table (4.25) ANOVA
Model

Sum of Squares

df

Mean Square

F

Sig.

Regression

3.370

6

0.562

3.078

0.009

Residual

14.595

80

0.182

Total

17.965

86

The independent variables predict the dependent variable (accounting practices) with
12.7% (Adjusted R Square = 0.127). Table No.(4.26)
Table No.(4.26) Model Summary
R
0.433

R Square Adjusted R Square Std. Error of the Estimate
0.188

0.127

106

0.42713

From table No.(4.27) we can write the equation of multiple linear regression as follows:
Accounting practices = 2.073 + 0.235 individualism vs. collectivism
-0.038 individualism vs. collectivism
+ 0.105 uncertainty avoidance degree
+ 0.163 masculinity vs. femininity
-0.052 indulgence versus restraint
+ 0.061 long vs. short-term orientation
Table (4.27) Coefficients
Variables

Un- standardized
Coefficients( B)

Std.
Error

Standardized
Coefficients

(Constant)

2.073

0.503

Beta

Individualism vs.
collectivism

0.235

0.086

Power distance
degree

-0.038-

Uncertainty
avoidance degree

t

Sig.

0.288

2.733

0.008

0.074

-0.055

-0.515

0.608

0.105

0.091

0.128

1.160

0.249

Masculinity vs.
femininity

0.163

0.074

0.235

2.200

0.031

Indulgence versus
restraint

-0.052-

0.067

-0.084-

-0.774

0.441

Long-term orientation

0.061

0.077

0.087

0.792

0.431

from the table above the T-test shows that the predictors power distance degree ,
uncertainty avoidance degree , indulgence versus restraint and long-term orientation are
not significance since the P-value equal 0.608, 0.249, 0.441, and 0.431 respectively, and
the only significant variables are Individualism vs. collectivism and masculinity vs.
femininity since the P-value equal 0.008 and 0.031 respectively . the Beta column labeled
(Standardized Coefficients) show that the powerful predicted variable is Individualism vs.
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collectivism since Beta = 0.288, and the lower predicted variable is Power distance degree
since Beta = 0.055.
Regarding the results above which shows that the Cultural dimensions can predict the
accounting practices with 12.7% which is a significant percentage but it emphasizes that
there are other environmental factors that can predict the accounting practices better than
cultural dimensions such as:
1. Legal system.
2. Economical factors.
3. Political factor.
4. Level of inflation.
5. Level of education
6. Level of economic development.
At the time of conducting this study it was difficult to take in consideration multiple
variables of environmental factors such as legal system, economical status and political
system because Palestine now is going through ambiguous stages with very limited
obvious features of current or future situation. The political separation of Gaza and the
West Bank also plays a role in making the measurement of any current variable of
Palestinian reality very difficult.
Also there is a movement from different professional bodies towards adopting international
accounting standards in Palestine despite all the difficulties that exist so it obviously
affected the study results of high disclosure and high professionalism.
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Chapter 5
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Conclusions & Recommendations
8B
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5.1 Introduction
39B

After reviewing the literature of study variables and building the theoretical framework
then presenting the methodology used, the research conducted to reveal results. This
chapter summarizes the findings of the recommendations suggested by the Researcher, as
well as the further studies suggested by the researcher.

5.2 Conclusions:
40B

1. The Palestinian society regarding the result of the study is collective, indulgent and
masculine it also has small power distance degree, has strong uncertainty avoidance
degree, and long-term orientation. This represents the nature of Palestinians and
ensures that Hofstede cultural dimension can successfully define any country culture.
2. According to the study results, the accounting practices in Palestine are as follow :
Professional accounting and auditing bodies independent of the governments,
willingness of firms listed in PEX to be open (transparent) to the public, uniform
approach of applying accounting methods and policies, consistency in disclosure of
accounting information in the financial reports and accounting measurement is scaled
to be in a conservatism style.
3. In general there is a correlation between individualism vs. collectivism and
accounting practices.
4. In general there is a correlation between masculinity vs. femininity and the
accounting practices.
5. In general there is no correlation between long term orientation, uncertainty
avoidance, power distance and accounting practices .
6. There is a correlation between : Low individualism and conservatism, strong
uncertainty avoidance and professionalism, masculinity and professionalism also with
uniformity and indulgence and professionalism.
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7. As a conclusion of Hofstede-Gray's model application in this study the result revealed
that only two propositions out of Gray's thirteen propositions were valid.
8. There is no statistically significant differences at level α = 0.05 in the role of cultural
dimension in shaping the generally accepted accounting practices in Palestine refer to
the firm information (Classification of the firm sector, capital Equity in USD,
duration of being an active firm, duration of being a listed company in PEX)
9. The cultural dimensions can predict the accounting practices with 12.7% which is a
significant percentage ,but it emphasize that there are other environmental factors that
can predict the accounting practices better than cultural dimensions such as: (Legal
system, economical factors, political factor, level of inflation, level of education and
level of economic development).

5.3 Recommendations:
According to the results of the study, the following recommendations are suggested:
1. To encourage the existence of governmental organizations that enhance the role of
professional bodies and add the enforcement and authority required to apply
appropriate accounting and auditing standards.
2. To develop national financial standards which can be derived from International
accounting standards and take in consideration the special Palestinian cultural and
environmental factors.
3. To proceed studies to reveal the influential factors on accounting practices using
different variables, tools, models and designs to reach a satisfactory percentage of
prediction for accounting practices.
4. To conduct training courses and field visits for the students of accounting in
Palestinian universities in order to let them be aware of the real status of accounting
and auditing in Palestine and all related subjects and parties. That will be very helpful
for them to link with their study and to be well prepared for future jobs.
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5.4 Further Studies:
Regarding the researcher recommendation of proceeding studies in this area the following
studies are suggested:
1. Influence of environmental factors on accounting practices (empirical study by using
developed models).
2. Effect of cultural environmental and accounting regulation on Earnings Management.
3. The role of political factors in shaping the generally accepted accounting practices in
Palestine.
4. The role of economical factors in shaping the generally accepted accounting practices
in Palestine
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APPENDIX NO.1:
A list of the referees (academic staff who judged the questionnaire)

Number

Name

Major

University

1

Dr. Salem Helles

Accounting

The Islamic
University of Gaza

2

Dr. Hamdi zurob

Accounting

The Islamic
University of Gaza

3

Dr. Maher Durgham

Accounting

The Islamic
University of Gaza

4

Dr. Nafez Barakat

Statistics

The Islamic
University of Gaza

5

Dr. Ali Alnaami

Accounting

Al-azhar University
of Gaza

6

Dr. Mofeed El-Sheikh
Ali

Accounting

Al-azhar University
of Gaza

7

Mr. Hazim Alian

Auditing

Ernest & Young \ The
Islamic
University of Gaza

A

APPENDIX NO.2:
(Research Questionnaire in English)

AL AZHAR UNIVERSITY-GAZA
DEANSHIP OF POSTGRADUAT STUDIES
FACULTY OF ECON. & ADMIN. SCIENCES
ACCOUNTING MASTER PROGRAM

Dear sir/ madam
The Researcher is conducting a study titled:
The role of cultural dimensions in shaping the generally accepted accounting
practices in Palestine "
The objective of this study is to identify the cultural dimensions of Palestinian society and
the commonly used accounting practices then to examine the relationship between them.
We hope that you are to cooperate with us so as to complete the study properly, given that
all provided information will be used for study purposes only and at a high degree of
confidentiality.

With best regards
The researcher

Maysa Ata Darwish

B

First part

Firstly: The firm information:
5. Classification of the firm sector:
a-Investment b-Banking c-Insurance d-Service e-Agricultural
6. Capital Equity (in USD):
a-less than 5 million USD
c-from 16 to 30 million USD
e-More than 51 million USD

b-From 5 to 15 million USD
d-from 31 to 50 million USD

7. Duration of being an active firm:
a-less than 10 years
b-from 10 to 20 year
c-from 21 to 30 year
d-more than 31 year
8. Duration of being a listed company in PEX:
a-less than 3 years
b-from 3 to 6 years
c-from 7 to 9 years
d-more than 10 years

Secondly: Personal information
1. Gender: a-Male

b-Female

2. Current vacancy:
a-Financial manager

b-Accountant

c-Internal auditor

C

d-Others ………………

Second Part: Study variables
1- Cultural Dimensions:
No
.
1
2
3
4
5
6

1

2

3

4

5

1

2
3
4
5

Very
high

Question
Individualism vs. collectivism
Individuals should sacrifice self-interest
for the group.
Individuals should stick with the group
even through difficulties.
Group success is more important than
individual success.
Individuals should only pursue their goals
after considering the welfare of the group.
I prefer working with the team rather than
working alone.
Group welfare is more important than
individual rewards.
Power distance degree
People in higher positions should make
most decisions without consulting people
in lower positions.
People in higher positions should not ask
the opinions of people in lower positions
too frequently.
People in higher positions should avoid
social interaction with people in lower
positions.
People in higher positions should not
delegate important tasks to people in
lower positions.
People in higher positions should give
people in lower positions flexibility and
independence in making decisions.
Uncertainty avoidance degree
It is important to have instructions spelled
out in detail so that I always know what
I’m expected to do.
It is important to closely follow
instructions and procedures.
Our society culture resist change and
refuse new ideas & suggestions.
I prefer the obvious current situation than
the unknown mysterious change.
I think individuals in my community
don’t care about planning, time
management and working for future.
Masculinity vs. femininity
D

High

Moderate

low

Very
low

1
2

3

4
5
6

1

2

3

1
2

3

4
5

It is more important for men to have a
professional career than it is for women.
Men usually solve problems with logical
analysis; women usually solve problems
with intuition.
Solving difficult problems usually
requires an active, forcible approach,
which is typical of men.
Our society gives women a greater role in
the areas of command and control.
There are some jobs that a man can
always do better than women.
Our society considers that the man is the
most effective element in community
building and development.
Long vs. short-term orientation
I see that the priority is to manage the
planning for the future and put long-term
plans.
I imagine that the traditions and customs
of community adjustable and changeable
according to the future circumstances.
I think that the definition of the right
concepts and misconceptions depends on
the circumstances and time variables.
Indulgence versus restraint
I feel that I am a happy person and loved
in my community.
I can control the reins of my life and to
accurately determine its course without
external pressure or interference.
Exercise of freedom of expression and
consider it a fundamental right and
important and cannot be abandoned.
Sports is an integral part of my daily
routine.
I love to take a positive thoughts and
emotions in my dealings with people.

2- Accounting Practices:
Very
high

No. Question
1

Professionalism (Authority)
To an extent accounting and auditing
professional bodies exist in Palestine.
E

High

Moderate

low

Very low

2

3

4
5
6

7

1
2

3

4

5

6
7

1
2
3
4

To an extent there are bodies involved in
developing national accounting and
auditing standards in Palestine.
International
Accounting
Standards
consider the best alternative for the
annual reports preparation in absence of
national accounting standards.
the annual reports should be accompanied
with the auditors’ report.
The professional accounting and auditing
bodies independent of the governments.
Accounting and auditing regulations are
not
controlled
or
developed
predominantly by the governments.
The base of financial statements
preparations is not restricted to the
statutory business
Laws.
Disclosure
Willingness of firms listed in PEX to be
open (transparent) to the public.
Firms listed in PEX disclose fundamental
accounting assumption and general
information about entity.
Firms listed in PEX make disclosures
required by IFRS for financial
statements.
Firms listed in PEX adhere to the level of
disclosure required of listed Stock
Exchange of Palestine and the Palestinian
Monetary Authority (Banks).
Firms listed in PEX disclose future
events that may affect the financial
statements.
Firms listed in PEX make disclosures
required by IFRS for accounting policies.
Firms listed in PEX make disclosures of
notes to financial statements as required
by IFRS.
Uniformity(Enforcement)
No accounting changes within the firms
for the last five years.
Uniformity in using accounting policies
across firms.
Not using other statements instead of
Cash Flow Statement (CFS).
Uniformity in presenting statement of
financial position items.
F

5
6
7

1
2
3
4

Uniformity in presenting Income
Statement-profit & loss statement- items.
Uniformity in presenting CFS items.
Uniformity in presenting notes to the
financial information.
Conservatism
Historical cost accounting used for the
measurement of assets.
Lower of cost or net realizable for
inventories.
Measuring fixed assets or property, plant
and equipment at cost less depreciation.
Receivables, net of provision for doubtful
debts.

5

Conditional or contingent loss disclosed
in Income Statements.
6
Intangible at net of amortization.
7
Other reserves in addition to general and
statutory reserves.
With best regards

Maysa Ata Darwish
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APPENDIX NO.3:
)(Research Questionnaire in Arabic

ﺍﻷﺯﻫــــــــــﺭ  -ﻏـــــــــﺯﺓ
ﻋﻣﺎﺩﺓ ﺍﻟﺩﺭﺍﺳﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻌﻠﻳﺎ ﻭﺍﻟﺑﺣﺙ ﺍﻟﻌﻠﻣﻲ
ﻛﻠﻳﺔ ﺍﻻﻗﺗﺻــــﺎﺩ ﻭﺍﻟﻌﻠـــــﻭﻡ ﺍﻹﺩﺍﺭﻳـــﺔ
ﺑﺭﻧﺎﻣـــــﺞ ﻣـﺎﺟﺳﺗﻳـــــﺭ ﺍﻟﻣﺣـﺎﺳﺑـــــﺔ

ﺍﺳﺗﺑﻳﺎﻥ
ﺍﻟﺳﺎﺩﺓ  .................................................ﺍﻟﻣﺣﺗﺭﻣﻳﻥ
ﺗﺣﻳﺔ ﻁﻳﺑﺔ ﻭﺑﻌﺩ،،
ﺘﻘوم اﻟﺒﺎﺤﺜﺔ ﺒﺈﻋداد د ارﺴﺔ ﺒﻌﻨوان:
"ﺩﻭﺭ ﺍﻷﺑﻌﺎﺩ ﺍﻟﺛﻘﺎﻓﻳﺔ ﻓﻲ ﺗﺷﻛﻳﻝ ﻣﻼﻣﺢ ﺍﻟﻣﻣﺎﺭﺳﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻣﺣﺎﺳﺑﻳﺔ ﺍﻟﻣﻘﺑﻭﻟﺔ ﻓﻲ

ﻓﻠﺳﻁﻳﻥ"

The role of cultural dimension in shaping the generally accepted
" accounting practices in Palestine
وﺘﻬدف ﻫذﻩ اﻟدراﺴﺔ ﻟﻤﻌرﻓﺔ أﻫم اﻷﺒﻌﺎد اﻟﺜﻘﺎﻓﻴﺔ ﻟﻤﺠﺘﻤﻌﻨﺎ اﻟﻔﻠﺴطﻴﻨﻲ ودورﻫﺎ ﻓﻲ ﺘﺸﻛﻴﻝ ﻤﻼﻤﺢ
اﻟﻤﻤﺎرﺴﺎت اﻟﻤﺤﺎﺴﺒﻴﺔ اﻟﻤﺴﺘﺨدﻤﺔ ﻓﻲ ﻓﻠﺴطﻴن ,ﻟذﻟك ﻴﺴرﻨﺎ ﻤﺴﺎﻫﻤﺘﻛم ﻓﻲ ﻫذﻩ اﻟدراﺴﺔ ﻤن ﺨﻼﻝ
اﻹﺠﺎﺒﺔ ﻋﻠﻰ ﻓﻘرات اﻻﺴﺘﺒﻴﺎن ٕواﻋﺎدﺘﻬﺎ ﻟﻠﺒﺎﺤﺜﺔ ﺤﺘﻰ ﻴﺘﺴﻨﻰ ﺘﺤﻠﻴﻝ ﻫذﻩ اﻹﺠﺎﺒﺎت ,ﻤﻊ اﻟﻌﻠم ﺒﺄن ﺠﻤﻴﻊ
اﻟﺒﻴﺎﻨﺎت ﺴوف ﺘﺤظﻰ ﺒﺎﻟﺴرﻴﺔ اﻟﺘﺎﻤﺔ وﻴﺘم اﻹﻓﺼﺎح ﻋن اﻟﺒﻴﺎﻨﺎت اﻟﻤﺴﺘﻘﺎة ﻤن اﻻﺴﺘﺒﻴﺎن ﻓﻲ ﺸﻛﻝ
إﺠﻤﺎﻟﻲ ﺒﺤﻴث ﻻ ﺘﻛﺸف ﻋن اﺴم اﻟﻘﺎﺌم ﺒﺎﻹﺠﺎﺒﺔ ﻋﻠﻴﻬﺎ.
ﻣﻊ ﺟﺯﻳﻝ ﺍﻟﺷﻛﺭ ﻟﺣﺳﻥ ﺗﻌﺎﻭﻧﻛﻡ,

H

ﺍﻟﺑﺎﺣﺛـﺔ:
ﻣﻳﺳﺎء ﻋﻁﺎ ﺩﺭﻭﻳﺵ

ﺍﻟﺟﺯء ﺍﻷﻭﻝ

ﺃﻭﻻ  :ﺑﻳﺎﻧﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﺷﺭﻛﺔ
 .1ﺍﻟﻘﻁﺎﻉ ﺍﻟﺫﻱ ﺗﺗﺑﻊ ﻟﻪ ﺍﻟﺷﺭﻛﺔ
ﺏ – ﻗﻁﺎﻉ ﺍﻟﺑﻧﻭﻙ

ﺃ – ﻗﻁﺎﻉ ﺍﻻﺳﺗﺛﻣﺎﺭ

ﺝ – ﻗﻁﺎﻉ ﺍﻟﺗﺄﻣﻳﻥ

ﺩ – ﻗﻁﺎﻉ ﺍﻟﺧﺩﻣﺎﺕ

ﻩ – ﻗﻁﺎﻉ ﺍﻟﺻﻧﺎﻋﺔ

 .2ﺣﻘﻭﻕ ﺍﻟﻣﻠﻛﻳﺔ)ﺑﺎﻟﺩﻭﻻﺭ(
ﺃ – ﺃﻗﻝ ﻣﻥ  5ﻣﻠﻳﻭﻥ ﺩﻭﻻﺭ ﺃﻣﺭﻳﻛﻲ

ﺏ  -ﻣﻥ  5ﺇﻟﻰ 15ﻣﻠﻳﻭﻥ ﺩﻭﻻﺭ ﺃﻣﺭﻳﻛﻲ

ﺝ– ﻣﻥ  16ﺇﻟﻰ  30ﻣﻠﻳﻭﻥ ﺩﻭﻻﺭ ﺃﻣﺭﻳﻛﻲ

ﺩ  -ﻣﻥ  31ﺇﻟﻰ  50ﻣﻠﻳﻭﻥ ﺩﻭﻻﺭ ﺃﻣﺭﻳﻛﻲ

ﻩ–  51ﻣﻠﻳﻭﻥ ﺩﻭﻻﺭ ﺃﻣﺭﻳﻛﻲ ﻓﺄﻛﺛﺭ
 .3ﻣﺩﺓ ﻣﺯﺍﻭﻟﺔ ﻧﺷﺎﻁ ﺍﻟﺷﺭﻛﺔ
ﺏ  -ﻣﻥ  10ﺇﻟﻰ  20ﺳﻧﻪ

ﺃ  -ﺃﻗﻝ ﻣﻥ  10ﺳﻧﻭﺍﺕ

ﺝ  -ﻣﻥ  21ﺇﻟﻰ  30ﺳﻧﻪ

ﺩ  31-ﺳﻧﺔ ﻓﺄﻛﺛﺭ

 .1ﻋﻣﺭ ﺍﻟﺷﺭﻛﺔ ﻣﻥ ﺣﻳﺙ ﺍﻹﺩﺭﺍﺝ ﻓﻲ ﺑﻭﺭﺻﺔ ﻓﻠﺳﻁﻳﻥ ﻟﻸﻭﺭﺍﻕ ﺍﻟﻣﺎﻟﻳﺔ
ﺃ  -ﺃﻗﻝ ﻣﻥ  3ﺳﻧﻭﺍﺕ

ﺏ  -ﻣﻥ  4ﺇﻟﻰ  6ﺳﻧﻭﺍﺕ

ﺝ  -ﻣﻥ  7ﺇﻟﻰ  9ﺳﻧﻭﺍﺕ

ﺩ –  10ﺳﻧﻭﺍﺕ ﻓﺄﻛﺛﺭ

ﺛﺎﻧﻳﺎ :ﺍﻟﺑﻳﺎﻧﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﺷﺧﺻﻳﺔ
 .1ﺍﻟﺟﻧﺱ

ﺃ -ﺫﻛﺭ

ﺏ -ﺃﻧﺛﻰ

 .2ﺍﻟﻭﻅﻳﻔﺔ ﺍﻟﺣﺎﻟﻳﺔ
ﺃ – ﻣﺣﺎﺳﺏ

ﺏ – ﻣﺩﻳﺭ ﻣﺎﻟﻲ

ﺝ – ﻣﺩﻗﻕ ﺩﺍﺧﻠﻲ

ﺩ -ﺃﺧﺭﻯ )ﺍﻟﺭﺟﺎء ﺫﻛﺭﻫﺎ(......................

I

ﺍﻟﺟﺯء ﺍﻟﺛﺎﻧﻲ :ﻣﺗﻐﻳﺭﺍﺕ ﺍﻟﺩﺭﺍﺳﺔ
ﺃﻭﻻ :ﺍﻷﺑﻌﺎﺩ ﺍﻟﺛﻘﺎﻓﻳﺔ
ﺭﻗ
ﻡ

ﻛﺑﻳﺭﺓ ﺟﺩﺍَ

ﺍﻟﻌﺑﺎﺭﺓ

ﺍﻟﻔﺭﺩﻳﺔ ﻣﻘﺎﺑﻝ ﺍﻟﺟﻣﺎﻋﻳﺔIndividualism vs. collectivism:.
1

ﺃﺭﻯ ﺃﻥ ﺍﻷﻓﺭﺍﺩ ﻳﺟﺏ ﺃﻥ ﻳﺿﺣﻭﺍ ﻣﻥ ﺃﺟﻝ ﻣﺻﻠﺣﺔ ﺍﻟﺟﻣﺎﻋﺔ
ﺣﺗﻰ ﻟﻭ ﻛﺎﻥ ﻋﻠﻰ ﺣﺳﺎﺏ ﻣﺻﺎﻟﺣﻬﻡ ﺍﻟﺷﺧﺻﻳﺔ.

2

ﺃﻋﺗﻘﺩ ﺍﻧﻪ ﻣﻥ ﺍﻟﻭﺍﺟﺏ ﻋﻠﻰ ﺍﻷﻓﺭﺍﺩ ﺍﻻﻟﺗﺯﺍﻡ ﺑﻣﺗﻁﻠﺑﺎﺕ
ﺍﻟﺟﻣﺎﻋﺔ ﺣﺗﻰ ﺧﻼﻝ ﺍﻟﻣﺣﻥ ﻭﺍﻟﺻﻌﻭﺑﺎﺕ.

3

ﺃﺗﺻﻭﺭ ﺍﻧﻪ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﻣﺟﺗﻣﻊ ﺍﻟﻣﺳﺗﻘﺭ ﻧﺟﺎﺡ ﺍﻟﺟﻣﺎﻋﺔ ﻭﺭﻓﺎﻫﻳﺗﻬﺎ
ﻻ ﻳﻘﻝ ﺃﻫﻣﻳﺔ ﻋﻥ ﺭﻓﺎﻫﻳﺔ ﺍﻟﻔﺭﺩ ﻭﻣﺻﺎﻟﺣﻪ ﺍﻟﺷﺧﺻﻳﺔ

4

ﻳﻣﻛﻥ ﻟﻸﻓﺭﺍﺩ ﻣﺗﺎﺑﻌﺔ ﻁﻣﻭﺣﺎﺗﻬﻡ ﻭﺃﻫﺩﺍﻓﻬﻡ ﺁﺧﺫﻳﻥ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻻﻋﺗﺑﺎﺭ
ﻣﺻﻠﺣﺔ ﺍﻟﺟﻣﺎﻋﺔ ﻭﺃﻫﺩﺍﻓﻬﺎ.

5

ﺃﺣﺏ ﺍﻟﻌﻣﻝ ﺍﻟﺟﻣﺎﻋﻲ ﺃﻛﺛﺭ ﻣﻥ ﺍﻟﻌﻣﻝ ﺍﻟﻔﺭﺩﻱ.

6

ﺍﻟﻭﻻء ﻟﻠﻣﺟﻣﻭﻋﺔ ﺃﻋﻠﻰ ﻣﺭﺗﺑﺔ ﻣﻥ ﺗﺣﻘﻳﻕ ﺑﻌﺽ ﺍﻷﻫﺩﺍﻑ
ﺍﻟﺷﺧﺻﻳﺔ.

ﺩﺭﺟﺔ ﺍﺳﺗﺧﺩﺍﻡ ﺍﻟﻧﻔﻭﺫ ﺍﻟﻭﻅﻳﻔﻲPower distance degree :.
1

ﻣﻥ ﺍﻟﻣﻘﺑﻭﻝ ﺃﻥ ﺍﻷﺷﺧﺎﺹ ﺫﻭﻱ ﺍﻟﻣﺭﺍﻛﺯ ﺍﻟﻌﻠﻳﺎ ﻳﻘﻭﻣﻭﻥ
ﺑﺎﺗﺧﺎﺫ ﻣﻌﻅﻡ ﺍﻟﻘﺭﺍﺭﺍﺕ ﺩﻭﻥ ﺍﺳﺗﺷﺎﺭﺓ ﺍﻷﻓﺭﺍﺩ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﻣﺭﺍﻛﺯ
ﺍﻷﻗﻝ.

2

ﺃﺭﻯ ﺍﻧﻪ ﻣﻥ ﻏﻳﺭ ﺍﻟﺿﺭﻭﺭﻱ ﺑﺎﻥ ﻳﺄﺧﺫ ﺍﻷﻓﺭﺍﺩ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﻣﺭﺍﻛﺯ
ﺍﻟﻌﻠﻳﺎ ﺃﺭﺍء ﻭﻣﻘﺗﺭﺣﺎﺕ ﺍﻷﺷﺧﺎﺹ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﻣﺭﺍﻛﺯ ﺍﻷﻗﻝ.

3

ﻟﻳﺱ ﻣﻥ ﺍﻟﺿﺭﻭﺭﻱ ﺃﻥ ﻳﻛﻭﻥ ﻫﻧﺎﻟﻙ ﺗﻭﺍﺻﻼً ﺍﺟﺗﻣﺎﻋﻳﺎ ً ﻛﺑﻳﺭﺍً
ﺑﻳﻥ ﺍﻟﻣﺳﺗﻭﻳﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻣﺧﺗﻠﻔﺔ.

4

ﺃﺗﺻﻭﺭ ﺃﻥ ﺍﻷﺷﺧﺎﺹ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﻣﺭﺍﻛﺯ ﺍﻟﻌﻠﻳﺎ ﻋﻠﻳﻬﻡ ﺃﻥ ﻳﻘﻠﻠﻭﺍ
ﺍﻟﺗﻔﻭﻳﺿﺎﺕ ﻭﺍﻟﺻﻼﺣﻳﺎﺕ ﻟﻸﻓﺭﺍﺩ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﻣﺭﺍﻛﺯ ﺍﻷﻗﻝ.

5

ﺍﻋﺗﻘﺩ ﺃﻥ ﺍﻷﺷﺧﺎﺹ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﻣﺭﺍﻛﺯ ﺍﻟﻌﻠﻳﺎ ﻳﺟﺏ ﺃﻥ ﻳﻣﻧﺣﻭﺍ
ﺍﻷﺷﺧﺎﺹ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﻣﺭﺍﻛﺯ ﺍﻷﻗﻝ ﻣﺭﻭﻧﺔ ﻭﺍﺳﺗﻘﻼﻟﻳﺔ ﺑﺎﻟﺭﺃﻱ
ﻭﺍﺗﺧﺎﺫ ﺍﻟﻘﺭﺍﺭﺍﺕ.

ﺩﺭﺟﺔ ﺗﺟﻧﺏ ﻋﺩﻡ ﺍﻟﺗﺄﻛﺩUncertainty avoidance degree .
1

ﻣﻥ ﺍﻟﻣﻬﻡ ﻭﺟﻭﺩ ﺗﻌﻠﻳﻣﺎﺕ ﻣﻔﺻﻠﺔ ﻣﻛﺗﻭﺑﺔ ﺣﻭﻝ ﺍﻟﻣﻬﺎﻡ ﺍﻟﻣﺧﺗﻠﻔﺔ
ﻟﻛﻝ ﻓﺭﺩ ﺣﺗﻰ ﻳﻌﺭﻑ ﻣﺎ ﻫﻭ ﻣﺗﻭﻗﻊ ﻣﻧﻪ.

2

ﻣﻥ ﺍﻟﻣﻬﻡ ﺇﺗﺑﺎﻉ ﺍﻟﺗﻌﻠﻳﻣﺎﺕ ﻭﺍﻹﺟﺭﺍءﺍﺕ ﺣﻭﻝ ﺍﻟﻣﻬﺎﻡ ﺑﺣﺫﺍﻓﻳﺭﻫﺎ
ﺩﻭﻥ ﺇﺿﺎﻓﺎﺕ ﺃﻭ ﺗﻐﻳﻳﺭ ﺃﻭ ﺍﺟﺗﻬﺎﺩ.

J

ﻛﺑﻳﺭﺓ

ﻣﺗﻭﺳﻁﺔ

ﻗﻠﻳﻠﺔ

ﻗﻠﻳﻠﺔ ﺟﺩﺍَ

3

ﺃﻋﺗﻘﺩ ﺃﻥ ﺛﻘﺎﻓﺔ ﻣﺟﺗﻣﻌﻲ ﺗﺭﻓﺽ ﺍﻷﻓﻛﺎﺭ ﺍﻟﺟﺩﻳﺩﺓ ﻭﺍﻟﻣﻘﺗﺭﺣﺎﺕ
ﺍﻟﻣﺧﺗﻠﻔﺔ ﻭﺗﻘﺎﻭﻡ ﺍﻟﺗﻐﻳﻳﺭ .

4

ﺃﻓﺿﻝ ﺍﻟﻭﺿﻊ ﺍﻟﺣﺎﻟﻲ ﺑﻣﻌﻁﻳﺎﺗﻪ ﺍﻟﻭﺍﺿﺣﺔ ﻭﻻ ﺃﺭﻏﺏ ﻓﻲ
ﺍﻟﺗﻐﻳﻳﺭ ﺍﻟﻐﺎﻣﺽ ﺃﻭ ﺗﻘﺻﻲ ﺍﻟﻣﺟﻬﻭﻝ ﻭﺍﻟﺧﻭﺽ ﺑﻪ.

5

ﺍﺷﻌﺭ ﺃﻥ ﺍﻷﻓﺭﺍﺩ ﻓﻲ ﻣﺟﺗﻣﻌﻲ ﻻ ﻳﻬﺗﻣﻭﻥ ﺑﺎﻟﺗﺧﻁﻳﻁ ﻭﺇﺩﺍﺭﺓ
ﺍﻟﻭﻗﺕ ﻭﺍﻟﻌﻣﻝ ﻟﻠﻣﺳﺗﻘﺑﻝ.

ﺍﻟﺫﻛﻭﺭﺓ ﻣﻘﺎﺑﻝ ﺍﻷﻧﺛﻭﻳﺔMasculinity vs. femininity .
1

ﻳﻧﻅﺭ ﺍﻟﻣﺟﺗﻣﻊ ﺇﻟﻰ ﺃﺣﻘﻳﺔ ﺍﻟﺭﺟﻝ ﺑﺎﻟﻭﻅﺎﺋﻑ ﺍﻟﻣﻬﻧﻳﺔ ﺍﻟﻣﻬﻣﺔ
ﻋﻠﻰ ﺣﺳﺎﺏ ﺍﻟﻣﺭﺃﺓ.

2

ﻏﺎﻟﺑﺎ ﻣﺎ ﻳﺣﻝ ﺍﻟﺭﺟﺎﻝ ﺍﻟﻣﺷﺎﻛﻝ ﺍﻟﺗﻲ ﺗﻭﺍﺟﻬﻬﻡ ﻣﻥ ﺧﻼﻝ
ﺍﻟﺗﺣﻠﻳﻝ ﺍﻟﻣﻧﻁﻘﻲ ﻓﻳﻣﺎ ﺗﺣﻝ ﺍﻟﻧﺳﺎء ﺍﻟﻣﺷﺎﻛﻝ ﺍﻋﺗﻣﺎﺩﺍ ﻋﻠﻰ
ﺍﻟﺣﺩﺱ ﻭﺍﻟﻌﺎﻁﻔﺔ.

3

ﻳﺗﻁﻠﺏ ﺣﻝ ﺍﻟﻣﺷﺎﻛﻝ ﺍﻟﻣﺳﺗﻌﺻﻳﺔ ﻁﺭﻕ ﻓﻌﺎﻟﺔ ﻭﺣﺎﺯﻣﺔ ﻭﻫﺫﺍ
ﻳﻧﻁﺑﻕ ﻋﻠﻰ ﺧﺻﺎﺋﺹ ﺍﻟﺭﺟﺎﻝ.

4

ﻳﻣﻧﺢ ﻣﺟﺗﻣﻌﻧﺎ ﺍﻟﻣﺭﺃﺓ ﺩﻭﺭﺍ ﺃﻛﺑﺭ ﻓﻲ ﻣﺟﺎﻻﺕ ﺍﻟﻘﻳﺎﺩﺓ
ﻭﺍﻟﺳﻳﻁﺭﺓ.

5

ﺃﺭﻯ ﺃﻥ ﺑﻌﺽ ﺍﻟﻭﻅﺎﺋﻑ ﺗﺣﺗﺎﺝ ﻣﻬﺎﺭﺍﺕ ﺧﺎﺻﺔ ﻟﺫﻟﻙ ﺍﻟﺭﺟﺎﻝ
ﺩﺍﺋﻣﺎ ﻗﺎﺩﺭﻭﻥ ﻋﻠﻰ ﺃﺩﺍﺋﻬﺎ ﺃﻓﺿﻝ ﻣﻥ ﺍﻟﻧﺳﺎء.

6

ﻳﻌﺗﺑﺭ ﺍﻟﻣﺟﺗﻣﻊ ﺃﻥ ﺍﻟﺭﺟﻝ ﻫﻭ ﺍﻟﻌﻧﺻﺭ ﺍﻷﻛﺛﺭ ﻓﻌﺎﻟﻳﺔ ﻓﻲ ﺑﻧﺎء
ﺍﻟﻣﺟﺗﻣﻊ ﻭﺗﻁﻭﺭﻩ.

ﺩﺭﺟﺔ ﺍﻟﺗﻭﺟﻪ ﻁﻭﻳﻝ ﺍﻷﻣﺩ ﻣﻘﺎﺑﻝ ﺍﻟﺗﻭﺟﻪ ﻗﺻﻳﺭ ﺍﻷﻣﺩLong vs. short-term orientation .
1

ﺃﺭﻯ ﺃﻥ ﺍﻷﻭﻟﻭﻳﺔ ﻫﻲ ﻹﺩﺍﺭﺓ ﺍﻟﺗﺧﻁﻳﻁ ﻟﻠﻣﺳﺗﻘﺑﻝ ﻭﻭﺿﻊ ﺧﻁﻁ
ﻁﻭﻳﻠﺔ ﺍﻷﻣﺩ.

2

ﺃﺗﺻﻭﺭ ﺃﻥ ﺍﻟﺗﻘﺎﻟﻳﺩ ﻭﺍﻟﻌﺎﺩﺍﺕ ﺍﻟﻣﺟﺗﻣﻌﻳﺔ ﻗﺎﺑﻠﺔ ﻟﻠﺗﻌﺩﻳﻝ ﻭﺍﻟﺗﻐﻳﻳﺭ
ﺣﺳﺏ ﺍﻟﻅﺭﻭﻑ ﺍﻟﻣﺳﺗﻘﺑﻠﻳﺔ ﺍﻟﻣﺗﻐﻳﺭﺓ.

3

ﺃﻋﺗﻘﺩ ﺃﻥ ﺗﻌﺭﻳﻑ ﺍﻟﻣﻔﺎﻫﻳﻡ ﺍﻟﺻﺎﺋﺑﺔ ﻭﺍﻟﻣﻔﺎﻫﻳﻡ ﺍﻟﺧﺎﻁﺋﺔ ﻳﻌﺗﻣﺩ
ﻋﻠﻰ ﺍﻟﻅﺭﻭﻑ ﻭﺍﻟﻣﺗﻐﻳﺭﺍﺕ ﺍﻟﺯﻣﻧﻳﺔ.

ﺩﺭﺟﺔ ﺍﻟﺗﺯﻣﺕ ﻣﻘﺎﺑﻝ ﺍﻟﺗﺳﺎﻫﻝIndulgence versus restraint .
1

ﺃﺷﻌﺭ ﺑﺄﻧﻧﻲ ﺷﺧﺹ ﺳﻌﻳﺩ ﻭﻣﺣﺑﻭﺏ ﻓﻲ ﻣﺟﺗﻣﻌﻲ .

2

ﺃﺳﺗﻁﻳﻊ ﺍﻟﺗﺣﻛﻡ ﺑﺯﻣﺎﻡ ﺣﻳﺎﺗﻲ ﻭﺗﺣﺩﻳﺩ ﻣﺟﺭﻳﺎﺗﻬﺎ ﺑﺷﻛﻝ ﺩﻗﻳﻕ
ﺩﻭﻥ ﺿﻐﻭﻁ ﺃﻭ ﺗﺩﺧﻼﺕ ﺧﺎﺭﺟﻳﺔ.

3

ﺃﻣﺎﺭﺱ ﺣﺭﻳﺔ ﺍﻟﺗﻌﺑﻳﺭ ﻋﻥ ﺍﻟﺭﺃﻱ ﻭﺃﻋﺗﺑﺭﻩ ﺣﻕ ﺃﺳﺎﺳﻲ ﻭﻣﻬﻡ
ﻭﻻ ﻳﻣﻛﻥ ﺍﻟﺗﺧﻠﻲ ﻋﻧﻪ.

4

ﺍﻋﺗﺑﺭ ﺍﻟﺭﻳﺎﺿﺔ ﺟﺯء ﻻ ﻳﺗﺟﺯﺃ ﻣﻥ ﺭﻭﺗﻳﻧﻲ ﺍﻟﻳﻭﻣﻲ.
K

ﺃﺣﺏ ﺃﻥ ﺃﺗﺑﻧﻰ ﺍﻷﻓﻛﺎﺭ ﻭﺍﻟﻌﻭﺍﻁﻑ ﺍﻻﻳﺟﺎﺑﻳﺔ ﻓﻲ ﺗﻌﺎﻣﻠﻲ ﻣﻊ
ﺍﻟﻧﺎﺱ.

5

ﺛﺎﻧﻳﺎ :ﺍﻟﻣﻣﺎﺭﺳﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻣﺣﺎﺳﺑﻳﺔ
ﺭﻗﻡ

ﺍﻟﻌﺑﺎﺭﺓ

ﻛﺑﻳﺭﺓ ﺟﺩﺍَ

ﺍﻟﺳﻠﻁﺔ ﺍﻟﻣﺣﺎﺳﺑﻳﺔ Authority .
1

ﺇﻟﻰ ﺣﺩ ﻣﺎ ﻫﻧﺎﻙ ﻫﻳﺋﺎﺕ ﻣﻬﻧﻳﺔ ﺗﺗﺎﺑﻊ ﻗﺿﺎﻳﺎ ﺍﻟﻣﺣﺎﺳﺑﺔ
ﻭﺍﻟﺗﺩﻗﻳﻕ ﻓﻲ ﻓﻠﺳﻁﻳﻥ.

2

ﺇﻟﻰ ﺣﺩ ﻣﺎ ﻫﻧﺎﻙ ﻫﻳﺋﺎﺕ ﻣﻬﻧﻳﺔ ﻣﺗﺧﺻﺻﺔ ﻓﻲ ﺗﻁﻭﻳﺭ ﻣﺑﺎﺩﺉ
ﺍﻟﻣﺣﺎﺳﺑﺔ ﻭﺍﻟﺗﺩﻗﻳﻕ ﻓﻲ ﻓﻠﺳﻁﻳﻥ.

3

ﺗﻌﺩ ﺍﻟﻣﻌﺎﻳﻳﺭ ﺍﻟﻣﺣﺎﺳﺑﻳﺔ ﺍﻟﺩﻭﻟﻳﺔ ﺍﻟﺑﺩﻳﻝ ﻹﻋﺩﺍﺩ ﺍﻟﻘﻭﺍﺋﻡ ﺍﻟﻣﺎﻟﻳﺔ
ﻓﻲ ﺣﺎﻟﺔ ﻋﺩﻡ ﻭﺟﻭﺩ ﻣﺑﺎﺩﺉ ﻣﺣﺎﺳﺑﻳﺔ ﻭﻁﻧﻳﺔ .

4

ﻳﻧﺑﻐﻲ ﺃﻥ ﻳﺗﺑﻊ ﺍﻟﺗﻘﺭﻳﺭ ﺍﻟﻣﺎﻟﻲ ﺍﻟﺳﻧﻭﻱ ﺗﻘﺭﻳﺭ ﺍﻟﻣﺩﻗﻕ.

5

ﻫﻳﺋﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻣﺣﺎﺳﺑﺔ ﻭﺍﻟﺗﺩﻗﻳﻕ ﻣﺳﺗﻘﻠﺔ ﻋﻥ ﺍﻟﺩﻭﻟﺔ.

6

ﺿﻭﺍﺑﻁ ﺍﻟﻣﺣﺎﺳﺑﺔ ﻭﺍﻟﺗﺩﻗﻳﻕ ﻟﻳﺳﺕ ﻣﺗﺣﻛﻡ ﺑﻬﺎ ﻣﻥ ﻗﺑﻝ
ﺍﻟﺩﻭﻟﺔ.

7

ﺃﺳﺎﺳﻳﺎﺕ ﺇﻋﺩﺍﺩ ﺍﻟﻘﻭﺍﺋﻡ ﺍﻟﻣﺎﻟﻳﺔ ﻟﻳﺳﺕ ﺑﺎﻟﺿﺭﻭﺭﺓ ﻣﻘﻳﺩﺓ
ﺑﻘﻭﺍﻧﻳﻥ ﺍﻟﺷﺭﻛﺎﺕ.

ﺍﻹﻓﺻﺎﺡ ﺍﻟﻣﺣﺎﺳﺑﻲDisclosure .
1

ﺍﻟﺷﺭﻛﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻣﺩﺭﺟﺔ ﻓﻲ ﺑﻭﺭﺻﺔ ﻓﻠﺳﻁﻳﻥ ﺗﺣﺑﺫ ﺍﻟﺷﻔﺎﻓﻳﺔ
ﻭﺍﻻﻧﻔﺗﺎﺡ ﺃﻣﺎﻡ ﺍﻟﻌﺎﻣﺔ.

2

ﺗﻘﻭﻡ ﺍﻟﺷﺭﻛﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻣﺩﺭﺟﺔ ﺑﺎﻹﻓﺻﺎﺡ ﻋﻥ ﻓﺭﻭﺽ ﺍﻟﻣﺣﺎﺳﺑﺔ
ﺍﻟﻣﺗﺑﻌﺔ ﻟﺩﻳﻬﺎ ﻭﻋﻥ ﻣﻌﻠﻭﻣﺎﺕ ﺃﺧﺭﻯ ﻋﺎﻣﺔ ﺗﺗﻌﻠﻕ ﺑﻬﺎ.

3

ﺗﻘﻭﻡ ﺍﻟﺷﺭﻛﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻣﺩﺭﺟﺔ ﺑﺎﻹﻓﺻﺎﺡ ﻋﻥ ﺍﻟﻘﻭﺍﺋﻡ ﺍﻟﻣﺎﻟﻳﺔ ﺗﺑﻌﺎ
ﻟﻠﻣﻌﺎﻳﻳﺭ ﺍﻟﺩﻭﻟﻳﺔ ﻹﻋﺩﺍﺩ ﺍﻟﺗﻘﺎﺭﻳﺭ ﺍﻟﻣﺎﻟﻳﺔ .IFRS

4

ﺗﻠﺗﺯﻡ ﺍﻟﺷﺭﻛﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻣﺩﺭﺟﺔ ﺑﻣﺳﺗﻭﻯ ﺍﻹﻓﺻﺎﺡ ﺍﻟﻣﻁﻠﻭﺏ ﻣﻥ
ﺑﻭﺭﺻﺔ ﻓﻠﺳﻁﻳﻥ ﻭﺳﻠﻁﺔ ﺍﻟﻧﻘﺩ ﺍﻟﻔﻠﺳﻁﻳﻧﻳﺔ)ﻟﻠﺑﻧﻭﻙ(.

5

ﺗﻘﻭﻡ ﺍﻟﺷﺭﻛﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻣﺩﺭﺟﺔ ﺑﺎﻹﻓﺻﺎﺡ ﻋﻥ ﺍﻷﺣﺩﺍﺙ ﺍﻟﻣﺳﺗﻘﺑﻠﻳﺔ
ﺍﻟﺗﻲ ﻗﺩ ﺗﺅﺛﺭ ﻋﻠﻰ ﻗﻭﺍﺋﻣﻬﺎ ﺍﻟﻣﺎﻟﻳﺔ.

6

ﺗﻘﻭﻡ ﺍﻟﺷﺭﻛﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻣﺩﺭﺟﺔ ﺑﺎﻹﻓﺻﺎﺡ ﻋﻥ ﺍﻟﺳﻳﺎﺳﺎﺕ
ﺍﻟﻣﺣﺎﺳﺑﻳﺔ ﺍﻟﻣﺳﺗﺧﺩﻣﺔ ﻟﺩﻳﻬﺎ ﺗﺑﻌﺎ ﻟﻠﻣﻌﺎﻳﻳﺭ ﺍﻟﺩﻭﻟﻳﺔ ﻹﻋﺩﺍﺩ
ﺍﻟﺗﻘﺎﺭﻳﺭ ﺍﻟﻣﺎﻟﻳﺔ .IFRS
L

ﻛﺑﻳﺭﺓ

ﻣﺗﻭﺳﻁﺔ

ﻗﻠﻳﻠﺔ

ﻗﻠﻳﻠﺔ ﺟﺩﺍَ

7

ﺗﻘﻭﻡ ﺍﻟﺷﺭﻛﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻣﺩﺭﺟﺔ ﺑﺎﻹﻓﺻﺎﺡ ﻋﻥ ﺍﻟﻣﻼﺣﻅﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻣﺭﻓﻘﺔ
ﻟﻘﻭﺍﺋﻣﻬﺎ ﺍﻟﻣﺎﻟﻳﺔ ﺗﺑﻌﺎ ﻟﻠﻣﻌﺎﻳﻳﺭ ﺍﻟﺩﻭﻟﻳﺔ ﻹﻋﺩﺍﺩ ﺍﻟﺗﻘﺎﺭﻳﺭ ﺍﻟﻣﺎﻟﻳﺔ
.IFRS

ﺍﻹﺟﺑﺎﺭ ﻭﺍﻟﺗﻁﺑﻳﻕ Enforcement .
1

ﻻ ﻳﻭﺟﺩ ﻫﻧﺎﻙ ﺗﻐﻳﺭﺍﺕ ﻣﻠﺣﻭﻅﺔ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﺳﻳﺎﺳﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻣﺣﺎﺳﺑﻳﺔ
ﺍﻟﻣﺗﺑﻌﺔ ﻣﻥ ﻗﺑﻝ ﺍﻟﺷﺭﻛﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻣﺩﺭﺟﺔ ﺧﻼﻝ ﺍﻟﺳﻧﻭﺍﺕ ﺍﻟﺧﻣﺱ
ﺍﻟﻣﻧﺻﺭﻣﺔ

2

ﻫﻧﺎﻙ ﺗﻭﺣﻳﺩ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﺳﻳﺎﺳﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻣﺣﺎﺳﺑﻳﺔ ﺍﻟﻣﺳﺗﺧﺩﻣﺔ ﻣﻥ ﻗﺑﻝ
ﺍﻟﺷﺭﻛﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﻣﺧﺗﻠﻔﺔ.

3

ﻻ ﻳﺗﻡ ﺍﺳﺗﺑﺩﺍﻝ ﻗﺎﺋﻣﺔ ﺍﻟﺗﺩﻓﻕ ﺍﻟﻧﻘﺩﻱ ﺑﺄﻱ ﻗﺎﺋﻣﺔ ﺃﺧﺭﻯ ﺗﺅﺩﻱ
ﻟﻧﻔﺱ ﺍﻟﻐﺭﺽ.

4

ﻫﻧﺎﻙ ﺗﻭﺣﻳﺩ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﺑﻧﻭﺩ ﺍﻟﻣﻔﺻﺢ ﻋﻧﻬﺎ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﻣﻳﺯﺍﻧﻳﺔ
ﺍﻟﻌﻣﻭﻣﻳﺔ.

5

ﻫﻧﺎﻙ ﺗﻭﺣﻳﺩ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﺑﻧﻭﺩ ﺍﻟﻣﻔﺻﺢ ﻋﻧﻬﺎ ﻓﻲ ﻗﺎﺋﻣﺔ ﺍﻟﺩﺧﻝ.

6

ﻫﻧﺎﻙ ﺗﻭﺣﻳﺩ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﺑﻧﻭﺩ ﺍﻟﻣﻔﺻﺢ ﻋﻧﻬﺎ ﻓﻲ ﻗﺎﺋﻣﺔ ﺍﻟﺗﺩﻓﻕ
ﺍﻟﻧﻘﺩﻱ.

7

ﻫﻧﺎﻙ ﺗﻭﺣﻳﺩ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﺑﻧﻭﺩ ﺍﻟﻣﻔﺻﺢ ﻋﻧﻬﺎ ﻓﻲ ﺍﻟﻣﻼﺣﻅﺎﺕ
ﺍﻟﻣﺭﺍﻓﻘﺔ ﻟﻠﻘﻭﺍﺋﻡ ﺍﻟﻣﺎﻟﻳﺔ.

ﺍﻟﺗﺣﻔﻅConservatism .
1

ﻣﺑﺩﺃ ﺍﻟﺗﻛﻠﻔﺔ ﺍﻟﺗﺎﺭﻳﺧﻳﺔ ﻳﺳﺗﺧﺩﻡ ﻓﻲ ﻗﻳﺎﺱ ﺍﻷﺻﻭﻝ.

2

ﻣﺑﺩﺃ ﺍﻟﺗﻛﻠﻔﺔ ﺃﻭ ﺍﻟﺳﻭﻕ ﺃﻳﻬﻣﺎ ﺃﻗﻝ ﻳﺳﺗﺧﺩﻡ ﻓﻲ ﺗﻘﺩﻳﺭ ﻗﻳﻣﺔ
ﺍﻟﻣﺧﺯﻭﻥ.

3

ﻳﺗﻡ ﺍﻻﻋﺗﺭﺍﻑ ﺑﺎﻷﺻﻭﻝ ﺍﻟﺛﺎﺑﺗﺔ,ﺍﻟﻣﻣﺗﻠﻛﺎﺕ ,ﺍﻟﻣﺻﺎﻧﻊ
ﻭﺍﻟﻣﻌﺩﺍﺕ ﺑﻘﻳﻣﺔ ﺍﻟﺗﻛﻠﻔﺔ ﻣﻁﺭﻭﺡ ﻣﻧﻬﺎ ﻗﻳﻣﺔ ﺍﻻﺳﺗﻬﻼﻙ.

4

ﻳﺗﻡ ﺍﻻﻋﺗﺭﺍﻑ ﺑﺎﻟﺫﻣﻡ ﺍﻟﻣﺩﻳﻧﺔ ﺍﻟﺻﺎﻓﻳﺔ ﺑﻌﺩ ﺍﺳﺗﺑﻌﺎﺩ ﻣﺧﺻﺹ
ﺍﻟﺩﻳﻭﻥ ﺍﻟﻣﺷﻛﻭﻙ ﻓﻳﻬﺎ.

5

ﺍﻟﺧﺳﺎﺋﺭ ﺍﻟﺷﺭﻁﻳﺔ ﺃﻭ ﺍﻟﻐﻳﺭ ﻣﺗﻭﻗﻌﺔ ﻳﺗﻡ ﺍﻻﻋﺗﺭﺍﻑ ﻓﻳﻬﺎ
ﺑﺎﻟﻘﻭﺍﺋﻡ ﺍﻟﻣﺎﻟﻳﺔ.

6

ﻳﺗﻡ ﺍﻻﻋﺗﺭﺍﻑ ﺑﺎﻷﺻﻭﻝ ﻏﻳﺭ ﺍﻟﻣﻠﻣﻭﺳﺔ ﺑﻌﺩ ﺍﺳﺗﺑﻌﺎﺩ
))ﺍﻻﺳﺗﻬﻼﻙ((.

7

ﻳﺗﻡ ﺍﻻﻋﺗﺭﺍﻑ ﺑﺟﻣﻳﻊ ﺍﻟﻣﺧﺻﺻﺎﺕ ﻭﺍﻻﺣﺗﻳﺎﻁﻳﺎﺕ ﻓﻲ
ﺍﻟﻘﻭﺍﺋﻡ ﺍﻟﻣﺎﻟﻳﺔ.

ﻣﻊ ﺗﺣﻳﺎﺕ ﺍﻟﺑﺎﺣﺛﺔ:
ﻣﻳﺳﺎء ﺩﺭﻭﻳﺵ
M

